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Our flagship San Miguel Pale Pilsen
continues to maintain its strong

position through strategic partnerships

with some of Hong Kong's biggest
names in sports and music.




THE YEAR'S HIGHLIGHTS | AXFERE

(BREEFTRRER - BREE M B T ABIMILABEEDIIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars except number of

shares issued, shareholders and personnel)

Turnover ($'000)

Profit/(loss) for the year (3'000)
Profit/(loss) per share - Basic (cents)
Taxes paid, including beer tax ($'000)
Taxes paid per share (cents)

Fixed assets ($'000)

Net worth (3'000)

Salaries, wages and other benefits ($'000)
Number of shares issued
Number of shareholders

Number of personnel
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2012
—E——F

686,362

229,175

64

26,683

654,678

511,836

104,724

373,570,560

2,134

606

2011
—T——F

683,879

(68,638)

(14)

36,009

10

389,671

297,223

101,023

373,570,560

2,146
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To our shareholders,

Consolidated revenue amounted to HK$686.4 million, a 0.4% increase over
the same period in 2011. Gross profit reached HK$293.9 million, with gross
profit margin at 42.8%.

Consolidated profit for 2012 was HK$229.2 million, a significant improvement
from the HK$68.6 million loss in 2011 due to the reversal of impairment
losses of San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited and its subsidiaries’ (the
“Group’s”) non-current assets amounting to HK$269.9 million. Excluding
the reversal of impairment losses in 2012 and the impairment losses in
2011, net of tax effect, the consolidated loss for 2012 would have been
HK$40.7 million, a considerable improvement from our losses in 2011 of
HK$63.1 million due to operating initiatives implemented in our South China

operations.

Cash and cash equivalents (excluding bank loans) as of year-end amounted
to HK$100.9 million. Total net assets reached HK$511.8 million, a significant
improvement over last year's HK$297.2 million, with a debt-to-equity ratio of
0.45.
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No dividends will be declared for 2012.

HONG KONG OPERATIONS

Even while the Hong Kong economy has yet to complete its recovery, our
beer operations in the territory remained strong, posting a 2% growth in
sales in step with the larger beer industry. We continue to be the No. 1 beer
company in Hong Kong, largely due to the dominance of our core brands.
The domestic market response to our growing portfolio has been favorable.
Meanwhile, total sales volumes declined by 6% due to the transfer of some
exports volumes to San Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited
("SMGB").

San Mig Light remains one of our best performers, registering double-digit
growth over the same period in 2011. Over the last year, we have been able
to sustain strong on-premise demand for San Mig Light, while at the same
time expanding its availability and reach in off-premise outlets. The brand’s
visibility has been supported by a thematic campaign called “Light and
Free”, which included the launch of a new TVC and viral online campaign.

Our flagship San Miguel Pale Pilsen continues to maintain its strong position
through strategic partnerships with some of Hong Kong's biggest names
in sports and music — including a high-profile alliance with the Lan Kwai
Fong Association as the latter’s official beer partner. This partnership was
launched through the San Miguel X Lan Kwai Fong Rugby Festival, one
of the territory’s biggest post-rugby parties. Other prominent strategic
partnerships include the exclusive sponsorship of the highly successful
music and arts festival, Clockenflap; and presence of the San Miguel Beer
Garden in the 2012 Hong Kong Dragon Boat Carnival organized by the Hong
Kong Tourism Board.

Our premium brands continue to be among our top performers, posting
significant volume and revenue increases over the same period in 2011.
Recognizing opportunities in the up-market segment, we capped the
year with the release of San Miguel Premium All-Malt, and exclusive
distributorship of all Kirin beer brands within the territory. As a result, we
now have a stronger and more diversified portfolio that has us well placed
to further dominate the higher end segment of the beer market.

Our market in Macau, while not yet as developed as Hong Kong's, continues
to show gains and improvement, posting double-digit growths in volumes
and revenues.
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SOUTH CHINA OPERATIONS

In South China, much of our efforts over the past year were devoted to
restructuring our going-to-market and distribution strategy; particularly
in our core markets of Dongguan and Shunde. While we have begun to
realize some improvements in our operations, and are confident that our
streamlining efforts will yield long-term, strategic benefits for the Group,
our operations in South China were still unable to turn a profit for 2012. This
has resulted in a more measured stance in terms of balancing selling and
profitability.

In 2011, the Group began the restructuring of its business model by
integrating the sales and distribution of the SMGB-managed Dragon brand
into the operations of Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited
("“GSMB"). As a result, the Group was able to maximize synergies; and,
together with other strategic and tactical initiatives, SMGB and GSMB were
able to reduce operating losses.

Our other strategic markets such as Guangzhou, East and West Guangdong
all registered total sales volume growths in 2012. This was largely the result
of GSMB's efforts to improve distribution in these markets, as well as the
introduction of enhancements to its product range, which included the
launch of a new look for the San Mig Light 330ml can, and release of the
new 500ml can pack-type, which has become very popular in Hong Kong.

Meanwhile, following the restructuring, SMGB is now focused on
manufacturing and tolling products for GSMB, as well as producing beer
products for export.

These initiatives, and particularly the restructuring efforts in our South China
markets will provide the Group with the platform to recover volumes and
further improve our profitability in the long term.

COMMUNITY RELATIONS AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) remains committed
to its parent company’s philosophy of “profit with honor”, and hopes to
underscore its commitment to good corporate citizenship through working
closely with our local communities to ensure a sustainable co-existence.

We are particularly committed to promoting responsible drinking within our
organization and among our stakeholders. We also continue to sponsor and
participate in various local events and contribute to charitable and non-
profit organizations.

The Company is also committed to protecting the environment and
communities within which we operate, chiefly through ensuring that
environmental standards set by the government are met or even exceeded.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As a company, we recognize that our people are our greatest resource, and
remain committed to upholding the best interests of our people through
equipping them with relevant knowledge and skills. We invest in training and
seminars; and hold mentorship, partnership and team-building workshops
to cultivate employee growth.

We also offer competitive remuneration packages commensurate with
industry standards, and provide competitive fringe benefits, including
comprehensive medical and insurance coverage, and retirement packages
for all our employees.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company continues to apply the principles of the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report contained in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2012,
except for the Code Provision A.4.1. Code Provision A.4.1 sets out that non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. At present, all of the non-executive directors of the Company are
not appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and re-election at the Annual General Meeting
under the Company’s Articles of Association.

FUTURE DIRECTION AND CHALLENGES

The following are the objectives of the Company for the year 2013:

. In Hong Kong, we will rationalize advertising and promotion spending
through the implementation of an internal system to ensure a more
effective and efficient use of resources. We will also restructure our
distribution system to aggressively grow in the channels where we
are weak and to maximize opportunities in untapped channels.

o In South China, we intend to turnaround the business through an
extensive expansion of the dealership network in our core markets,
while strengthening the brand equity of San Miguel and Dragon.
We will also continue to focus on margin improvement and cost
rationalization.
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FUTURE DIRECTION AND CHALLENGES (Continued)

Moving forward, the Company wishes to reiterate our full commitment to
maximizing shareholder value. We have appointed a new Managing Director,
and have a number of dynamic growth strategies that should enable us to
turn around the business and take full advantage of growth opportunities in
the market. Our new initiatives are geared towards enabling our beer brands
to become even more relevant. We also have various new systems and
procedures in place to facilitate efficient and effective cost management in
virtually all aspects of our operations.

In closing, we wish to express our heartfelt gratitude to our Board of
Directors for their unwavering guidance and support. Likewise our sincere

thanks goes out to our shareholders and customers for their continued
loyalty; and our employees for their dedication and hard work.

L

Ramon S. Ang
Chairman

8 February 2013
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To be presented at the Fiftieth Annual General Meeting of shareholders to
be held at Island Ballroom, Level 5, Island Shangri-La Hong Kong, Two Pacific
Place, Supreme Court Road, Central, Hong Kong on 19 April 2013 at 3:00 p.m.

The directors submit herewith their Annual Report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012.

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) is a company
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office and
principal place of business at 9/F, Citimark Building, 28 Yuen Shun Circuit,
Siu Lek Yuen, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Company are the manufacture and distribution
of bottled, canned and draught beers. The principal activities and other
particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.

The segment analysis of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for
the financial year is set out in note 3 to the financial statements.

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases attributable
to the major customers and suppliers, respectively, during the year is as
follows:

The largest customer BARF

Five largest customers in aggregate BRAAREFAE
The largest supplier BAHER

Five largest suppliers in aggregate BRARMHEEEER

One of the five largest suppliers and one of the five largest customers
was San Miguel Corporation (“SMC"), the ultimate holding company of the
Company, and its associates (collectively the “San Miguel Group”) in which
Mr. Ramon S. Ang, Mr. Carlos Antonio M. Berba, Mr. Teruyuki Daino, Mr.
Roberto N. Huang, Mr. Taro Matsunaga, Mr. Shobu Nishitani, Mr. Reynato S.
Puno and Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago have beneficial interests to the extent
that they either have equity interests in or are/were directors and/or officers
of the San Miguel Group.
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Percentage of the Group’s total
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27.38%
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Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, their associates, or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors owns
more than 5% of the Company'’s share capital) had any interest in these
major customers or suppliers.

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the state
of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out on
pages 62 to 137 of the financial statements.

Profit attributable to shareholders of HK$239,854,000 (2011: (loss of
HK$53,464,000)) has been transferred to reserves. Other movements in
reserves are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The directors have resolved that no final dividend be declared for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$Nil (2011: HK$Nil).

The Group acquired fixed assets in the amount of HK$11,731,000 (2011:
HK$9,982,000) during the year. Details of these acquisitions and other
movements in fixed assets are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 25(b) to the
financial statements. There were no movements during the year.

The directors of the Company as at the date of this Annual Report are set
out on page 2 of the Annual Report.

With the exception of Mr. Roberto N. Huang and Mr. Reynato S. Puno who
were appointed as directors during the year, and Mr. Ramon G. Torralba who
was appointed as director on 15 January 2013, all of the directors served as
such for the full year.

Mr. Thelmo Luis O. Cunanan Jr. and General Benjamin P. Defensor, Jr. resigned
as directors during 2012, and Mr. Peter K.Y. Tam resigned as director on
15 January 2013.
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Mr. Ramon S. Ang, Mr. Carlos Antonio M. Berba, Ms. Chan Wen Mee, May
(Michelle) and Mr. Teruyuki Daino retire by rotation in accordance with
Article 105 of the Company'’s Articles of Association at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Mr. Roberto N. Huang, Mr. Reynato S. Puno and Mr. Ramon G. Torralba who
were appointed as directors after the last Annual General Meeting, retire
from the offices of director in accordance with Article 96 of the Company’s
Articles of Association, and offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Mr. Taro Matsunaga has tendered his resignation as director of the Company
effective upon acceptance by the board. Mr. Takeshi Wada was nominated
to fill in the vacated office of Mr. Taro Matsunaga at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

The directors of the Company as of 31 December 2012 had the following
personal interests in the shares of the Company, its holding companies,
subsidiaries and other associated corporations (within the meaning of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ")) at that date as recorded in the
register of directors’ interests required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO:

(1)  INTERESTS IN ISSUED SHARES

Name
el

David K. P Li EHE

EERXELE HBERALE REXZEIERK
BRELLEDRBARFEBEIZE 10515R
T RASRITZBRRBAFAE LRAEER
BEREL -

= BRLA - Reynato S. Puno L4 Rt EE1H 4
ERE—RBRFRAFASGEEZERES - K
BARRMEBERECIEHRTE - REEETZ
REFEFAE LEREF -

KRB EERBI A AR R EE —BIER
EVFZEFSEMNEIENEK - Takeshi Wada
AR B DB AKX KRR SE £ 2otk - W 7E R
BT RERFREFIRE -

BREERRAFAS LERETCEFTLE
HEARBIEEAMNBRARRTARFHEE
M8 AR AR —FAK LT AL REE
(—ROEERERRIN) ZBRIBAH

R(BEHFRBAEGD) E32EREETE
EEmEMEsmE R ——F+ = A
—+t—HZARREERERFBFLALA - &
TIEAR) - B AR REMBEAR (TER
(BHERBEED)) BEBTRAZ ERER
T

(1) EBEBRTERARzER

Number of ordinary shares of
HK$0.50 each in the Company

AAREGREE
BRSO T2ERRZRNEE
Number of % of total
shares held issued shares
HERITREG
BR#E Y A=
500,000 0.13%
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(1

INTERESTS IN ISSUED SHARES (Continued)

Name

e

Ramon S. Ang

Carlos Antonio M. Berba
Roberto N. Huang
Reynato S. Puno
Carmelo L. Santiago

Name

e

Ramon S. Ang

Carlos Antonio M. Berba
Teruyuki Daino

Roberto N. Huang
Shobu Nishitani
Carmelo L. Santiago

*includes corporate interest
*BIR N AR

BEX
SRR
#BER
Reynato S. Puno
M=

FREX
SR
REFR=E
2ER
PIA
HEHE=

Q)]

ERITRA &R (8)

Number of common shares in
5 Philippine pesos each in
San Miguel Corporation
EHBAREREESFERERE

ZEBRZRAEE
Number of % of total
shares held issued shares
L2 BITRG
BEREE By oADLE
368,898,389 11.030000%
23,645 0.000687%
22,600 0.000686%
5,000 0.000145%
5,000 0.000145%

Number of common shares in
1 Philippine peso each in
San Miguel Brewery Inc.

EHEERLDREREE1FEERE

ZEBRRZROEE
Number of % of total
shares held* issued shares
HERITRAG
BFREE B oADLE
5,000 0.000032%
5,000 0.000032%
5,000 0.000032%
5,000 0.000032%
5,000 0.000032%
5,000 0.000032%
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(2)

INTERESTS IN UNDERLYING SHARES

Certain directors of the Company have been granted stock options
to subscribe for common shares in SMC under SMC's stock option
scheme. Particulars of stock options in SMC held by directors during

the year and as at 31 December 2012 are as follows:

Name

4

Common (par value
of 5 Philippine
pesos each):

Ramon S.Ang

Carlos Antonio
M. Berba

Roberto N. Huang

LB
(BREES

FRERR)

BEX

Date
granted

B

01/10/2004
01/10/2004
10/11/2005
10/11/2005
01/03/2007
01/03/2007
26/06/2008
25/06/2009

25/06/2009
16/12/2010

25/06/2009
16/12/2010

Exercise
period up to

Stock options in San Miguel Corporation
HBNT 2 ERE
Number
of options
outstanding
Exercise at the
price per beginning
option of the year

BIETERA

01/10/2012
01/10/2012
10/11/2013
10/11/2013
01/03/2015
01/03/2015
26/06/2016
26/06/2017

26/06/2017
16/12/2018

25/06/2017
16/12/2018

(2)

(Philippine pesos)

BROEE
(GFEEHR)

57.50
70.50
65.00
89.50
63.50
75.50
40.50
58.05

58.05
12033

58.05
12033

RAAEEKRD 2 s

ARRETESREENBRRZER
R BIERBREARBLENBRRZ
BEEERD REARMKR-T——F
Tt A=t BEEFHALENERT
Z BB

EYEARTE
ZERERE

266,854
114,366
204,654
136,436
993,386
662,258
765,603
587,556

28426
41,556

33432
50,793

Number of
options
granted/
(exercised)
during

the year

FRRE/
(Bf7f)
ZERERE

(266,354)
(114,366)

(28,426)

(33432)

Number of
options
outstanding
at the end
of the year

FRBHATE
ZRRERE

204,654
136,436
993,386
662,258
765,603
587,556

41,55

50,793

17
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(2)

INTERESTS IN UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

All interests in the share and underlying shares of the Company, its
holding companies, subsidiaries and other associated corporations
are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or associated
corporations a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the directors of the Company
or any of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age
has interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or other associated corporations, as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as adopted by
the Company.

(2)

RABBER G 2 s ()

ARRTE -~ BERAT - MEBARREM
BB A E P By R AR B () s
BUFR -

Bk EXCPrish - NAT] - AT
B AR E MR QR EARFEEM
RN B LA AR ERREEARLQA
SEM AR DS EREE -

RIBARRBIR (FEFHF MG M) 5352
EmRF 2 ELCH  SRE LM ARE
FETEFRZNRETRIFIAE AR
Az R EMFRRSN BREF
HEMBSHE 185A T2 F R EERF A
DA REAAERAR - HEBARK
HABE AR 2B - AR R &M
2 NORR ©
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The Company has been notified of the following interests in the Company’s
issued shares at 31 December 2012 amounting to 5% or more of the

ordinary shares in issue:

Substantial shareholders

FERR

San Miguel Corporation (note 1)

Kirin Holdings Company, Limited (note 1)

San Miguel Brewery Inc. (note 1)

San Miguel Brewing International Limited

(note 1)
Neptunia Corporation Limited (note 1)

Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (note 2)
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company Limited

(note 2) (as trustee of
The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust)

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited
(note 2) (as trustee of another
discretionary trust)

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation Limited
(note 2) (as trustee of The Li Ka-Shing

Unity Discretionary Trust)

Li Ka-Shing (note 2)

AR BT -

EhKRRE (M)
BEEER g (HTRE1)
ENEBEmAE (1)
EHEEERARAR (M)

SmMBRAR (FEE1)

RIEX (£8) BRATF (Mi5r2)

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company
Limited (FfisE2) (1EA&
The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust
ZAEFEA)

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp
Limited (Fi5E2) (1E/
S EREFRZETEA)

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation
Limited (FfisE2) (1E&
The Li Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary
Trust Z{55EA)

FaH (fEE2)

R-ZE——F+-A=+—H KXQAREEXT
FMEAR R BB BT EBIR Z 5% A EHAR

Ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each

BREEBE0.50 T2 ZERR MG
Number of

ordinary % of total
shares held issued shares
LB RITRG
FrisEEREE HWECHDL
245,720,800 65.78%
245,720,800 65.78%
245,720,800 65.78%
245,720,800 65.78%
245,720,800 65.78%
23,703,000 6.34%
23,703,000 6.34%
23,703,000 6.34%
23,703,000 6.34%
23,703,000 6.34%
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Notes:

SMC, Kirin Holdings Company, Limited (“Kirin“), San Miguel Brewery Inc.
(“SMB") and San Miguel Brewing International Limited (“SMBIL") are all
deemed to hold the above disclosed interest indirectly through Neptunia
Corporation Limited (“Neptunia”) in the Company because each of SMC
and Kirin holds more than one third of the voting power of SMB. SMB has a
controlling interest in SMBIL and SMBIL has a controlling interest in Neptunia.

Mr. Li Ka-Shing is the settlor of each of The Li Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary
Trust (“DT1") and another discretionary trust (“DT2"). Each of Li Ka-Shing
Unity Trustee Corporation Limited (“TDT1", which is the trustee of DT1) and
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited (“TDT2", which is the trustee of DT2) holds
units in The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust (“UT1") but is not entitled to any interest
or share in any particular property comprising the trust assets of the said
unit trusts. The discretionary beneficiaries of each of DT1 and DT2 are, inter
alia, Mr. Li Tzar Kuoi, Victor, his wife and children, and Mr. Li Tzar Kai, Richard.
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company Limited (“TUT1") as trustee of UT1,
together with certain companies which TUT1 as trustee of UT1 is entitled to
exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at
their general meetings, hold more than one-third of the issued share capital
of Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited ("CKH"). CKH is entitled to exercise or
control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at the general
meetings of Conroy Assets Limited and Hamstar Profits Limited.

The entire issued share capital of each of TUT1, TDT1 and TDT2 are owned
by Li Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited (“Unity Holdco"). Mr. Li Ka- Shing and
Mr. Li Tzar Kuoi, Victor are respectively interested in one-third and two-third
of the entire issued share capital of Unity Holdco. TUT1 is interested in the
shares of CKH by reason only of its obligation and power to hold interests
in those shares in its ordinary course of business as trustee and, when
performing its function as trustee, exercises its power to hold interests in the
shares of CKH independently without any reference to Unity Holdco or any of
Mr. Li Ka-Shing and Mr. Li Tzar Kuoi, Victor as a holder of the shares of Unity
Holdco as aforesaid.

By virtue of the SFO, each of Mr. Li Ka-Shing (being the settlor and may being
regarded as a founder of each of DT1 and DT2 for the purpose of the SFO),
TUT1, TDT1, TDT2, and CKH is deemed to be interested in the 23,703,000
shares of the Company of which 13,624,600 shares are held by Conroy
Assets Limited and 10,078,400 shares are held by Hamstar Profits Limited.

All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests required to be recorded in
the register kept under Section 336 of the SFO have been notified to the
Company.

BT -

(M

@

MRS B AR R BHE R AR g4 ([
Bl 2EREENEERAR ([ E£0EE
W) =02 — A L2 IRERE - £ N
BENSEEBER AR ([ 0RHEEE )
Z% P 2 I A 0 B B B S A B TR

AR ([SZsmA)) 2 - BUtENR
INE) AR - A R R K A 0 MR B
W ARREBIIRNFARARR 2w
A Lk EE 2 s o

2584 5 The Li Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary
Tust([DT1)) 5 —=2#1Est ([D12)) 28 E
% F A e LiKa-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation
Limited ([TDT1) - ADT1 2 15 5t A) KliKa
Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited ([TDT2] » &DT22
{ZFEA) & BEEAZET The Ui Ka-Shing Unity Trust
(Tuml) Efz - Bt E 2R EE BN ZEN
SRt HAEFEEEYET ARG E MR mEik
3 o DT1 K DT2,2 Al ge2 e A BIEZ2ER 5T A
HEFHETL RFEWSLAE - LKasShing
Unity Trustee Company Limited ([TUT11) BA UT1
EREA S MBS TRATUTTLAUT 1*%/\2%
iz %o ] Ef—fﬂx%ﬁAifﬂfﬂ HITE=92
—AERERZARARFARIESE (5F)
BRR 7 (FE,J) E?*fﬁﬁ&ﬁf"z %t
ez o ;RE P Conroy Assets Limited 2 Hamstar
Profits L|m|ted BHAEEREARNE LT ST
=52 —s A LIRS -

TUT1 - TDT1 ~ RIDT2 2 & HE 1T A A
Li Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited ([ Unity
Holdcol) B - FRlcE R EEFLES
B %A Unity Holdco=n 2 —R=H2 =%
BEHITRA - TUTMEARE 2RO ER
RABTEEREIAZEEREN IS
—PRIEFER - WA MEFEA S D BILITE
HEARER M &z 2 #7782 R Unity
Holdco gk _t X Ffr it 2 Unity Holdco B {5 4% &
AFBBEERTRELEERATAER -

BIECES LBEEG) TEHLE (B
A DT EDRRZHER T ALK ES L
BEEAmME A RZMEBERT IR
A)TUT1~TDT1 - TD2 ] R B 5 & A
AR A ¥ A 2N A 723,703,000 A% 2 B% 19 1
% H B 8 $E A Conroy Assets Limited #5
A 213,624,600 % B% 1% & B Hamstar Profits
Limited $74 2 10,078,400 &A1) o

FRFFBERRR 2B ESE RIFR

B Latsh -

I 8 H b i 2 B IR <E§%&Hﬂf1

1) % 336 R E e lr < BRefitBAA R
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We continue to be the No. 1 beer
company in Hong Kong, largely due

to the dominance of our core brands.
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Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors of the Company as at the date of this
Annual Report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Pursuant to an agreement dated 12 June 1963, Neptunia provides technical
and advisory services to the Company and may be paid a General
Managers’ commission. Mr. Ramon S. Ang, Mr. Carlos Antonio M. Berba,
Mr. Teruyuki Daino, Mr. Roberto N. Huang, Mr. Taro Matsunaga, Mr. Shobu
Nishitani, Mr. Reynato S. Puno and Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago are interested
parties to this contract to the extent that they either have equity interests in
or are directors and/or officers of SMB, SMBIL and SMC, the ultimate holding
company of Neptunia. General Managers’ commission has not been paid by
the Company or charged by Neptunia since the 1995 financial year.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance to which the Company,
or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or associated corporations
was a party, and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

(1) TRADE-RELATED CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP

Purchase from/sale to the San Miguel Group

In order to comply with the Listing Rules, the Company entered
into an agreement with SMC, the ultimate holding company of
the Company, on 15 October 2010 (the Agreement) with a view to
renewing the agreement to carry out the trade-related continuing
connected transactions from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2013
under the same terms and conditions as those under the agreement
entered into by SMC and the Company dated 6 December 2007 and
11 May 2009 in respect of such trade-related continuing connected
transactions.

The Agreement, including the trade-related continuing connected
transactions and the caps set for such transactions, was approved
by independent shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting
of the Company held on 26 November 2010.

ARBIMERERZRFAER AR R R ESH
HoRAFHREH  ARF-BEREEBME
RZMBRARES AR (T EHHRAD

BEZRBFRE -

BE—NANZFENA+T-BFI 23 1%
FIrA AR AR AR SR BRI AR 7% + o A] W ER 48
BN S - Hh - BEEE - SIEREAE -
REFEBELE FRREE  KCRBBIE
TAME A - Reynato S. Puno e 4 Rt
SRR S EER - AR ERR & S
2 BAEER AR ENB AR Z R - AL
NEHER - AN REER RENBRRCZES
%/ SmBAE - R A P RS o
B—NANAFVRFEEE  AREwES 48
ICIBEN S - TS0 B IR M) AR R B AR A 38
B -

B EXAREESN - NAT - R EMEERA
A~ B AR REERRBMENAFELER
KERNEAKHETLBARBEEHEEARE
BIBERK -

(1) EBREHKEEZRRNGERERS

KA SHETENEE

REE MR ARAREARRZE&K
BRIERAG ENERF R2E—-F
FTATRABAL-H#E ([H&E
£ WMEFBHER —F——F—A—
HE-T—=F+-A=+—H#ETH
BEEABNBERERS  AhE 2%
REGHFER-_FTLF+-ARAR
—TENFRA T HAARRELEN
BARRI BB FABNRERER
ZH AR

hHEE (BRAESERNSERER
ZRMEERZ ER) ER-_F—FF
T—AZHRERARBHBIRE IR
BB IR AL o
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(1

TRADE-RELATED CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
(Continued)

Purchase from/sale to the San Miguel Group (Continued)

Pursuant to the Agreement, the Group entered into the following
trade-related continuing connected transactions during the year.

continuing connected transactions FEREXS

Purchase of packaging materials by
the Group from the San Miguel Group

Purchase of packaged beer by the Group
from the San Miguel Group

AEERENEEHEED S
MIEE SRR hER

Sales of packaged beer and non-alcoholic
beverage products by the Group
to the San Miguel Group, provided
that such sales or distribution of
packaged beer shall not be carried
out in the Philippines, unless through
SMB

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these connected transactions and confirmed that such
transactions were:

— entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

— conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if there are
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and

— in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company, KPMG, have confirmed in a letter to
the Board that nothing has come to their attention that caused
them to believe that the Continuing Connected Transactions
in the 2012 financial year (i) had not been approved by the
Board of the Company, (ii) were not entered into in all material
respects in accordance with the relevant agreement governing
such transactions, (iii) had exceeded the cap disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 18 October 2010 and in the
circular to shareholders dated 8 November 2010, and (iv) were not,
in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group.

AEERENEEREDBER

ZEM TR IEFREHE
(AN B RIHERIN)

Q)]

AEBRENSEBE R

Lo

2k L]

— ERABWMEAGTRER
e dAN

RENKEEZRENFRBEERS
(%)

RBE $HETELEE (B)
RAFERA » REBEREHZEETIA

THESBEMNSERERS -
2012 2011
—F-=F i
Actual Cap
B LBR
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
31,740 54,000
4,665 5,300
93,144 103,000

RARVENIFNTE S B LERZF
Ry

— RREBERFBIEPET

—  RIEFRBRGRE UREHR

R 5 LR A E PR DR E
EEERR  RTERAKER
TEUR= B IE =%
ZHERGEI - &

HRER
SRATHAER - LHARAF
fRER 7 FERE R 2 o

ARRZZBMESHRETMBBME
HHEFSER  REWEBRR IS
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BIBREZERG 2 EBHHET
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+—ANBZBERERBRAEEZ E
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KEE 2 EEBBURHETT ©
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(2)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS

Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited (“GSMB") is
an equity joint venture formed between San Miguel (Guangdong)
Limited (“SMG") and Guangzhou Brewery (“GB") and is held as to 70%
by SMG and as to 30% by GB. SMG is a 92.989%-owned subsidiary
of the Company and GB is a connected person of the Company
by virtue of its substantial shareholding in GSMB. To facilitate the
business operations of GSMB, San Miguel International Limited
("SMIL") (@ member of the San Miguel Group) and GB have each
granted GSMB a licence to use their respective trademarks upon
establishment of GSMB pursuant to the SMIL Trademark Licensing
Agreement and the GB Trademark Licensing Agreement, respectively.

Apart from the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement, the Group
has also entered into other licence agreements with certain other
members of the San Miguel Group: (i) the Neptunia Sub-licence
Agreement entered into between the Company and Neptunia (an
indirect subsidiary of SMC) and (ii) the SMBIL Sub-licence Agreement
entered into between SMGB and SMBIL (an indirect subsidiary of
SMC).

The directors (including the non-executive directors) considered
that the terms of the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement, the
Neptunia Sub-license Agreement, the SMBIL Sub-license Agreement
(collectively, the “San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements”) and
the GB Trademark Licensing Agreement, including their respective
tenures which are for more than three years, are on normal
commercial terms, fair and reasonable, and that the transactions
contemplated under such agreements are in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders as a whole.

The transactions under the San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements
(which have been aggregated as a single transaction for purposes
of the Listing Rules) and the GB Trademark Licensing Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions under Rule 14A.34(1)
of the Listing Rules. The annual royalties payable by the Group under
each of () the San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements and (i) the
GB Trademark Licensing Agreement shall be less than HK$10 million
for the year ended 31 December 2007 and each of the financial
years during the remaining term of the relevant licence/sub-
licence agreements. Based on this proposed cap, the transactions
under each of the (i) San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements and
(i) the GB Trademark Licensing Agreement are only subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements and are exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement.

(2)

BEEMNEEREREDEEEBIST
BEZISEBERS
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(2)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS (Continued)

An announcement was made by the Company on 19 September
2007 in this respect.

In relation to the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement and the
Neptunia Sub-licence Agreement, as per the payment instructions
of SMC dated 18 December 2000, all royalties receivable from GSMB
and the Company have been assigned and transferred to SMBIL
effective 1 January 2000 until further notice.

On 1 April 2010, a Deed of Assignment was entered into between
SMIL, SMBIL and GSMB pursuant to which SMIL agreed to assign,
transfer and convey in favour of SMBIL all of SMIL's rights, title and
interest over the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement. Both SMBIL
and GSMB consented to such assignment pursuant to the Deed of
Assignment.

After the Assignment, SMBIL shall be the licensor of the trademarks
licensed to GSMB under the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement.
All other terms of the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement as
assigned to SMBIL remain unchanged. The transaction contemplated
under the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement as assigned to
SMBIL continues to constitute a continuing connected transaction
for the Company under the Listing Rules.

An announcement was made by the Company on 1 April 2010 in this
respect.

The amount of royalties paid to GB and the San Miguel Group for the
year ended 31 December 2012 were HK$2,089,000 and HK$147,000
respectively (2011: HK$2,049,000 and HK$1,490,000).

(2)
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(2)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS (Continued)

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these connected transactions and confirmed that such
transactions were:

— entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

— conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if there are
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and

— in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company, KPMG, have confirmed in a letter to
the Board that nothing has come to their attention that caused
them to believe that the Continuing Connected Transactions
in the 2012 financial year (i) had not been approved by the
Board of the Company, (i) were not entered into in all material
respects in accordance with the relevant agreement governing
such transactions, (iii) had exceeded the cap disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 19 September 2007, and (iv)
were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group.

In anticipation of the expiration of the Neptunia Sub-licence
Agreement on 1 January 2013, an Extension Letter was signed by
Neptunia and by the Company on 8 November 2012 to extend
the term of the Neptunia Sub-licence Agreement for one year
from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013 at nil consideration.
Save for such extension, all other terms remain unchanged. An
announcement was made by the Company on 8 November 2012 in
this respect.
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(3)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP RELATING TO THE USE OF
PIPELINE

SMGB is principally engaged in the production and sale of beer
products in the PRC and has its brewery facilities located at
Shunde District, Foshan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC. San
Miguel (Guangdong) Foods and Beverages Co., Ltd. (“SMGFB"), an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of SMC, is principally engaged
in the production and marketing of non-alcoholic beverages and
has its production facilities located at Shunde District, Foshan City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC, near the brewing facilities of SMGB.

SMGB uses its waste water discharge pipeline (the "Pipeline”)
from its production facilities to discharge waste water and has
connected the Pipeline to the waste water pipeline system of the
Longjiang waste water treatment plant for waste water treatment.
As the production facilities of SMGFB are also close to the SMGB's
facilities, SMGB has agreed to allow SMGFB to use the Pipeline for
the discharge of SMGFB's production waste water to the Longjiang
waste water treatment plant for waste water treatment.

0On 26 November 2009, SMGB and SMGFB entered into an agreement
(the "Agreement to Use Pipeline”) pursuant to which SMGB agreed
to grant SMGFB a non-exclusive right to use the Pipeline for the
discharge of waste water from SMGFB's production facilities to
Longjiang waste water treatment plant for waste water treatment,
for a term of 3 years from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2012.

During the term of the Agreement to Use Pipeline, SMGFB shall
pay SMGB a fee in an aggregate sum of RMB7,800,000, the amount
of which is payable quarterly for three years (i.e. RMB650,000 per
quarter x 12 instalments).

The fees under the Agreement to Use Pipeline are agreed between
SMGB and SMGFB after arm’s length negotiation mainly with
reference to (i) the construction and maintenance costs of the
Pipeline and the estimated volume of waste water to be discharged
by the production facilities of SMGFB to the Pipeline (the volume of
which are estimated based on the production volume of SMGFB)
which shall not have any material impact on the repair and
maintenance costs of the Pipeline that may be incurred by SMGB
and (i) the term of the Agreement to Use Pipeline of three years.
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(3)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP RELATING TO THE USE OF
PIPELINE (Continued)

The directors have taken into account the capacity that the Pipeline
can accommodate and the estimated volume of waste water to
be discharged by SMGFB through the Pipeline (with reference to
the production volume of SMGFB) and consider that SMGFB's use
of the Pipeline to discharge SMGFB's production waste water is
not expected to result in any significant increase in the costs of
the Group (i.e. the repair and maintenance costs of the Pipeline
which may be incurred by SMGB) and is not expected to adversely
affect the discharge of SMGB's own waste water from its facilities
through the Pipeline. On the other hand the transactions under the
Agreement to Use Pipeline shall generate additional income and
cash flow to the Group.

Transactions contemplated under the Agreement to Use Pipeline
constitute Continuing Connected Transactions for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Based on the consideration,
as the applicable percentage ratios for the Continuing Connected
Transactions on an annual basis are more than 0.1% but are less
than 2.5% and the annual consideration shall be less than HK$10
million for each of the three years ending 31 December 2012, the
Continuing Connected Transactions shall only be subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements as set out in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules but shall be exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement pursuant to Rule 14A.34 of the
Listing Rules.

An announcement was made by the Company on 9 December 2009
in this respect.

The amount of fee received from SMGFB for the year ended 31
December 2012 was HK$3,099,000 (2011:HK$3,134,000).
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(3)

(4)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP RELATING TO THE USE OF
PIPELINE (Continued)

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these connected transactions and confirmed that such
transactions were:

— entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

— conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if there are
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and

— in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company, KPMG, have confirmed in a letter to
the Board that nothing has come to their attention that caused
them to believe that the Continuing Connected Transactions in the
2012 financial year (i) had not been approved by the Board of the
Company, and (i) were not entered into in all material respects
in accordance with the relevant agreement governing such
transactions, and (iv) were not, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group.

OTHER CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE
SAN MIGUEL GROUP

The Group purchased brewing materials from the San Miguel Group
during the year, which amounted to HK$75,000 (2011: HK$24,000).
These transactions are exempt from all the reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements according to
the Listing Rules Chapter 14A.31(2), De minimis transactions.
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The Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong have sponsored a
non-contributory defined benefit scheme, The San Miguel Brewery Hong
Kong Limited Retirement Fund (the “Fund”), which covers local permanent
employees, and was registered in September 1995 under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance. The Fund’s assets are held in trust and
administered by a trustee. The members’ benefits are determined based
on the employees’ final remuneration and length of service. Contributions
to the Fund are made in accordance with the recommendations of
independent actuaries who value the retirement scheme at regular
intervals, usually triennially.

The Fund was granted exemption from the Mandatory Provident Fund
("MPF") regulations by the MPF Scheme Authority on 24 July 2000, following
modifications to the Fund benefits which comply with MPF regulations.

The latest actuarial assessment of the Fund was carried out as at 1 January
2013 and the results were as follows:

Q) The actuary of the Fund is Mr. J. Yip, Fellow of the Society of
Actuaries. In the actuarial valuation, the attained age method
was used. Other major assumptions used in the valuation were:
long-term salary escalation of 4% per annum; mortality rates under
the 2011 Hong Kong Life Tables; normal retirement age of 60 years,
and early retirement rates allowed between the ages 55 to 60 years.

2) The unaudited market value of the Fund assets was HK$66,307,000
as at 1 January 2013.

(3) The minimum level of funding as recommended by the actuary of
the Fund was 21.2% of salary for 2013, 2014 and 2015.

(4) The solvency deficit was HK$9,595,000, i.e. the obligation under the
Fund was 87% covered by the Fund's assets, at 1 January 2013.

Particulars of the employee retirement plans of the Company and the Group
are set out in note 23 to the financial statements.

The Group's working capital at 31 December 2012 was net current assets of
HK$34,953,000 compared with net current liabilities of HK$73,729,000 as at
31 December 2011.

The Group’s cash and bank deposits (excluding pledged deposits) as at
31 December 2012 were HK$100,904,000 (2011: HK$45,586,000) and are
sufficient to fund working capital requirements and capital expenditure in
2013.
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The Group has short term credit facilities related to bank loan of HK$Nil (2011:
HK$338,000,000) of which HKS$Nil (2011: HK$313,734,000) had been utilised
as at 31 December 2012.

Total borrowings at 31 December 2012 for the Company and for the Group
were HK$Nil (2011: HK$Nil) and HK$231,805,000 (2011: HK$313,734,000),
respectively.

Particulars of bank loans of the Company and the Group as at 31 December
2012 are set out in note 20 to the financial statements.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 141 of the Annual Report.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set
out in the Corporate Governance section on pages 37 to 50 of the Annual
Report.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive directors
to be independent.
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KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A 25 @& E SIEFT T % &R W IEE (T -
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company isto BB ESH S SEATIEEER QD BTIZE

be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. B RBREEREERERET RS LR -
By order of the board EEEE

L L

Ramon S. Ang FE
Chairman BEX
Hong Kong, 8 February 2013 B ZZ—=F"ANH
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San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) is committed
to maintaining statutory and regulatory standards and adherence to
the principles of corporate governance emphasising transparency,
independence, accountability, responsibility and fairess. The board and the
senior management of the Company ensure that effective self-regulatory
practices exist to protect the interests of the shareholders of the Company.
These include a board comprising high calibre members, board committees
and effective internal systems and controls.

The Company has applied the principles set out in the former Code on
Corporate Governance Practices during the period from 1 January 2012 to
31 March 2012 and the new Corporate Governance Code during the period
from April 2012 to 31 December 2012 as contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), save for the deviation discussed below:

o All of the non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific
term (Code Provision A.4.1) but are subject to retirement by rotation
once every three years and re-election at the annual general
meeting under the Company’s Articles of Association.

The following sections set out the principles in the Code as they have been
applied by the Company, including any deviation therefrom, for the year
under review.

As at 31 December 2012, the Board comprised of twelve Directors (one
executive director, who is the managing director, seven non-executive
directors and four independent non-executive directors) who possess the
skills, experience and expertise either in the same industry or relevant
to the management of the business of the Group. The biographies of the
directors are set out from pages 52 to 57 of this report under the “Directors
and Management Executives” section. There is no financial, business, family
or other material or relevant relationship among members of the board.

The management and control of the business of the Company is vested
in its board. It is the duty of the board to create value to the shareholders
of the Company, establish the Company's strategic direction, set the
Company'’s objectives and plan in accordance therewith, and provide
leadership and ensure availability of resources in the attainment of such
objectives. The board is bound to manage the Company in a responsible and
effective manner, and therefore every director ensures that he carries out
his duty in good faith and in compliance with the standards of applicable
laws and regulations, and acts in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.
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The board and the executive management have clearly defined
responsibilities under various internal control and checks-and-balance
mechanisms. The board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the
executive management of the Company. These responsibilities include:
implementation of the decisions of the board and organisation and
direction of the day-to-day operation and management of the Company in
accordance with the management strategies and plans approved by the
board; preparation and monitoring of annual production plans and operating
budget; and control, supervision and monitoring of capital, technical and
human resources.

The board held four meetings during the year under review. The chief
finance officer and company secretary attended all the scheduled board
meetings to report matters arising from corporate governance, risk
management, statutory compliance, accounting and finance, and kept
detailed minutes of each meeting, which are available for all directors. At
the meeting, the directors discussed and formulated overall strategies for
the Company, monitored financial performance and discussed the annual
and interim results, as well as other significant matters. Daily operational
matters are delegated to management.

At least 14 days of notice of all board meetings was given to all directors,
and all directors were given the opportunity to include matters for
discussion in the agenda. An agenda and accompanying board papers are
sent in full to all directors at least 3 days before every board meeting.

The number of board meetings and committee meetings attended by each
director during the year under review is set out in the following table. Figure
in brackets indicates maximum number of meetings in the period in which
the individual was a board member or board committee member (as the
case may be).
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Reynato S. Puno Reynato S.Puno (1) 10
Adrian M. Li (Alternate to David K P L) IRE (FEE EHEE) 3
Executive director #iiEs
Peter K.Y. Tam (Managing Director) E2F (4728) 0 4
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The chairman of the board is Mr. Ramon S. Ang. The chief executive officer
(or managing director, in the case of the Company) is Mr. Ramon G. Torralba
who was appointed as executive director and managing director of the
Company effective from 15 January 2013 after Mr. Peter K. Y. Tam, resigned
as executive director and managing director of the Company effective
from 15 January 2013. The chairman’s and the managing director’s roles
are clearly defined to ensure their independence, accountability and
responsibility.

The chairman takes the lead in formulating overall strategies and policies
of the Company, ensures the effective performance by the board of
its functions, including compliance with good corporate governance
practices; and encourages and facilitates active contribution of directors
in board activities and constructive relations between executive and non-
executive directors. The chairman also ensures effective communication
with shareholders of the Company and receipt by the directors of adequate
and complete information. The role of deputy chairman is carried out by
Mr. Carlos Antonio M. Berba.

The managing director, supported by other board members and the senior
management, is responsible for managing the day-to-day business of the
Company. He is also accountable to the board for the implementation of
the Company’s overall strategies, and coordination of overall business
operations.

As at the date of this report, the board consists of eleven non-executive
directors and one executive director. Four of the non-executive directors are
independent. Further details of the composition of the board can be found
in the section entitled “The Board” of this report.

All of the non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific term, but
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings. Under the Company's Articles of Association, one-third of the
directors, including the non-executive directors, are subject to retirement,
rotation and re-election at each annual general meeting.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Non-executive directors are expected to participate in the activities of the
board, particularly in the establishment of a selection process to ensure a
mix of competent directors and officers; adoption of a system of internal
checks and balances; scrutiny of the Company’s performance in achieving
agreed corporate goals and objectives; and ensuring that the exercise
of board authority is within the powers conferred to the board under its
Articles of Association, by-laws and applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive directors of the Company are highly skilled
professionals with a broad range of expertise and experience in the fields of
accounting, finance and business. Their skills, expertise and number in the
board ensure that strong independent views and judgement are brought in
the board's deliberations and that such views and judgement carry weight
in the board’s decision-making process. Their presence and participation
also enable the board to maintain high standards of compliance in financial
and other mandatory reporting requirements, and provide adequate checks
and balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the Company
and the Company.

Each independent non-executive director gives the Company an annual
confirmation of his independence. The Company considers such directors
to be independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

Each director, upon reasonable request, is given access to independent
professional advice in circumstances he may deem appropriate and
necessary for the discharge of his duties to the Company;, at the expense of
the Company.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing all information
and representations contained in the financial statements of the Company
for the year under review. The directors consider that the financial
statements have been prepared in conformity with the generally accepted
accounting standards in Hong Kong, and reflect amounts that are based on
the best estimates and reasonable, informed and prudent judgment of the
board and management with an appropriate consideration to materiality.
As at 31 December 2012, the directors, having made appropriate enquiries,
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
which may cast significant doubt upon the Company'’s ability to continue
as a going concern. Accordingly, the directors have prepared the financial
statements of the Company on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to financial
reporting are set out in the section of “Independent Auditor’s Report” on
pages 138 to 139.
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The board has overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective
internal control systems to safeguard the Company’s assets and
shareholders’ interests, as well as for reviewing the effectiveness of these
systems.

The board has conducted a review of the Company’s internal control
systems for the year ended 31 December 2012, including financial,
operational and compliance control and risk management functions and
assessed the effectiveness of internal control by considering reviews
performed by the audit committee, executive management, external advisor
and internal auditors.

The board is responsible for performing the duties on corporate governance
functions set out below:

(1) developing and reviewing the Company'’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations to the board;

() reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors;
and

(5) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.
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To assist the directors in the discharge of their duties, the Company
provides every newly appointed director with a comprehensive induction
program on the first occasion of his appointment, where such directors are
provided with information on the Company’s organization and business; the
membership, duties and responsibilities of the board, board committees
and senior management; corporate governance practices and procedures;
and latest financial information on the operations of the Company. Such
information shall be supplemented with visits to the Company’s key plant
sites and meetings with key senior executives.

Throughout their tenure, the directors shall be provided with updates on the
business of the Company, latest developments of the Listing Rules and other
applicable legal and regulatory requirements, corporate social responsibility
matters and other changes affecting the Company.

According to the Code A.6.5, all directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed and
relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging and funding
suitable training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions
and duties of the directors.

The directors confirm that they have complied with the Code on directors’
training. The Company had received from each of the directors the
confirmations on taking continuous professional training.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

For the year under review, the audit committee is composed of three
independent non-executive directors: Mr. Ng Wai Sun, Mr. Carmelo L.
Santiago and Dr. the Hon. Sir David K. P. Li, who acts as chairman of the
committee. The audit committee met two times in 2012 with full minutes
kept by the company secretary. Individual attendance of each committee
member at these meetings is shown in the table presented above.

Under its terms of reference, the audit committee shall assist the board
in fulfilling its corporate governance and oversight responsibilities in
relation to financial reporting, internal control structure, risk management
systems and internal and external audit functions. The audit committee is
further authorised by the board to investigate any activity within its terms
of reference, and is tasked with recommending to the board appropriate
actions emanating from such investigations. The audit committee has
unrestricted access to personnel, records, internal and external auditors,
risk assessment and assurance and senior management, as may be
appropriate in the discharge of its functions.

In 2012, the audit committee discharged its responsibilities by:

Q) making recommendations to the board on the reappointment of
the external auditor and approval of the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor;

2 monitoring the external auditor's independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standard, and discussing with the external auditor the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations;

3) implementing the Company’s policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services,

(4) reviewing, and monitoring the integrity of, the financial statements of
the Company and the Company’s annual and interim reports and the
auditors’ report to ensure that the information presents a true and
balanced assessment of the Company'’s financial position;

(5) reviewing the Company'’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems to ensure that management has discharged
its duty to have an effective internal control system;

(6) coordinating with the internal auditors from San Miguel Corporation
to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and has appropriate standing within the Company;

7) reviewing the Company's financial and accounting policies and
practices,
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

(8) reviewing the external auditor's management letter, material queries
raised by the external auditor to the management in respect of the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and the
management’s response to such queries; and

9) reporting to the board on the matters set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices on the audit committee.

The audit committee is authorised by the board to obtain external legal or
other independent professional advice and to secure the attendance of
outsiders with relevant experience and expertise if it considers necessary
in the performance of its functions. The audit committee is provided with
sufficient resources by the Company to discharge its duties. The audit
committee’s specific terms of reference are available on request to any
shareholders of the Company and are posted on the Company’s website,
info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

During the year under review, the total fee in respect of audit and non-audit
services (mainly tax review and corporate governance review) provided
to the Company and its subsidiaries by external auditors amounted
to HK$3,657,000 (2011: HK$3,438,000) and HK$86,000 (2011: HK$Nil),
respectively.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee is composed of three independent non-
executive directors, namely, Dr. the Hon. Sir David K.P. Li, Mr. Ng Wai Sun and
Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago and two non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Carlos
Antonio M. Berba and Mr. Roberto N. Huang. The remuneration committee
is chaired by an independent non-executive director, Mr. Ng Wai Sun. The
remuneration committee met twice in 2012 with full minutes kept by the
company secretary. Individual attendance of each committee member at
these meetings is shown in the table presented above.

The primary role of the remuneration committee under its terms of
reference is to support and advise the board in fulfilling the board’s
responsibility to the shareholders of the Company to:
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

(M establish coherent remuneration policies and practices that will be
observed and enable the Company to attract and retain top caliber
executives and directors,

2) fairly and responsibly reward executives based on their performance
and the performance of the Company, and the general pay

environment; and

(3) comply with the Code Provisions on remuneration of directors,

mainly by:
o determining executive and director remuneration policy;,
o determining the remuneration of executive directors upon

consultation with the chairman or managing director
regarding their proposals for such remuneration;

o reviewing and approving the remuneration of the executives
who directly report to the managing director, and as
appropriate, other senior management; and

o reviewing and approving all equity based plans.

The remuneration committee has the right to seek any information it
considers necessary to fulfil its duties, which includes the right to obtain
appropriate external advice at the Company’s expense, and is provided
with sufficient resources by the Company to discharge its duties. The
remuneration committee’s specific terms of reference are available on
request to any shareholders of the Company and are posted on the
Company'’s website, info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

During the year under review, the committee reviewed the remuneration
package of Managing Director and key senior executives. As recommended,
no director fee would be paid for the year 2012.

Details of the remuneration of directors and senior management for the
year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in notes 8 and 28(c) to the
financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

In compliance with the new Code, with effect from 1 April 2012, a
nomination committee was established by the Board on 26 March 2012. The
nomination committee is composed of one non-executive director, namely
Mr. Teruyuki Daino and four independent non-executive directors: Dr. the
Hon. Sir David K. P. Li, Mr. Ng Wai Sun, Mr. Reynato S. Puno and Mr. Carmelo L.
Santiago. The nomination committee is chaired by Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago.
The nomination committee met two times in 2012 with full minutes kept by
the company secretary. Individual attendance of each committee member
at these meetings is shown in the table presented above.

Terms of reference of the nomination committee (Code provision A.5.1)
were uploaded to the Company’s and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited's websites on 27 April 2012 after the formation of the nomination
committee.

Under its terms of reference, proceedings and meetings of the committee
will be governed by the provisions of the Articles for regulating the
proceedings and meetings and of the board of the Company in so far as
they are applicable and not inconsistent with these Terms of Reference. The
primary purpose of the committee is to support and advise the board in
fulfilling their responsibilities to shareholders in ensuring that the board is
comprised of individuals who are best able to discharge the responsibilities
of directors having regard to the law and the highest standards of
governance by:

(1 assessing the skills required on the board;

2) from time to time assessing the extent to which the required skills
are represented on the board;

(3) establishing process for the review of the performance of individual
directors and the board as a whole;

(4) establishing process for the identification of suitable candidates for
appointment to the board; and

(5) having oversight of matters relating to corporate governance
bringing any issues to the attention of the board.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The nomination committee has the following responsibilities:

(1 review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the board on a regular basis and
make recommendations to the board regarding any proposed
changes;

2) identify individuals suitably qualified to become board members and
select or make recommendations to the board on the selection of,
individuals nominated for directorships;

©) assess the independence of independent non-executive directors;

(4) make recommendations to the board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors in particular the chairman and the chief
executive officer,

(5) have oversight of all matters relating to corporate governance; and

(6) being entitled to employ, at the Company’s expense, the services of
such advisers as it deems necessary to fulfil its responsibilities.

The nomination committee has the right to seek any information it
considers necessary to fulfil its duties, which includes the right to obtain
appropriate external advice at the Company’s expense, and is provided with
sufficient resources by the Company to discharge its duties. The nomination
committee’s specific terms of reference are available on request to any
shareholders of the Company and are posted on the Company’s website,
info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for securities transactions
and dealings (the “Code of Conduct”) based on the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules. The terms of the Code of Conduct are no less exacting
than the standards in the Model Code, and the Code of Conduct applies to
all the relevant persons as defined in the Code, including the directors of
the Company, any employee of the Company;, or a director or employee of a
subsidiary or holding company of the Company who, because of such office
or employment, are likely to be in possession of unpublished price sensitive
information in relation to the Company or its securities.
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Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors of the Company who
have confirmed in writing their compliance with the required standards set
out in the Code of Conduct during the year under review.

The Company attaches great priority to establishing effective
communications with its shareholders and investors. In an effort to enhance
such communications, the Company provides information relating to the
Company and its business in its annual report and also disseminates such
information electronically through its website, info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

The Company regards the annual general meeting as an important event
as it provides an opportunity for direct communications between the board
and its shareholders. All directors and senior management make an effort to
attend the annual general meeting of the Company to address shareholders’
queries. All the shareholders of the Company are given a minimum of 20
business days' notice of the date and venue of the annual general meeting
of the Company. The Company supports the Code’s principle to encourage
shareholders’ participation.

CALLING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to article 68 of the articles of association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings may also be convened on requisition, as
provided by Section 113 of the Companies Ordinance, the shareholders of
the Company holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less
than one-twentieth of such of the paid-up capital of the Company as at the
date of the deposit may requisition an extraordinary general meeting of the
Company. The requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and must
be signed by the requisitionists and be deposited at the registered office of
the Company. It may also consist of several documents in like form, each
signed by one or more requisitionists. The directors must within 21 days
from the date of the deposit of the requisition proceed to duly convene a
meeting to be held on a day not more than 28 days after the date on which
the notice convening the meeting is given. If the directors fail to convene
the extraordinary general meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may themselves convene a meeting. Any meeting so convened shall not
be held after the expiration of 3 months from the date of the deposit of the
requisition.
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PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT
SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

Shareholders holding not less than one-fortieth of the total voting rights
of all members having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the
meeting to which the requisition relates; or not less than 50 members
holding shares in the Company on which there has been paid up an average
sum, per member, of not less than HK$2,000 may:

— put forward proposal at general meeting.

— circulate to other shareholders written statement with respect to
matter to be dealt with at general meeting.

For further details on the shareholder qualifications, and the procedures and
timeline, in connection with the above, shareholders are kindly requested to
refer to Section 115A of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws
of Hong Kong).

Further, a shareholder may propose a person other than a retiring director
of the Company for election as a director at a general meeting at which
elections to the office of directors are to be considered. The following
documents must be submitted to the Company no later than seven
days before the date of the general meeting: at the principal office of the
Company at 9/F, Citimark Building, 28 Yuen Shun Circuit, Siu Lek Yuen,
Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company
Secretary: (a) The Director Nomination Form with the required supporting
documents; (b) The candidate’s resume (c) A written statement signed by
the candidate of his/her willingness to be elected together with (i) that
candidate’s information as required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules; and (i) the candidate’s written consent to the publication
of his/her personal data and (iii) confirmation that there are no grounds for
his/her ineligibility and incompatibility to act as a director and that he/she
satisfies the integrity and, if applicable, independence requirements under
the applicable Listing Rules.

SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Company's Registrar. Shareholders and the Investment community may at
any time make a request for the Company'’s information to the extent that
such information is publicly available. Shareholders may also make enquiries
to the Board by writing to the Company Secretary at the Company’s office
in Hong Kong at 9/F, Citimark Building, 28 Yuen Shun Circuit, Siu Lek Yuen,
Shatin, N.T.
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Our beer operations in the territory
remained strong.
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Ramon S. Ang Chairman
Carlos Antonio M. Berba Deputy Chairman
Ramon G. Torralba Managing Director

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Chan Wen Mee, May (Michelle)
Teruyuki Daino

Roberto N. Huang

Taro Matsunaga

Shobu Nishitani

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

David K.P. Li, GBm, Jp

Ng Wai Sun

Reynato S. Puno

Carmelo L. Santiago

Adrian M.K. Li, Alternate to David K.P. Li, GBm, JP

Mr. Ramon S. ANG, BSME, aged 59, is the Chairman and a non-executive
Director of the Company. He has been appointed as the Chairman since
10 June 2005 and a non-executive Director of the Company since 27
November 1998. He is the Vice Chairman, President and Chief Operating
Officer of San Miguel Corporation (“SMC"), the ultimate holding company
of the Company (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock
Exchange). He is also the Chairman of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (the shares
of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange), the Chairman and
President of San Miguel Properties Inc. (the shares of which are listed on
the Philippine Stock Exchange), the Vice Chairman of Ginebra San Miguel,
Inc. (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange), the
Vice Chairman of San Miguel Pure Foods Company, Inc. (the shares of which
are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange) and the Chairman and director
of various subsidiaries of SMC. Mr. Ang is also the Chairman and CEO of
Petron Corporation (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock
Exchange), the Vice Chairman of Manila Electric Company (the shares of
which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange), the Chairman of Liberty
Telecoms Holdings, Inc. (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine
Stock Exchange) and an independent director of Philweb Corporation (the
shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange). He is also the
President and Chief Operating Officer of PAL Holdings, Inc. (the shares of
which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange) and Philippine Airlines,
Inc.

FE
EIEE
HITEF

FHTES

T
e
%/EL\E/I\E

TRACKES
AN

BYFHITES

BT - GBM, P

RUEFR

Reynato S. Puno

hERER

FRIE - FHEM P BEES

BREYKE BME AT ILBR BARNAFIERE
MIERITEE - #FE_TTRFAATHE
WEEARARAEERB —NANANFE+—A
T+t HBEEEAIENTES - HARENR
2R ([ENBRRF])  ARBZH&EEZERA
A (EBRORIERERHFRZF M) 2&8l=x
JEBEREEBY - BNAENEHREA
a8 (KO RIFREESF RS L) 2EF
San Miguel Properties Inc. (LR D R IERE &
FR G ™) 2 EE RBH - Ginebra San
Miguel, Inc. (RN IERE B H R ST L)
2 &l £ f& + San Miguel Pure Foods Company,
Inc. (ERMARIEEREEFFRHFAL™) 2 &l
TRMENBRRZEMBRARZEFERE
= o £25L A IR A& Petron Corporation (E &5 7
FRERLHRIGLM) 2 EFERITBEE
Manila Electric Company ( E i% 5 R IE & & &
HFR G E™) 28l X% - Liberty Telecoms
Holdings, Inc. (AR RIEREFHF X HT L
) 2 & N Philweb Corporation (A% 7 A SE
BEBLFRG L) 2 BULES - BITAJE
BEMEERARAT (ERDNIFRERS
RS ET) MFEERBEMEBR DG 2 BH K
EIBAE



DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVES | EERTHEEAE

Mr. Carlos Antonio M. BERBA, MBA, Msc, BSc, aged 48, was appointed
as Deputy Chairman and Remuneration Committee member of the
Company on 27 August 2010. Mr. Berba has been a director of the
Company since 16 April 2007. He is the Managing Director of San Miguel
Brewing International Limited, a Director of Neptunia Corporation Limited
(a controlling shareholder of the Company), and a Director of San Miguel
Brewery Inc. (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock
Exchange). He is also a Commissioner of PT Delta Djakarta Tbk (the
shares of which are listed on the Indonesia Stock Exchange), a Director of
San Miguel Beer (Thailand) Limited, San Miguel Holdings (Thailand) Ltd.,
San Miguel Marketing (Thailand) Limited, and various other subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Berba has 27 years of experience in general management,
finance, strategic planning, and corporate structuring initiatives. Mr. Berba
was the Chief Finance Officer of the San Miguel Beer Division and was
concurrently in charge of San Miguel Brewing International Ltd. He was also
the Chief Finance Officer of San Miguel Brewing International Ltd. and was
also concurrently the Business Planning and Business Development Head.
Mr. Berba graduated from the University of the Philippines with a Bachelor’s
degree in Electrical Engineering. He later obtained a Master’'s degree in
Business Administration (with distinction) from the Wharton School of
Business, University of Pennsylvania and a Master's degree in Japanese
Business Studies from Japan America Institute of Management Science &
Chaminade University of Honolulu.

Mr. Ramon G. TORRALBA, Bsc, aged 56, was appointed as Executive
Director and Managing Director of the Company with effect from 15
January 2013. Mr. Torralba was the Vice President and Manager for
Export Development of San Miguel Brewing International Limited (a
subsidiary of San Miguel Brewery Inc., the shares of which are listed on
the Philippine Stock Exchange) since 2007. He was also a Director of
San Miguel (Thailand) Company, Ltd. from 2006 to 2007 and Vice President
and Commercial Director of San Miguel Marketing (Thailand) Ltd. from 2004
to 2007. He was also Assistant Vice President-Consultant for Guangzhou
San Miguel Brewery Co. Ltd., San Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Co. Ltd. and
San Miguel (Baoding) Brewery Co. Ltd. of the Beer Division of San Miguel
Corporation from 2002-2004. Mr. Torralba graduated from Zamboanga
A.E. Colleges with a bachelor’'s degree in Science (Commerce). He also
attended the Management Development Program at the Asian Institute
of Management (International School of Business and Management) in
the Philippines in 1991. Mr. Torralba is a Certified Public Accountant and a
member of the Philippine Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

CHAN Wen Mee, May (Michelle), aged 48, was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 11 March 2011. Ms. Chan served as Managing
Director of A.S. Watson Industries Limited. She served as Managing Director
of Hutchison Harbour Ring Limited from 1 February 2006 to 31 October 2010
and served as Executive Deputy Managing Director of Hutchison Harbour
Ring Limited from 18 May 2005 to 31 January 2006. Ms. Chan has extensive
experience in managing property development and investment businesses
in mainland China. She also holds directorships in certain companies
controlled by Hutchison Whampoa Limited. Ms. Chan holds a Bachelor's
degree in Business Administration.
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Mr. Teruyuki DAINO, mBA, BS, aged 52, appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company on 20 May 2011. Mr. Daino is a member of the
nomination committee of the Company. He is the Executive Vice President
and Director of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (the shares of which are listed
on the Philippine Stock Exchange). He is a Director of San Miguel Brewing
International Limited, San Miguel Beer (Thailand) Limited and San Miguel
Holdings (Thailand) Ltd. He was the General Sales Manager of Gifu Branch
of Kirin Brewery Company Limited (2009-March 2011), President and Chief
Executive Officer of Four Roses Distillery, LLC (2002-2009), Planning Manager
of Corporate Planning Department of Kirin Brewery Company Limited (1998-
2002), Business Planning Manager of Budweiser Japan Company (1993-1997)
and Brand Manager of Marketing Department of Kirin Brewery Company
Limited (1988-1993). Mr. Daino graduated from Hitotsubashi University in
1983 with a Bachelor's degree in Economics and later obtained a Master's
degree in Business Administration from the Massachusetts Institute of
Technology in 1998.

Mr. Roberto N. HUANG, mBA, BSME, aged 64, has been appointed as non-
executive Director and remuneration committee member of the Company
with effect from 8 November 2012. Mr. Huang is a Director and President
of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine
Stock Exchange). He is also a Director of San Miguel Brewing International
Limited, and Chairman and President of Iconic Beverages, Inc., Brewery
Properties Inc., and Brewery Landholdings, Inc.. He was the General
Manager of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (2007-2009) (the shares of which are
listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange), Director of Ginebra San Miguel
Inc. (2004-2008) (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock
Exchange) and San Miguel Pure Foods Company, Inc. (2004-2008) (the
shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange), President of
San Miguel Beverages, Inc. (2007-2008) and President of Coca-Cola Bottlers
Philippines, Inc., Cosmos Bottling Corporation and Philippine Beverage
Partners, Inc. (2003-2007). Mr. Huang graduated from Mapua Institute of
Technology with a bachelor’s degree in Science (Mechanical Engineering)
and later obtained a master’s degree in Business Administration from De La
Salle University. He also attended the Nagoya International Training Center,
Japan International Cooperation Agency Grant for Metal Works Engineering
and Numerical Control Machines course.

Mr. Taro MATSUNAGA, 84, aged 48, was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company on 27 August 2010. Mr. Matsunaga is a Director
and Executive Vice President of San Miguel Brewing International Limited.
He is also a Commissioner of PT Delta Djakarta Thk. (the shares of which
are listed on the Indonesia Stock Exchange), a Director of San Miguel
Beer (Thailand) Limited and San Miguel Holdings (Thailand) Limited. He
was Deputy Marketing Director of Kirin Brewery Company, Limited (2009-
2010) and he was Brand Manager/Senior Brand Manager of Kirin Brewery
Company, Limited (2002-2009). Mr. Matsunaga graduated from Keio
University in 1987 with a Bachelor’s degree in Political Science.
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Mr. Shobu NISHITANI, aged 49, is Executive Financial Advisor and
Director of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (the shares of which are listed on the
Philippine Stock Exchange). He is also a director of San Miguel Brewing
International Limited and San Miguel Beer (Thailand) Limited. He served
as Deputy General Manager of Finance and Accounting Department of
Kirin Group Office Company, Limited. He was also the Deputy General
Manager of Finance and Accounting Department of Kirin Business Expert
Company, Limited (2008-2010) and Manager of Finance Group (2006-2007)
and Manager of General Accounting Group (2003), Finance and Accounting
Department of Kirin Brewery Company, Limited and Executive Assistant to
the Chairman of Secretary Department, Kirin Brewery Company, Limited.
Mr. Nishitani graduated from Waseda University in 1987 with a Bachelor’s
degree in Commerce and attended the Harvard Business School Program
for Management Development. He is a Chartered Member of The Securities
Analysts Association of Japan.

Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po, G8m, GBS, OBE, MA Cantab. (Economics &
Law), Hon. DSc. (Imperial), Hon. DBA (Edinburgh Napier), Hon. D.Hum.Litt. (Trinity, USA), Hon.
DSocSc (Lingnan), Hon. LLD (Hong Kong), Hon. LLD (Warwick), Hon. LLD (Cantab), Hon. DLitt
(Macquarie), FCA, FCPA, FCPA (Aust.), FCIB, FHKIB, FBCS, CITR, FCIArb, JP, Officier de L'Ordre de
la Couronne, Grand Officer of the Order of the Star of Italian Solidarity, The Order of the Rising
Sun, Gold Rays with Neck Ribbon, Commandeur dans I'Ordre National de la Légion d’Honneur,
aged 74, appointed on 22 March 1991, is an independent non-executive
Director, Chairman of the audit committee and a member of the nomination
committee and the remuneration committee of the Company. Sir David is
Chairman and Chief Executive of The Bank of East Asia, Limited (the shares
of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) and a director of
numerous other companies in Hong Kong and overseas. Sir David is a
member of the Banking Advisory Committee and a member of the Council
of the Treasury Markets Association. He is the Chairman of The Chinese
Banks' Association, Limited. Sir David is a director of Hong Kong Interbank
Clearing Limited and The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited. He is
also a Non-independent Non-executive director of AFFIN Holdings Berhad,
a Director of CaixaBank, S.A., an Independent Non-executive Director of
China Overseas Land & Investment Limited, Guangdong Investment Limited,
The Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited, The Hong Kong and
Shanghai Hotels, Limited, PCCW Limited, SCMP Group Limited and Vitasoy
International Holdings Limited, all being companies listed either in Hong
Kong or overseas. He was an Independent Non-executive Director of COSCO
Pacific Limited.
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Mr. NG Wai Sun, aged 69, appointed on 1 April 2001, is an independent
non-executive Director, Chairman of the remuneration committee, a
member of the audit committee and the nomination committee of the
Company. Mr. Ng is Chairman of Jibsen Capital (Holdings) Limited, a director
of the Tung Wah Group of Hospitals (2004-2006 and 2011-2013) and Member
of the Standing Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region. Mr Ng was awarded
as Ambassador of Friendship of Shandong Province in China in 2011 and
appointed as the Executive Director of the Fujian Normal University in 2012.

Mr. Reynato S. PUNO, mcL, LLM, LLB, aged 72, has been appointed as
independent non-executive Director and nomination committee member of
the Company from 8 November 2012. Mr. Puno is an independent director
of San Miguel Corporation (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine
Stock Exchange) since 2011. Former Chief Justice Reynato S. Puno served
as the Chief Justice of the Philippine Supreme Court from 6 December 2006
until his retirement on 17 May 2010. He joined the Court as an Associate
Justice in June 1993 and was previously Associate Justice of the Court of
Appeals (1986 to 1993), Appellate Justice of the Intermediate Appellate Court
(1983), Assistant Solicitor General (1974-1982) and City Judge of Quezon
City (1972-1974). He also served as Deputy Minister of Justice from 1984-
1986. Mr. Puno completed his Bachelor of Laws from the University of the
Philippines in 1962, and has a Master of Laws degree from the University of
California in Berkeley (1968) and a Master in Comparative Law degree from
the Southern Methodist University, Dallas, Texas (1967).

Mr. Carmelo L. SANTIAGO, 5884, aged 70, is an independent non-executive
Director, Chairman of the nomination committee and a member of the audit
committee and the remuneration committee of the Company. He is an
independent Director of the following companies whose shares are listed
on the Philippine Stock Exchange: San Miguel Brewery Inc., San Miguel
Pure Foods Company, Inc., San Miguel Properties Inc. and Liberty Telecoms
Holdings Inc. Mr. Santiago is the founder and owner of several branches of
Melo’s restaurant in the Philippines and a director of Terbo Concept, Inc., a
Philippine company engaged in retail and food business. He was a director
of the Company from 27 February 2003 to 23 February 2005. Having over
37 years of directorate positions in various companies in the Philippines
and Hong Kong, Mr. Santiago has extensive experience in foods, beverages,
publication, properties, power and banking industries.
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Mr. Adrian M. K. LI, MA(Cantab), MBA, LPC, JP, aged 39, was appointed Alternate
Director to Dr the Hon. Sir David K.P. Li on 1 August 2002. Mr. Li is the Deputy
Chief Executive of The Bank of East Asia, Limited, with responsibility for the
bank’s Hong Kong business. He is a member of the Guangdong Provincial
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
a member of the All-China Youth Federation, Deputy Chairman of the
Beijing Youth Federation and a Counsellor of the Hong Kong United Youth
Association. He is a board member of The Community Chest of Hong Kong,
a member of the HKSAR Government-mandated Banking Industry Training
Advisory Committee, Chairman of the VTC's Banking and Finance Industry
Training Board, and a member of the MPF Industry Schemes Committee
of the MPFA. Mr. Li is an Advisory Committee member of the Hong Kong
Baptist University’'s School of Business, a Vice President of The Hong
Kong Institute of Bankers’ Council and a Steering Committee member of
the Asian Financial Forum. He also serves as a member of the Election
committees responsible for electing the Chief Executive of the HKSAR and
deputies of the HKSAR to the 12" National People’s Congress. Mr. Li is an
Independent Non-Executive Director of Sino Land Company Limited, Tsim
Sha Tsui Properties Limited, Sino Hotels (Holdings) Limited, China State
Construction International Holdings Limited and COSCO Pacific Limited, all
listed in Hong Kong. He is an Independent Non-Executive Director of Hong
Kong and Shanghai-listed Shanghai Fosun Pharmaceutical (Group) Co., Ltd.,
and is an Alternate Director of Malaysia-listed AFFIN Holdings Berhad. Mr. Li
holds a Master of Management degree from Kellogg School of Management,
Northwestern University in the US, and a Master of Arts degree and a
Bachelor of Arts Degree in Law from the University of Cambridge in Britain.
He is a member of The Law Society of England and Wales, and The Law
Society of Hong Kong. He is the elder son of Dr. the Hon. Sir David K. P. Li.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVES | EER{THEEAE

Ramon G. Torralba
Managing Director (appointed on 15 January 2013)

Peter K.Y. Tam
Managing Director (resigned on 15 January 2013)

John K.L. Cheung
Chief Finance Officer & Company Secretary

Andes PH. Leung
General Sales Manager (resigned on 31 December 2012)

Eric PK. Lam
Marketing Manager

Ric W.T. Yeung
Senior Manager — Logistics

C.K.Ho
Senior Manager — Operations

Steven Co
Senior Manager — Corporate Development

Edith Y.M. Ng
Senior Manager — Human Resources & Administration

Vincent K.M. Kwok

Managing Director, Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited

William B. Montalbo

Plant Manager, San Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited

The details of the management executives as at the date of this report are

as follows:

Mr. Ramon G. TORRALBA, Managing Director. Please refer to the Directors

section on page 52 for details.

Mr. Peter K. Y. TAM, mB4, B84, aged 54, was an executive Director and the
Managing Director of the Company. Mr. Tam joined the Company in 1993.
He has more than 26 years of experience in the selling and marketing of
consumer products in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Mr. Tam graduated
from the University of Hawaii in 1985 with a Bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration and later obtained a Master’s degree also in Business
Administration from the California State University in 1987.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVES | EERTHEEAE

Mr. John K.L. CHEUNG, wmBA, BBA, aged 49, Chief Finance Officer &
Company Secretary, joined the Company in 1997. Mr. Cheung is a member
of the Institute of Management Accountants. He has over 27-year solid
experience in finance and accounting in various industries. Mr. Cheung
received a Master’s degree and a Bachelor’s degree, both in Business
Administration, from Georgia State University, USA.

Mr. Andes P.H. LEUNG, mBa, B8A, aged 40, was General Sales Manager
of the Company. Mr. Leung joined the Company in 2001. He has over
18-year solid experience in advertising, international marketing and sales
management in various industries.

Mr. Eric P.K. LAM, mBA, BA, aged 48, Marketing Manager, joined the
Company in 2008. Mr. Lam has over 19 years of solid experience in
marketing in various industries.

Mr. Ric W.T. YEUNG, 884, aged 49, Senior Manager — Logistics, joined
the Company in 1983. Mr. Yeung has more than 29 years of extensive
experience in supply planning, procurement and physical distribution.

Mr. C.K. HO, wmsc, pip, aged 54, Senior Manager — Operations, joined the
Company in 1988. Mr. Ho has over 24 years of service with the Company. He
has extensive experience in the operations of beer production.

Mr. Steven CO, 54, aged 43, Senior Manager — Corporate Development,
joined the Company in 1994. Mr. Co has more than 18 years of experience
in business planning, business research, corporate affairs and quality
management in the Company.

Ms. Edith Y.M. NG, vBa, pip, aged 50, Senior Manager — Human Resources
& Administration, joined the Company in 1989. Ms. Ng has gained over 23
years of experience in the fields of marketing, sales and human resources.

Mr. Vincent K.M. KWOK, mBa, BBA, aged 44, was appointed as the
Managing Director of Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited on
1 January 2011. Mr. Kwok joined the Company in 2003. He has more than 21
years of solid experience in marketing in various industries.

Mr. William B. MONTALBO, ssche, aged 49, Plant Manager/Brewmaster
of San Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited. Mr. Montalbo joined
San Miguel Brewery Inc. (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine
Stock Exchange) in 1988. He has extensive working experience in both
Domestic and International Operations. Mr. Montalbo graduated from De La
Salle University with a Bachelor's degree in Chemical Engineering.
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STATISTICAL ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS | && &t o4t

Years ened 31 December, in Hong Kong dollar thousands except HE+-_A=1+—HILFE KBSk
per share data and number of personnel RN EIE & B TAZSIMILUBEE T ILat &
Ten Year Review +E O EE
2012 2011 2010
—E-—-F —E——5F —E—EF

Turnover (1) EHERE (1) 686,362 683,879 589,322
Profit/(loss) from operations AR (518) 246,062 (48,365) (770,605)
Profit/(loss) for the year before RetEMAMT 2

restructuring costs ¥/ (Ei8) 229,175 (68,638) (773,987)
Restructuring costs (2) BHMZ (2 — — —
Profit/(loss) for the year FEREM/ (BE) 229,175 (68,638) (773,987)
Taxes paid, including beer tax TR 26,683 36,009 42,020
Cash dividends attributable to the year FERERSRKRE = — —
Cash dividends per share (cents) BRBERE (1) = — —
Fixed assets and projects under development BT &EKZEEHAIEE 654,678 389,671 398,011
Net worth (3), (4), (5) H1E (3), 4), (5) 511,836 297,223 391,474
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITBEREMETR 104,724 101,023 96,719
Number of personnel (6) BT A (6) 606 635 732
(1 Turnover has been adjusted where discounts, beer duty and consumption tax have been set-off with the gross turnover.
2 Restructuring cost in 2007 represented restructuring activities on the Company, while restructuring costs in 2005 and 2006 represented

restructuring activities on Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited.

Net worth for the 2003 to 2004 have been adjusted for change in accounting policy of non-controlling interests.

Net worth for the 2003 to 2005 have been adjusted for change in accounting policy of defined benefit retirement plan.
Net worth for the 2003 to 2008 have been restated for change in accounting policy of intangible assets.

Number of personnel represents actual headcount as of the last working day of the year.

3
4
5
6
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STATISTICAL ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS | && &t o4

Years ened 31 December, in Hong Kong dollar thousands except HE+-_A=1+—HILFE KBSk

per share data and number of personnel

P fn B85 % 8 T ABIMIABE TITAE

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
—ZETNF —ZEENF —ETAF —TTREF —ZETRF —ZETHF —ET=F
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(E575) (235)) (E57)) (E57) (E&575) (235))
696,824 753,375 754,833 826,817 806,909 777,830 684,866
(331,879) (301,033) 4,962 (10,625) 10,519 20,025 (30,321)
(343,052) (258,155) 50,397 (12,216) (2,692) 12,723 (36,156)
— — (310,220) (93,159) (63,295) — —
(343,052) (258,155) (259,823) (105,3795) (65,987) 12,723 (36,156)
68,877 102,485 140,831 127,007 141,219 135,185 134,986
— — — — 3,736 3,736 —
— — — — 1 1 —
1,087,198 1,379,561 1,496,910 1,769,377 1,838,164 1,939,135 2,016,646
1,169,484 1,490,925 1,751,565 1,975,617 2,062,000 2,118,432 2,120,869
99,341 91,656 105,510 118,836 128,539 122,149 124,480
766 766 838 768 1,151 1,145 1,168
EEFEE AT - AT B R S o
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT | &R& UK E

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE-"Z——F+-_A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABEERTE)
2012 2011
—E——F —T—F
Note $'000 $'000
B 7E o T

Turnover EE 3 686,362 683,879
Cost of sales SHEE R A (392,442) (387,062)
Gross profit EF 293,920 296,817
Other revenue HA A 4 35,671 14,939
Other net income HAb e #58 4 11,473 3,319
Selling and distribution expenses SHE koMY (277,645) (270,251)
Administrative expenses TBAX (77,714) (80,586)
Other operating expenses HAing &R (9,559) (7,106)
Reversal of impairment losses/ EREBEEZRE

(impairment losses) for non-current assets B8R, CRERE) 5 269,916 (5,497)
Profit/(loss) from operations wERR S (FE) 246,062 (48,365)
Finance costs MBER 6(a) (13,419) (20,662)
Profit/(loss) before taxation MRBATERF (&8) 6 232,643 (69,027)
Income tax (charge)/credit Frs® () 5t A 7 (3,468) 389
Profit/(loss) for the year EERBAN (BE) 229,175 (68,638)
Attributable to: E{EmT
Equity shareholders of the Company RARE=FAA 10 239,854 (53,464)
Non-controlling interests B liligrE (10,679) (15,174)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEEBN (BE) 229,175 (68,638)
Earnings/(loss) per share SRERN (BR)
Basic (cents) EA (L) 12(a) 64 (14)
Diluted (cents) #a (h) 12(b) N/A i N/A FEA

The notes on pages 70 to 137 form part of these financial statements. TIRETOE17 B2 S ENE AR BHREK 2 —

215 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME | %?A%@ W&k

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE-_T——F+-A=1+—HLFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHEE)
2012 2011
—E——F —T—F
Note $'000 $'000
BiEE Tt Tt
Profit/(loss) for theyear ¢ FEBA BR) 229175 (68,638)
Other comprehensive income FEHM2ERE (RB#E)
for the year (after tax) 11
Exchange differences on translation of: M =58
— financial statements of subsidiaries — BREGINAE A R R
outside Hong Kong FrEAZEH =5 245 (31,863)
— monetary items that form part of the net — BB EERH B A F
investment in subsidiaries outside ZEREMNESEBEEEA
Hong Kong ZIEH R (84) 17,973
161 (13,890)
Actuarial gains and losses of defined ERER MR ARG E 2 B E & F
benefit retirement plan 18 (14,723) (11,723)
________________________________________ (14.562) (25613
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZHEWFEZE 214,613 (94,251)
Attributable to: T
Equity shareholders of the Company RARE=FEA 225,299 (77,119)
Non-controlling interests Eiaalib g o (10,686) (17,132)
Total comprehensive income for the year FE2EKREEE 214,613 (94,251)
The notes on pages 70 to 137 form part of these financial statements. FIRE702137 B2 S BN AARY BHREK 2 —
&p o
BABE NS ERmARAR]

T FFIR




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION | & Bt &

At 31 December 2012 RZE—=—F+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHETE)
2012 2011
B —E——%F
Note $'000 $'000
BIaE o T
Non-current assets EREEE
Fixed assets BEE&E 13(a)
— Property, plant and equipment — W% - ISR 475,861 216,440
— Investment properties —REME 87,978 80,138
— Interests in leasehold land held for —ERLEHEETBAMBER
own use under operating leases MR E TS 90,839 93,093
654,678 389,671
Intangible assets EBREEE 14 5,426 5,709
660,104 395,380
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 78 16 56,062 65,166
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 R H M BRIR 17 82,726 88,603
Amounts due from holding companies FEUGERR A )
and fellow subsidiaries MRIZH B A EERIE 18 9,340 12,331
Amount due from a related company JFEUN A= A RIRRIA 18 829 —
Pledged deposits HEIPF 19(a) = 198,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReKERRLIEE 19(b) 100,904 45,586
249,861 409,686
current liabilities REIEE
Bank loans RITER 20 (86,713) (313,734)
Trade and other payables JENE 5 KR AR 21 (120,005) (148,917)
Amounts due to holding companies FERHERR A &)
and fellow subsidiaries &H%MTJ%’&ETEEIE 18 (3,767) (18,440)
Amounts due to related companies JESERE R FIERIA 18 (4,423) (2,324)
e (214908) (483,415)
Net current assets/(liabilities) FREEE(BE) FE 34,953 (73,729)

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.

Annual Report 2012



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION | A& Bt &

At 31 December 2012 R-ZE——F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABEERE)
2012 2011
—E——F —T—F
Note $'000 $'000
BdaE Tt Tt
Total assets less current liabilities HEERARBARSE 695,057 321,651
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Bank loan RITER 20 (145,092)
Retirement benefit liabilities BRIKEFEE 23(a) (34,534) (20,975)
Deferred tax liabilities REFIE S (& 24(a) (3,595) (3,453)
188220 (24,428)
NET ASSETS EEFE 511,836 297,223
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARFE
Share capital % 25(b) 186,785 186,785
Reserves it 353,665 128,366
Total equity attributable to equity AATERSTE ABGER
shareholders of the Company 540,450 315,151
Non-controlling interests FEIERERS (28,614) (17,928)
TOTAL EQUITY ERAE 511,836 297,223

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 8 February #&KHEFENR_T—=F_A/N\BIEREKET
2013. %o

L

Ramon S. Ang BEX Ramon G. Torralba HEE
Directors 2 Directors Ed
The notes on pages 70 to 137 form part of these financial statements. FREBE70E137 B2 S EMT AR BHREZ —
5 ©
BABE NS ERmARAR]

T FFIR




STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION |

At 31 December 2012

B FEAR IR

RZE——F+=ZA=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABMETE)
2012 2011
B —E——%F
Note $'000 $'000
B 7E o T
Non-current assets EREEE
Fixed assets BEEE 13(b)
— Property, plant and equipment — W% - ISR 410,185 162,399
— Interests in leasehold land held for own — AR E TERmEE
use under operating leases RS TR 60,179 61,421
470,364 223,820
Intangible assets EREE 14 5,031 5,031
Investments in subsidiaries AN 15 620,959 616,537
1,096,354 845,388
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 78 16 45,873 44,334
Trade and other receivables RN E 5 K E M ARTE 17 73,911 75,562
Amounts due from holding companies FEUIZERR A &)
and fellow subsidiaries MRIZHB A EERIE 18 6,606 12,314
Amount due from a related company ek A E A RIRRIA 18 829 —
Pledged deposits HEIPIF 19(a) = 198,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERIRLIEE 19(b) 73,903 16,343
201,122 346,553
current liabilities REEE
Bank loan RITER 20 (86,713) —
Trade and other payables JENTE 5 KR AR 21 (61,187) (61,663)
Amounts due to holding companies FETIZERR A )
and fellow subsidiaries N RIRWEB A RIRE 18 (2,130) (10,978)
Amounts due to related companies JESRAE N FIERIA 18 (2,195) (172)
oo (152228 (72,813)
Net current assets REBEERE 48,897 273,740

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
Annual Report 2012



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION | Bf#&AR R 3%

At 31 December 2012 RZZE—=—F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABIETE)
2012 2011
—E——F —T—F
Note $'000 $'000
BdaE Tt +7T
Total assets less current liabilities HEERARBARSE 1,145,251 1,119,128
Non-current liabilities kREBEE
Bank loan RITER 20 (145,092) —
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTHT A EIBRIA 22 (558,173) (558,135)
Retirement benefit liabilities BRIKENEE 23(a) (34,534) (20,975)
e 737799 (579,110)
NET ASSETS BESRE 407,452 540,018
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARFE 25(a)
Share capital % 186,785 186,785
Reserves i 220,667 353,233
TOTAL EQUITY P 407,452 540,018

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 8 February KHREFEN_T—=F_ANBHERZET
2013. o

L

Ramon S. Ang 2= 378 Ramon G. Torralba HHEE
Directors E2 Directors 4
The notes on pages 70 to 137 form part of these financial statements. BIRE70E 137 By ST AR ERE Y —
Ein o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY | & ERHE B R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE-T——F+_A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHEETE)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
RAAREEE AELTH
(Accumulated
Exchange losses)/ Non-
Share Share Capital fluctuation retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve profits  Subtotal  interests equity
EXRE (RiER)/
e R EE EAGE fiE Wit A FERER BRAE
(note 25(0)) ~ (ote 25(c)(i) ~ (note 25(c)i)  (note 25(c)(i)
(2500 (BsE2s00)  (Prsk2s) - (BiEE 25(00i)
Note $'000 $000 $000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000 $000
it A T T T i o a o
Balance at 1 January 2011 Wog--&
-A-REH 186,785 65,739 112970 92,069 (65,293) 392,270 (79) 391,474
Changes in equity for 2011: “E--FREEE.
Loss for the year FEFR - - - - (53,464) (53,464) (15,174) (68,638)
Other comprehensive income E2Eke 11 — - - (11932) (11723 (23,655) (1,958) (25613
Total comprehensive income FERENGRE
for the year — — - (11932 (65,187) (77,119 (17132) (94,251)
Balance at 31 December 2011 WoB--f&
and 1 January 2012 +-A=t+-H
R=%-Z%
-A-B&8 186,785 65,739 112,970 80,137 (130,480) 315,151 (17,928) 297,223
Changes in equity for 2012: TE-CERREE.
Profit for the year FERF - - - - 239,854 239,854 (10,679) 229,175
Other comprehensive income £t 2k 11 - - - 168 (14,723) (14,555) (7) (14,562)
Total comprehensive income FEEEYELE
for the year - - - 168 225,131 225,299 (10,686) 214,613
Balance at 31 December 2012 W=8--f
TZAZt-RE&% 186,785 65,739 112,970 80,305 94,651 540,450 (28,614) 511,836
The notes on pages 70 to 137 form part of these financial statements. BIRE70E 137 By ST AR ERE Y —
Fo1m o
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT | ZZERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE-T——F+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (ABEEEE)
2012 2011
—E——F —T—F
Note $'000 $'000
BdaE P T
Operating activities F<E 9
Cash used in operations ARG IR 19(c) (40,045) (78,382)
Income tax FriSwt
— Tax paid outside Hong Kong — BENMIMRE (20) (123)
Net cash used in operating actlvities mExBoRenyFE | (40,065 (78,509)
Investing activities REFEK
Payment for the purchase of fixed assets BABEEE (14,157) (15,409)
Payment for the purchase of BAEMBRLEE
other tangible assets (1,031) (5,839)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets HEBTEEMSHKEA 319 2,037
Proceeds from disposal of HEEMEREEMSHKIEA
other tangible assets 3,951 703
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets HERFEERSHRIA 288 —
Interest received 2HFILE 1,777 3,653
Net cash used in investing activities BRRXBzRERMFE 8853) (14,855)
Financing activities MEES
Proceeds from new bank loans, net of FTIGIRITE R
transaction costs (BB SHA) 419,103 419,287
Repayment of bank loans 1azifETTE§§X (499,552) (365,494)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits WIFEFOR L, (3800) 198,000 (138,000)
Decrease in bank deposits ﬁE%?i?%k%id> — 5,876
Interest paid BRFLE (13,311) (19,993)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEZHZREARA CRE)
financing activities .. :I 04240 ____________ (_9_&%,9)_2_4)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash REFRERBRELEE
and cash equivalents ZBEEN R 55,322 (191,684)
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—BzESE
at 1 January RERRLERES 19(b) 45,586 220,556
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes [ER# &> /& (4) 16,714
Cash and cash equivalents RtT-A=+—-HBzE®
at 31 December REERLERLET 19(b) 100,904 45,586
The notes on pages 70 to 137 form part of these financial statements. FIRE70=137 B2 BB AARY BHREK 2 —
B o
BABE NS ERmARAR]

T FFIR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) SHEETIN  RBEHE)

1  significant accounting policies 1 FEFHBE

(@) Statement of compliance (a) E<rEH
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all zlxﬂﬂ%i&i%)}m%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ BB
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which AE EIIJ ([BEMGRELER]]) (FEME
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial K| —SHBEE S ASEM
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and ﬁﬁ*ﬁLFH EE R BB B E R - B
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public & e ER ([BE S EL]) kg &
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted ’AJJQJE B EEBEATEN ZHE)
in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies ﬁﬁiﬁ o ZEMEHMERMETEBH AR
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the applicable %ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ AIFES EMARA (T WA
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities ZHEBEERTE AEBEBZFES:
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A BERMENT -
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is
set out below.
The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first BB et @ BhE T2 REEET
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting ZE,%Eﬁfr&Ei/iﬂlj C WIAAREB AR
period of the Group and the Company. Note 1(c) provides information Al ANEf e s IR B X A ek AT IR R R
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application WMo BRERLEERNASE 2 5G] %
of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group BIFTSI BN & A R AR S I 2 E e
for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial SAHREREEBERAMERERARM - B
statements. BRERMIEE 10

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (b) #mEPFBEHREZER

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2012 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions

BE_Z——F+-_A=+—RHIFEZ
FeaRBRREEARTRENEB QG
(R [AEE]) -

FATE R TY AR 2 B SR R E -

ERAATEM GRS EANUEREES
FEBEEHEYERRERLAE - 8

that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, & WABER Y SRS SENHE - GE
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated &{Ef HIRE o et M EBRRIIRIES
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other AN EREEERIBEL TBAEN
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the Eﬁﬂl%mﬂ’ﬁﬂj HEERKAHEEMK
results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying BT BAS RN EERE EREREER
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other HRE R - BERER B ENZER
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. o

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing FET RRBBRSHER - YestEst
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in HITE Jh C EEET R S A HARY auﬂk
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in SR EEETE B NER - B8E %
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both gﬁéljéé?,ﬁﬁ&fk;}(,ﬁﬁr'ﬁ BIFEIEET & ok Ak HA
current and future periods. IR

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSS that BB I3RS £ RIS FTE H A9 3

have significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 2.

The Group sustained a consolidated net loss from continuing operations
before net reversal of impairment losses for non-current assets, of
$40,741,000 and experienced a net outflow of cash and cash equivalents
of $40,065,000 in respect of operating activities for the year ended 31
December 2012. The Group’s cash and cash equivalents exceeded
current bank loans by only $14,191,000 as at 31 December 2012, which
may not be sufficient to fund the Group’s operations in 2013 in view of
the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of operating
activities for the year ended 31 December 2012.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
(b)

significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern and, therefore, it may be unable to realise its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. However,
the directors are of the opinion that the Group will be able to finance its
future working capital and financial requirements given that:

(i) The Company’s bank loans are repayable in eight equal quarterly
instalments from June 2013. The directors are considering re-
financing these loans so that part of current bank loans becomes
repayable after 31 December 2013.

(i) The directors have reviewed the Group's future plans strategy
and have identified various initiatives which could turn around
the Group's business performance, which include the following:

(a) For Hong Kong operations, the directors consider
that the decline in profitability is principally due to the
heavy discounts offered to customers and they have
implemented stronger controls over discounts since late
2012. Also, the directors are conducting a holistic review
of sales incentive schemes with a view to changing them
to be more efficient and effective.

(b) For mainland China operations, the directors have
reinvigorated certain sales channels by obtaining new
distributors and also are searching for opportunities
to obtain new customers who may be interested in
subcontracting beer production to the Group.

(iii) The Company’s intermediate holding company, namely San
Miguel Brewery Inc., a listed company in the Republic of the
Philippines, has committed to provide continuing support to
enable the Group to operate as a going concern and meet its
liabilities as they fall due for the foreseeable future.

Accordingly, the directors are of the opinion that it is appropriate
to prepare the Group's financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2012 on a going concern basis. Should the Group be unable
to continue to operate as a going concern, adjustments would have to
be made to write down the value of assets to their recoverable amounts,
to provide for further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not been
reflected in the financial statements.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) SHEETIN  RBEHE)

1 significant accounting policies (Continued 1 EEFBE @

(c) Changes in accounting policies (c) EHEXNEH
The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs that are first BRI ASERMEEET BT HRE
effective for the current accounting period of the Group and the /EE\‘JE’M Al ZBRTE AR AEE RAR
Company. Of these, Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Az ABE S HEER - EEF BB
Disclosures — Transfers of financial assets are relevant to the Group’s R ELRETSE BT 2@ T A : #
financial statements. F— oMEAENERE | SASENT %R

=AM -
The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not AREBEN R AT MR ARSI 5 R
yet effective for the current accounting period. EREVFTER SRR o
Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures EBMBRELENEIR 2B (28T
A - ]

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require certain disclosures to be included BAEPEREERF 7R ZAETEREL
in the financial statements in respect of transferred financial assets that BRITERAE2 BN ERSHEE
are not derecognised in their entirety and for any continuing involvement &E{‘JE%&ﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁi\ Mz EeBMEEM
in transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety, SFELMEY - TRA SRS MEE
irrespective of when the related transfer transaction occurred. However, i E@%%%E}&Egﬁﬁﬁki&ﬁzm o8
an entity need not provide the disclosures for the comparative period D E RS ANB IR B B A M B AR
in the first year of adoption. The Group did not have any significant z&ﬁg A E B R AT BARS s A HARS - &
transfers of financial assets in previous periods or the current period WAEECMEEZ TMEBERHRILE
which require disclosure in the current accounting period under the MmEEAeHHREL HE -
amendments.

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (d) MEBATIRIFERER
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the MEAT ARNEBMITH BT o MER
Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of EEERATXE RN R EEEBRK
an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, MERNZ  ZEBRBERAXIAER

potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken into
account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised profits but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company and in respect of
which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders
of those interests which would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each business combination, the
Group can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable
assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
(d)

(e)

significant accounting policies (Continued)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling interests
and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of
non-controlling interests and other contractual obligations towards
these holders are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position in accordance with notes 1(m) or (n)
depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or jointly controlled entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(j)).

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1())),
with the exception of construction in progress which is stated at cost
less any impairment losses (see note 1())).

— land classified as being held under finance leases and buildings
thereon (see note 1(g)),

— buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold land
classified as held under operating leases (see note 1(g)), and

— other items of plant and equipment.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FE R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (REERRIN  IRBETE)
1 Ssignificant accounting policies (Continued) 1 FEEFEE (@
(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) (e) W% WESBRFZE (B

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant WETIIGYEE - e MR AR hET

and equipment less their estimated residual values, if any, using the FIREE (F)  EE TG ERE

straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows: HRERRE LA B ARV AT B s

— Leasehold land classified as held under finance leases is — SEARERE T TR RER
depreciated over the unexpired term of lease. THEHEITE -

— Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the — ERE T FRERKRERME
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful S REMETAIFEAEE (TR
lives, being no more than 50 years. A+F) MEPEEEEINE -

— Machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures 4.t0 50 years — MR 3R - WMEER+4

EMREE

— Motor vehicles 4t07 years — I WEZF

No provision for depreciation is made on construction in progress until TERIBENEETKRARAFEART~E

such time when the assets are substantially completed and ready for SHEITE -

use.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different BIEME  KERREZSHNBETE

useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis RIRI R HE - 1 IE B &880 2 AN 1%

between the parts and each part is depreciated separately. ABEERSE - MEBOSEBERFTE -

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed KEBEFRFEE 2 AERFHLER

annually. HEMB (WH) -

()  Investment properties f REWHE

Investment properties are land and buildings which are owned or held
under a leasehold interest (see note 1(g)) to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see note 1(j)). Depreciation is calculated to
write off the cost of investment properties, less their estimated residual
values, if any, using the straight-line method over the shorter of the
unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful lives, being no more
than 50 years.

Both the useful lives of the investment properties and their residual
values, if any, are reviewed annually.

Rental income from investment properties is accounted for as described
in note 1(s)(ii).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
(8

)

(ii)

(h)

significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions,
is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period
of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the
legal form of a lease.

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to the
Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as being held under finance leases.

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as operating leases, with the
following exceptions:

— property held under operating leases that would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property is classified as
investment property on a property-by-property basis and, if
classified as investment property, is accounted for as if held
under a finance lease; and

— land held for own use under an operating lease, where the
fair value cannot be measured separately from the fair value
of a building situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is
accounted for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the lease
was first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the
previous lessee.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments made.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is amortised on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease term. Impairment losses
are recognised in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
10).

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are trademarks and club debentures acquired by the
Group and stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1())).

These intangible assets are not amortised as their useful lives are
assessed to be indefinite and are tested annually for impairment (see
note 1()).

The conclusion that the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite
is reviewed annually to determine whether events and circumstances
continue to support the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
)

()
0]

significant accounting policies (Continued)
Other tangible assets

Other tangible assets represent returnable bottles and crates used by
subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC").

Returnable bottles and crates are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see note 1(j)). Amortisation is
calculated to write off the cost of bottles and crates, less their estimated
residual values, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives of two to three years and seven years respectively.

Both the useful lives of bottles and crates and their residual values are
reviewed annually.

Impairment of assets
Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and receivables

Investments in subsidiaries that are stated at cost in the Company’s
statement of financial position and receivables that are stated at
amortised cost or at cost are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about one or more of the following loss
events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor,

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments,

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and
recognised as follows:

— For investments in subsidiaries, the impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of the investment with its
carrying amount in accordance with note 1())(ii). The impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount in
accordance with note 1(j)(i).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
()
0]

(i)

significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and receivables
(Continued)

— For receivables carried at amortised cost or at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these assets) for receivables carried
at amortised cost or at the current market rate of return for
similar financial assets for receivables stated at cost, where
the effect of discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment 10ss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or l0ss. A reversal of
an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
receivables included within trade and other receivables, whose recovery
is considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment
losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade receivables directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to identify indications that the following assets
may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

— Property, plant and equipment;

— Investment properties;

— Interests in leasehold land held for own use under operating
leases,

— Intangible assets; and

— Other tangible assets.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 significant accounting policies (Continued 1 EEFBE @
() Impairment of assets (Continued) (i EEREGE
(i)  Impairment of other assets (Continued) (i) H#EERE (E)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. In addition, for intangible assets that have indefinite useful
lives, the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not there
is any indication of impairment.

WEFEEAERTR  AIEEFTEED
AIUEI SR o WA - BB REE AIE A A
HNBILEENS AREEEFMHtE
A E SR AREE RS B AR ED

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs
to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset's carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

%o

— AIEAKRESE

EEZAJNbDEAEEEFER
FREEMER 2R SE - Rl
FREER - SFEARTATIIE X
BEFTRRRE S REMRER
1B o ZAhIREE R R TI5E AT
FEz EEREREENZEEZS
BRERE - WEEIREERNBE L
REMEETHEIRSRE - Al
BYBREBIR SRS 2 &/MARIEE
gﬂaﬁﬂlfﬁ/\mu) REE A Y E
K o

—  ERAEEE
SEAE (REFBEHREELE
i) KIBEE(EMBIAE AT 16 %8
BB E s = AR R EAA - 2Bk
AU & B R AR EAE  E I
W ER (RAER) AENE
EERLOISE - EAEEEET
IR EEAEA S DA EER
SEERAR (P RIEE (EAET) -

— BEREEE

i PR LA BERT AT W [0 2 38 2 fh AT 3R
w8 RIBERERR -

B2 REBEERNBEFE
WARERBEERMER EEL
BREE - 8O 2R ERR TN ER
‘Oz FEFABET

(k) Inventories k) BE
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. FE TR A A IR R EME 2 WIKE
18 -

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.

BXAR ARSI A LG B - WBIEMAE
BERA - ITRAMFEEBERE
BRSNS 2 AR o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
(k)

)

(m)

(n)

(0)

(p)
)

significant accounting policies (Continued)

Inventories (Continued)

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue
is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.

Receivables

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(j)), except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial.
In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference
between the amount initially recognised and redemption value being
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Payables

Payables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) SHEETIN  RBEHE)

1 significant accounting policies (Continued 1 EEFBE @

(p) Employee benefits (Continued) (p) EETH @&

(i)  Defined benefit retirement plan obligations (i) TEEREFEARGTEIZAIE
The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit retirement plans REE THEEFEMRETERIE Y STF
is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees CEl Eiﬁiﬂﬁéﬂ%ﬁﬁ"$ﬁﬂﬁ&uﬁﬁﬁfﬁ
have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; LAURE R TS TR 2 R K F sz @ B M AT
that benefit is discounted to determine the present value, and the fair g AETHRERZENZA TR -
value of any plan assets is deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the WHIBR AT EIEE 2 AR EE - BiIRE
end of the reporting period on high quality corporate bonds that have REEQFRES (FHPEAEEETR
maturity dates approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations. The Ezﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ) REEHZIRER - 5t8
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit TEREERBEEMEAIETEMEEE
credit method. T o
Actuarial gains and losses in respect of the defined benefit retirement B TREEMERGTEINBEERNEA
plan are recognised in full in the period in which they occur, outside BNTE BN RESRTE N2 EpRER o
profit or loss, in equity.

(ili)  Termination benefits (iiiy KRIEERERN
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the Group BIEBERSEARERREERN - A58
demonstrably commits itself to terminate employment or to provide BAKAIBEREIMET IR I EEE A LR
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal EZEtEl e EE EMEB MK LA LI 1EDL
plan which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal. HERER

(@) Income tax (q) FrEH

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities and all
deferred tax assets, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the recognition

AEFEZFBEHBEANPHIEMELERIE
BERABEBEZ#E - AHHERELEHE
BEMBEZEHEESZPER  ES

R E A2 RS &E&Fﬁ*¢$m
ﬁﬁﬁ'w 2 I E b 2 IR 25 ki 25 R
R o

KE@%FEIEE$ETF$¢J+FE§%&W)\ A

ﬁEFﬁETEWKﬁETEZ@% uﬂ»gz
?ﬁ%ﬁﬁmlﬁi WRtiE A FE 2 RN TIE
Ve AR o

ERERAEENABEIDIREEERE
BIE AR EHRER AN 2 R E R EHER
EEZAMERERN 2 ERHER - RITE
MIBEEINA ARSI B2 HEEE K
REA 2 HBIERES -

BETERZOIINER - FAEEERIE
BEMEEHBREE (NEEAM AR
HIHARERVEFNE BR) 19& T AR
R EXF AR A MR TR ERELS

of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences ZLk%RIEé:’FZ*ﬂUEE%%Eﬂ B
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable REEIR A ERR T E5EmEE 2
temporary differences, provided those differences relate to the same TREREERE - L ERE AR RIS

taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to P R ABREREIEERE - I T8 BAR T8 A
reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of the BE AT SR 248 - A En s A ER

deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss WERIE B EE T EE A 2 BB E 1R 2 7 — ERfS
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The AL - NEFRFERG L E80 S
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable SHEHERRSANBEEEBLERREA Y
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets EENIEAEN R ARER - Bl%E

arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are
taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods,
in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

£REA—BBRELERAERREREY
B TEMTRDAREE AR 2 X
BHRE (—BXEZR) ARE - Alg T )
SEA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
(@)

significant accounting policies (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities
are those temporary differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination) and temporary differences relating to investments
in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future or, in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein,
are presented separately from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) SHEETIN  RBEHE)

1 significant accounting policies (Continued 1 EEFHBE®

(r)  Provisions and contingent liabilities (n #ERIAREE
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount RN Bl AN B AR B B AR =K
when the Group or the Company has a legal or constructive obligation r;zéiﬁm%ﬁﬂ AmEfReERss
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of LEM M ERING - R LAMER A] 5/
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable {HEHE - AR RS A EEFE @ gz ek
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, HRETENBETIRER - WREMERR
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected BERX - BIETEF TS X R IRERFIE
to settle the obligation. 1 o
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be MR EBEERZMERINR A AT e R
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is K siREiS A BEEEER A S0
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of i FeluESEEASRAE BE
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence TRINFE AT BE AR R BIBR SN © INR AL E
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or MEFBERTERUERTRREHELE
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the EAREERATE  NSEEANER
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. & - BEIRINA A AT BEMERRE AR D o

(s) Revenue recognition (s) WAER
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or U A2 DA B U ER sk AT WERREN B A 72 (BB
receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow FE o HEESESERENERAERA
to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured NEE - AR (WER) sE51E
reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows: HASEMEtER  BEARABRIATAER

i Em R AR

(i) Sale of goods (i) HEWA
Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the customers’ HEWAEAHEEN S IR E M
premises or picked up by customers for domestic sales and when goods R HA %iﬁﬁﬁi%ﬁ}mﬁx EHEOEEm
are shipped on board for export sales which is taken to be the point EOREmOHEEMN  EEESERN
in time when the customer has accepted the goods and the related BEREREE T AAR - 58I ATEIEIE
risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax EREERE  YEHBRABEE SN
and consumption tax and is after deduction of any trade discounts and AR[E o
returns.

(i)  Interest income (i) FEWA
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest FIBUWATIZER TR ETE -
method.

(iii)  Rental income from operating leases (il) EHEMERZHESKRA
Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in profit RESEREmMEKRZHASIWA - JTHAZE
or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by the lease term. BRMEAFTRE 2 ST AR - B
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral ERENEIETIERFTINE BB F SRR
part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. B — 2R PR ©

(t)  Translation of foreign currencies (t) EEHE

(i) Functional and presentation currency (i) M ER R ERER
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's AEBEEWB AR M ERERABIEZIA

subsidiaries are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

B DIRZMBARKEME T BELE
REZER (FIJJQE%?’H%J) FPE &AM
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1

t
(i)

(u)

(v)

significant accounting policies (Continued)
Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or 10ss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that operation is reclassified from
equlity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from monetary items that
in substance form part of the net investment in an operation outside
Hong Kong, together with any related tax, are reclassified to equity on
consolidation.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying
asset commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to
the Group if that person:

©) has control or joint control over the Group;

2) has significant influence over the Group; or

) is @ member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

IR R M

(BSHIETIN - RBEEE)
1 FEEHEE®
(t) R’ (E)
(i) ERLINERITIRS  HUZSEZIN

(u)

(v)

BERME - MINEBE BB EERA
B RIASER ZINEEREE - [EH I8
sIIETABES o

ASNEIR IR S RAEHER IFE R EEN A
ERAR 5 B RSNEEE N FEITIE -

BRI EBMEE IR S A EX
TR H P I LB ISR HIR
AREEENERGE B FﬁFEE’\J
PE 5 =R E R A A (E R BB ) A RERR

EHERBINERE - EZEBHRM
ERRAMKBERENRFFELZESN
R BA N HEE -

EREBELMINEEN B (BRER
BRNIMEE N —F17) BAEM.2 BIAMRE
RAEHEEFH DAL MBS ARRE

ﬁ o

BERAE

AU 2EREEREREE (BIBA
FER—BRRR R D) A RS E RigsliH &
ZEBE) MERREIGZEBERADBEZ

FEEZBOAAE - EMEEKRAHEE
EEEIRMSIER -

BRNEBIREERA —H D EERAE
BEELMX - BERAELEREEER
ANRIE R 8 & P IS R B 48 TARAETT
IR BN - EEEBEREERAR
TERE S HERT U ANBAE D EETIE
RIEHTERE - EERAESEFEREF L
AR »

BEAL

0) ERIAL - skEEH ZFBAR B
RERAEERMEAL  MEZE
RAIAZL

M bl RIE AL E

2 HEAEBEBEEATYED
sk

@) RAREXAEEG QA
EBABKEZ— -

EBENBEAERA A
T FFR




7J TERIR M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) BREHIERIN  IRABERE)
1 Ssignificant accounting policies (Continued) 1 FEEFEE (@
(v)  Related parties (Continued) (v) BEAL @
(ii) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions (i) —EAE M E (R IR - Bl
applies: WRBEAEEBEATL -

(1) The entity and the Group are members of the same () ZERENAEEZR—
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and W8 (EEWREEM
fellow subsidiary is related to the others). NE - MEBARIRER

M A E R RAER) ©

() One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other 2 —EEEES BB
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a ERNRIHEERE (L—
group of which the other entity is a member). 1 ,a‘&a?%% LEKEN

BE ARG ERE M
FS—EBAR—SBEZK
8)-

©) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party. €) MEEERAE=ZTNE
B -

(4) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other (4) —EAEEEE-EEER
entity is an associate of the third entity. SEGE mME—EAEE

REZ(EAERMEE AT -

(5) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the (5) ZERIIERETAER
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity A EEBFEEATH
related to the Group. EENEEMBEENG

£

(6) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person (6) ZEBX EXOFENA
identified in (). Tk R o

@) A person identified in (i)(1) has significant influence (7) ExXOMArEHER AL
over the entity or is a member of the key management HZEBBEAFE NN
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity). 7‘%%2% (LZEBEQ

Gl ) TEBABRKEZ
Close members of the family of a person are those family members who BERALTHERFEBKE TIIEZRBRKE
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their FHBERES SR ES i ENEE
dealings with the entity. K8 o
(w) Segment reporting (w) 2TERZ2H

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported
in the financial statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial
reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2

(@

(b)

(c)

Accounting judgements and estimates

Notes 5 and 23 contain information about the assumptions and their risk
factors relating to the non-current assets impairment and retirement
benefit liabilities. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as
follows:

Impairment of fixed assets, intangible assets and
other tangible assets

If the circumstances indicate that the carrying values of these assets
may not be recoverable, the assets may be considered “impaired”
and an impairment loss may be recognised in accordance with HKAS
36 Impairment of assets. Under HKAS 36, these assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When such
a decline has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of its fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In determining the value in use, expected
cash flows generated by the asset are discounted to their present value,
which requires significant judgement relating to level of sales volume,
selling prices and amount of operating costs. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of the recoverable amount. However, actual sales volume,
selling prices and operating costs may be different from assumptions
which may result in a material adjustment to the carrying amount of
the assets affected. Details of the nature and carrying amounts of
fixed assets and intangible assets are disclosed in notes 13 and 14
respectively.

Depreciation or amortisation of fixed assets

Fixed assets (see note 13) are depreciated or amortised on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account the
estimated residual values, if any. The Group reviews the estimated useful
lives and the estimated residual values, if any, of the assets regularly in
order to determine the amount of depreciation or amortisation expense
to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual
values are based on the Group’s historical experience with similar
assets and taking into account anticipated technological changes. The
depreciation or amortisation expense for future periods is adjusted if
there are significant changes from previous estimates.

Impairment loss for doubtful debts

The Group maintains an allowance for doubtful debts for estimated
losses resulting from the inability of debtors to make required payments.
The Group bases the estimates of future cash flows on the ageing of
the trade receivable balance as disclosed in note 17, debtors’ credit-
worthiness and historical write-off experience. If the financial condition
of debtors were to deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher than
estimated.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) SHEETIN  RBEHE)

2  Accounting judgements and estimates (Continued) 2 BrHAE R FER ()

(d)  write down of inventories (d) #HEEE
The Group performs a regular review of the carrying amounts of REBUGFE ZRERDIT - TAFTRIEFE
inventories as disclosed in note 16 with reference to aged inventories ENTEREB HEEREZ - THERAER
analyses, expected future consumption and management judgement. RHTE16 FFE ZREE - RIFTLE®R
Based on this review, write down of inventories will be made when the HRECES T‘,E\Z—J"‘*IE@TETE%iﬁE(‘H
estimated net realisable value of inventories declines below the carrying BREE  FEMIELRE - A - BEBH
amount. However, actual consumption may be different from estimation FE2REETAIEETR ﬁ'ﬂﬁ.ﬁrZ%i;ﬂE
and profit or loss could be affected by differences in this estimation. WEERTE -

(e) Useful lives of intangible assets (e) EREEZTMERAFH
Intangible assets (see note 14) are not amortised as their useful lives miERE (AW 14) WS /e - &
are assessed to be indefinite. The conclusion that the useful life of an eRAEFLEEZ JEHRFHIETEATHE
intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine whether F o ERUERRE EFEENC{FERSE
events and circumstances continue to support the indefinite useful life HeRNEBFEMUBTELIRBERETN
assessment. The Group may need to amortise intangible assets in future HELFELEENERFEHATET -
periods or recognise impairment losses for intangible assets if events NSRRI HAERIERA R FREE AR
and circumstances indicate that the useful life is not indefinite. E o AEEN R R EEFED B K

ERREEE -

()  Deferred tax assets () EEREEE
Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not yet used and REHBEEE AR HEBERY
temporary deductible differences. As those deferred tax assets can only MBI ERERER AN %EREERBEEE
be recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits HOHE R (E R A IR 2K FE 52750 &4 1) 45 1] AR V3K
will be available against which the unused tax credits can be utilised, HABAMAIESANBWES - BREA
management's judgement is required to assess the probability of being L RIRERTI AR Al aE M - BB
able to generate future taxable profits. Management's assessment is BT EL FHEY - WMARERTA
constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax assets are recognised Fg R EREERIEEE - A2RR%E
if it becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred SNEREFIBEE - EEMRIBEENME R
tax assets to be recovered. Details of the nature and carrying amounts of BREEFIERM 24 E -
deferred tax assets are disclosed in note 24.

3  Turnover and segment reporting 3 EXURSTEHER

(@ Turnover (@) E&xH|
The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and distribution $’E BrrXrE2EKARERDHBE - &
of bottled, canned and draught beers. 2 ARSI -
Turnover represents the invoiced value of products sold, net of EEEEEEER 2 EEEENBRIT
discounts, returns, value added tax and consumption tax. RE - EEFRER -

(b) Segment reporting (b) SDBERZH
The Group manages its businesses by geography. In a manner consistent AEBRHBREEEER - SERILE2HR
with the way in which information is reported internally to the Group’s ERGAEESESEITHRERAEUES

most senior executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following two reportable segments:

— The Hong Kong operation mainly comprises the manufacture
and distribution of own brewed beer products and distribution of
imported beer products in Hong Kong and overseas.

— The mainland China operation mainly comprises the manufacture
and distribution of own brewed beer products in the southern
part of the PRC and overseas.

All of the Group’s turnover is generated from the manufacture and
distribution of bottled, canned and draught beers.

@Eéf&%ﬁﬁ%iﬁ BB AEEEZ2
BTYIMEAT 23D E -

— EREBTIEZRR/EETB RGN
$HE SRR R E ) $E#E O
2B

— RN ES T EEEET HmEE

KB IEE SRR REER °

AEBz2XB2MRARERD HE
5 R RBEWE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (REERTRIN  IRBETE)

3  Turnover and segment reporting (Continued) 3 EXPRSHBEHER (@

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) PBER2W (@)

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (i) PHEE  EERAE
For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating BB PEBREPIROIALER - ﬁ‘il
resources between segments, the Group’s senior executive management ZEEITHREEA ETJ&LAT% RELE
monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable AT 2RO IBEMG 2 ELE - ’éé&ﬁ% :

segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible assets and
current assets. Segment liabilities include trade creditors and accruals
attributable to the manufacture and distribution activities of the

DEHEERREMEANEE BVEER
MBEE - DHRERESE D HRERD
HEBRENEMNESRANTIRER

individual segments, bank loans and retirement benefit liabilities NEEEEEMNRTERRENRENEE
managed directly by the segment and other current liabilities with the UEEMBEEE  HEEHEAEER
exception of deferred tax liabilities. Gh o

The measure used for reportable segment profit or 10ss is profit or l1oss
before taxation. Taxation is not allocated to reportable segments. Inter-
segment sales are priced at cost plus profit margin.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the
Group’s accounting policies described in note 1.

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as provided to
the Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance for the
years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 is set out below:

AHHATE2WMANKEBARMZIER
AT AN HERE - SRR BER D EE
ATE2ERDEL - D ESZ HEVHEZAKAE
IEFRFBIEERE ©

DEEM 2| GFTBOREAANEEZ €5
B (RMRE 1 Fdt) — B e

HE-_Z——-FKr=-Z—%F+=A
=t+—Hi1t FHERETAEEESETT
BERAEADEERMTESHREAZ
BEREST

Hong Kong Mainland China Total
) FEIA 8y
2012 201 2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-C% —F——F “B-CF 5% “B-CF —F——%
$'000 $000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000
T i i i i i
Revenue from external customers — SMERPIMA 537,243 515726 149,119 168,153 686,362 683,879
Inter-segment revenue DEBEA - — 4,839 93 4,839 93
Reportable segment revenue ATEHRIBRA 537,243 515,726 153,958 168,246 691,201 683972
Reportable segment BFEHIDLE
profit/(loss) from operations 23/ (58) 277,565 9,298 (44,922) (78,329) 232,643 (69,027)
Interest income from hank deposits SRR BUA 1,127 2,884 244 887 1,371 3771
Interest expense on bank loans FIEFMESH (5.185) — (7.561) (18,9551) (12,746) (18,951)
Depreciation and amortisation FNTE RS
for the year (15,324) (14,808) (1,980) (3,114) (17,304) (17,922)
Reversal of/(provision for) EREREDNE
impairment losses recognised in BRER/HEESE
profit or loss in respect of (%)
—non-current assets —¥RBEE 272,344 — (2,428) (5,497) 269,916 (5,497)
— trade and other receivables —EWE SR EMBRIA (351) 351 371 10 20 361
Reportable segment assets BEFEHIDERE 1,223,173 1,102,230 66,548 82,906 1,289,721 1,185,136
Additions to non-current segment  ERFEREIHHEE
assets during the year )| 9,095 7927 3,667 7894 12,762 15821
Reportable segment liabilities ~ EF2HAHEE 335,057 96,631 439,233 787,829 774,290 884,460

EBENBEAERA A
T FFR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) BEERIN  HIRBETE)

3 Turnover and segment reporting (Continued) 3 ZETRSPEEER &)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) SPBPERZW (@)
(ii)  Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, (i) ZEFE2HHIPKA - 1B  CEREE
assets and liabilities 2 HIE
2012 2011
—E2—-F —F——F
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Revenue L ON
Reportable segment revenue BT 2mMDIBUYA 691,201 683,972
Elimination of inter-segment revenue "*BZF'EJH& AFREH (4,839) (93)
Consolidated turnover N | 686,362 683,879
Profit/(loss) BRI (EE)
Reportable segment profit/(l0ss) BY2HDIKE
from operations a¥,/ (EE) 232,643 (69,027)
Elimination of inter-segment profits D202 E A TR — —
Reportable segment profit/(10ss) REINREFZBTER
derived from Group’s external DEEF (BE) &
customers and consolidated mERBIAAERN, (FR)
profit/(loss) before taxation 232,643 (69,027)
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets BYEWMPOLEE 1,289,721 1,185,136
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 7 &B 2 1 f& Y BRI T84 (379,756) (380,070)
Consolidated total assets REBEE 909,965 805,066
Liabilities af&
Reportable segment liabilities BYRImOIAE 774,290 884,460
Elimination of inter-segment payables DER 2z R E BRIB RN (379,756) (380,070)
394,534 504,390
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIBBE 3,595 3,453
Consolidated total liabilities SEEERE 398,129 507,843
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (REERTRIN  IRBETE)
3  Turnover and segment reporting (Continued) 3 EXURSPEHER®
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) PBER2W (@)
(iii)  Geographic information (i) HEER
The following table sets out information about the geographic location TR BT B () R E MR P YA K (i)
of (i) the Group’s revenue from external customers and (i) the Group's REBEHETEE BEEENHMAR
fixed assets, intangible assets and other tangible assets (“specified non- BE ([BFEIERBEE]) 2HBEMNEE
current assets”). The geographic location of customers is based on the B BREZHIIBMNERRIESREFP KL
country of establishment of each customer. The geographic location of HEFTEBERME « EFRBEE 21
the specified non-current assets is based on the physical location of BUBRBRBEECERME (WBEE
the assets, in the case of fixed assets and other tangible assets and, BEMEMWBREEE) NEEBEHAEE
the location of the operation to which they are allocated, in the case of ZEEME (MBEMEE) ME -
intangible assets.
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
PREFWA BEFRBEE
2012 2011 2012 2011
—B-——fF —E——F —E-—fF =%
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
e Tt 7T Tt
Hong Kong (place of domicile) & (B 7Hh2h) 463,588 425,577 629,049 363,030
Mainland China R 93D, 119,876 156,290 31,055 32,350
Philippines JEEE 92,176 93,253 — —
Others HbE 10,722 8,759 — —
222,774 258,302 31,055 32,350
686,362 683,879 660,104 395,380
(c)  Major customers (c) FEEF

In 2012, the revenue from the Group’s largest customer which was
served both by the Hong Kong segment and the mainland China
segment amounted to $93,144,000 or 14% of the Group’s total revenue
(2011: $93,706,000 or 14%). The revenue from the Group’s five largest
customers amounted to 39% (2011: 39%) of the Group's total revenue.

Details of concentration of credit risk arising from these customers are
set out in note 26(a).

RZE——F REAEEEBERTH
M 2T 2 AR PRI & 93,144,000
THEAREBERA14%( —T——F
93,706,0007T8k 14%) - REAEBH AR
BEEHURA MG AREBHAIKRAR39% (=
T——4 :39%) °

REZERP 2t H{EE RSN T
26(a) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) SEERIN - HRBEHE)
Other revenue and other net income 4 HtugARHEfSREHE
2012 2011
—E——F —ET——%F
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Other revenue Hithlg A
Interest income from bank deposits RITF 2 FBIA 1,371 3,771
Rental income from investment properties XE%xéf%%E’ﬁﬂ%H&)\ 5,872 5,808
Rental income from property, plant REWE  MERBE
and equipment M S WA 3,099 3,134
Advertising and promotion subsidy EE NS R
(note 28(a)) (P 5 28(a)) 23,240 —
Others HAit 2,089 2,226
35,671 14,939
Other net income Hitlh st F58
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of HEBTEEEZF
fixed assets (1) &F (36) 761
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of HEHMEREEF
other tangible assets AR,/ (58)
— 10 a customer (note) — F—EEF (M) 6,894 —
— to fellow subsidiaries (note 28(a)) — FRRMEBRA R (ME28()) 2,835 —
— others — Hib 1,116 (447)
Net foreign exchange gains PE 3,5 & 7| 641 2,979
Net gain on disposal of intangible assets H&E®EFEE 2 FEEF 4 —
Others HAth 19 26
11,473 3,319
Note:  All of the other tangible assets were fully impaired in prior years and B aE Fﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁéaﬁé%@&ifgi%{ﬁ
the carrying amount was nil. Some of these assets were disposed of BERERAEAT - —LEMBEEE
during the year to a customer who in return agreed to extinguish the RERDEF—BRE P KA S @Y
Group's payables to it. The gain represents the amount of trade payables EE’\J@TJ‘EEIE o BFEEMNE HIREKR
derecognised. LFHERE SRR ©
Reversal of impairment losses/(impairment 5 ¥RBDEEZRESEEED
losses) for non-current assets (R{EEBIR)

Reversal of impairment losses/(impairment losses) for non-current

ERBEEREBERERD, CRERR)

assets represent: 15
2012 2011
—E——F —E——fF
$'000 $'000
T T
Non-current assets relating to BRTBINESHIEREEE
mainland China operation (note 5(a)) (FF5E5(@)) (2,428) (5,497)
Non-current assets relating to ERBABEEFXBHNIERSDEE
Hong Kong manufacturing operation (FF3E5(D))
(note 5(h)) 262,206 —
Investment properties (note 5(c)) EME (M:E5(C) 10,138 —
269,916 (5,497)

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - IRBEEHHE)
5 Reversal of impairment losses/(impairment 5 R EEZREGRIEE
losses) for non-current assets (Continued) (im{EEE)®
The above reversal of impairment losses/(impairment losses) are further LA ERERERRE, (RERIE) 4
analysed as follows: DT
2012 2011
s —E——fF
Note $'000 $'000
BiEE T Ft
Provision for impairment losses: BEEERE
Fixed assets EEE 13(a) (2,284) (1,631)
Other tangible assets HihBREE (144) (3,866)
(2,428) (5,497)
Reversal of impairment losses: REEAERR
Fixed assets o ErEE 13a) 272,344 - —
269,916 (5,497)
(@ Mainland China operation (@ HFERMEE
During 2012 and 2011, the Group noted that the decline in demand for EZE——FRkZZT—F  XEEIE
its products in mainland China compared to previous sales forecasts, EELL R ATASHETER - AR TSR T
as a result of fierce market competition and the operating losses that PUEHR BN AN EEEmE TSR D
consequently arose, were indications that non-current assets of the SIHMAKEBE  ERTBENEEFEBEH
operations in mainland China, comprising mainly the production plant FRBEEANEGAREEE - ELIER
located in Shunde, Guangdong Province and other tangible assets PEEFZRIEMNNERSE BERNEER
may be impaired. The Group assessed the recoverable amounts of the ERHEMBEFEE - AEEFTEZELE
cash-generating unit to which these assets belong (“the China cash- FFEMEeEESMN ((PRBESAES
generating unit”) and as a result the carrying amount of the assets in iz ]) #9A] U B & B8 37 A bt R P B3R &
the China cash-generating unit was written down by $2,428,000 (2011: AEBMMEERMME?24280007T (ZF
$5,497,000), details of which are as follows: ——4F :5,497,0007T) * FIFEWT -
2012 2011
—E——F —T——%F
$'000 $'000
T Ft

Provisions for impairment losses: BEEERE

Fixed assets BEE&E (2,284) (1,631)
Other tangible assets HEiEREE (144) (3,866)

(2,428) (5,497)
The estimates of recoverable amount were based on the assets’ fair A E & EN A DIRBEEN AR ER
values less costs to sell, determined by reference to the observable KHEMA - NEUEEMN A BEMISE
market prices for similar assets. In estimating this amount, the Group BIEREMETE - NEEER T —B8
engaged an independent firm of surveyors, LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors SRIAAE - FEBTRERMAERAF - £8
Limited, who have among their staff Members of the Hong Kong Institute TzHBEERANEMBENERES B RG
of Surveyors. FTULE%E o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) SHEETIN  RBEHE)

5 Reversal of impairment losses/(impairment 5 ERBEEZREGEEO
losses) for non-current assets (Continued) GR{EESE) )

(b) Hong Kong manufacturing operation (b)y BBEEXEK

The Group’s non-current assets relating to the manufacturing operations
in Hong Kong comprise mainly the production plant, an office building
and a warehouse in Hong Kong (“the HK cash-generating unit”). The
Group had recognised impairment losses of $716,167,000 in respect of
the HK cash-generating unit in prior years in order to reduce its carrying
amount to the recoverable amount, which had been determined based
on value-in-use calculations, as the Group could not determine fair
value less costs to sell reliably because there was no basis for making
a reliable estimate of the amount obtainable from the sale of certain
assets belonging to the HK cash-generating unit in an arm’s length
transaction between knowledgeable and willing parties.

In 2012, there was a change in the estimates used to determine the HK
cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount as the Group was able to
determine fair value less costs to sell based on a reliable estimate of the
amount obtainable from the sale in an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable and willing parties for most of the assets belonging
to the HK cash-generating unit, due to recent comparable transaction
data becoming available. The fair value less costs to sell of the HK cash-
generating unit was greater than the value-in-use at 31 December 2012.
Hence, the Group determined the recoverable amount based on the fair
value less costs to sell and reversed a part of the previously recognised
impairment losses in respect of the HK cash-generating unit to the extent
that the revised carrying amount of individual assets does not exceed
the smaller of respective fair value less costs to sell as at 31 December
2012 and what would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.

The estimates of the cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs to
sell were determined by reference to the observable market prices
for similar assets. In estimating this amount, the Group engaged an

AEEEREBEEEGZIERDEET
SREEENEERE  HAKERE
E(&EReEEENM]) - AEEER
BEFEREEBR S EEBMERIA
BMAOEEBEZA WD SR 2 RERIE
716,167,000 7T ° A AREBTRERIENG
FEBALZENAFR S A] SR
HERBRNGEESBMNE TEEMBD
S8 FTAREBRER SEAARE
R SHERRA - B AT & FE R AR IR
FREEEMEE -

E-_T——%F AEBRARECEERSE
SEBNOWE B HEEENE - B
BAHAA R SEEESE  AEE
REEANEANBREBRALZENRATERS
o A SHFHEREE AR EESRM Y
KEBHEEMSNEE  MEBEETAAER
EWERR - R-EBE——F+-A=+—
B BEARSEEEMNAABRENE
RARGEREES - AL AEBERRQ
REREHERANUNECESREEESE
IR AT YR B %8 » 30 3B B 3040 2 A HE R A
REBERERNEELEFTRNERmETE
BER-ZE——F+-_A=+—HHAA
BEREHERS  MENEEERETFE
HEEDREEENESREE -

ReLESMUNARBEREHEERAZME
ARBERUEEN A BRTISERIES
ZMETE - AEEEAT —BLAEMA

independent firm of surveyors, LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited, who Al FEEITRSRMARAR  EET 28
have among their staff Members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. EEBAEMBEGNEXEERME IS
o
2012
—E-—F
$'000
S
Reversal of impairment losses: WEEER
Fixed assets EE&EE 262,206
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

5

(c)

IR R M

(BrABIETIN

BIRBEETE)

Reversal of impairment losses/(impairment 5 R EEZREGRIEE
losses) for non-current assets (Continued) (RERSE)®
Investment properties (c) ®BEWE
The Group had recognised impairment losses of $12,000,000 in respect AEBERBEFEREREMERERT
of its investment properties in prior years in order to reduce its carrying 1B &5 18 12,000,000 TR D EEREE S
amount to the recoverable amount which had been determined based AIYR Bl 58 o AI UK B4 58 THIRIE A 7t (B
on fair value less costs to sell. KIHERAMETE °
In 2012, the Group noted an increase in the investment properties’ T ——F AEEIEIIREDEN
recoverable amount, mainly arising from an increase in the fair value A EleREE N EEBRE AR EREE
less costs to sell, which exceeded the relevant carrying amount. Hence, ERARAIEH - BB T BAEMREE -
the Group reversed previously recognised impairment losses on the It REBRMKEI 2 REENBBNZ
investment properties to the extent that the revised carrying amount T——F+ A=+ —HZARERZEHE
does not exceed the smaller of the fair value less costs to sell as at ERA - UANERETBAEFERERSR
31 December 2012 and what would have been determined had no BEBE  BET2RRRNKEME L
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. JRIEEE o
The estimates of the investment properties’ fair value less costs to REMEDN DR BEREHEEKRA 2 G5TTY
sell were determined by reference to the observable market prices RIBBUEENABRMEBRIELXEM
for similar assets. In estimating this amount, the Group engaged an BT e NEFERT B HEMAT
independent firm of surveyors, LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited, who FEEITRERMABRAR  EBT2HhESE
have among their staff Members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. BREMBeNEEL B RMETILERE -
Profit/(loss) before taxation 6 RRIREIEF (FR)
Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BERTARN, (BE) Bk (5tA) T
HIER :
2012 2011
—EB-=F —E——fF
$'000 $'000
T T+t
(a) Finance costs (a) M%EH
Interest expense on bank loans ARAFANEEERER
wholly repayable within five years ZIRITERN BT 12,746 18,551
Amortisation of transaction costs RITERR SR
for bank loans & i 410 —
Bank charges RITEA 263 2,111
13,419 20,662
(b)  staff costs (b) B T 5
Retirement costs RIKE KA
— Defined contribution — EREHFURIARETE
retirement plans 6,782 6,723
— Defined benefit retirement plan — TREBFRINGTE
(note 23(a)(v)) (B3 23@@)(V)) 3,340 4,340
10,122 11,063
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITERAMER 104,724 101,023
114,846 112,086
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B FE R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (REERTIN  HIRBEHE)
6  Profit/(loss) before taxation (Continued) 6 KMAERF A (B5E)®
2012 2011
—EB-CfF —T——%F
$'000 $'000
T T
(c) Other items (c) Hfttig B
Amortisation s
— Land lease premium (note 13(a)) — A&+ FIE (M 13()) 3,277 4,473
— Other tangible assets — Hiv 5 EE 888 823
Depreciation (note 13(a)) E (MEE13()
— Property, plant and equipment — W% - IR R 10,730 9,747
— Investment properties — B 2,409 2,879
Cost of inventories (note 16) FERA (FFE16) 390,206 383,523
Operating lease charges: RETAEER
minimum lease payments HEAERK
— Land and buildings — T NEE 2,830 2,812
Rental receivable from investment WEME S WA
properties less direct outgoings EEE A 2,949,0007T
of $2,949,000 (2011: $2,932,000) (ZZ——1%F :2,932,000) (2,923) (2,876)
Auditors’ remuneration ZEENEN S
— Provision for the year — KEERBE 3,314 3,156
— Under-provision in respect of prior year — EFERETR 343 282
Reversal of impairment losses for trade FEWE 5 K B BR K
and other receivables (note 17(b)) ZRMERE (MFE17(0) (20) (361)
7 Taxation in the consolidated income 7 IREBRRZMER
statement
(@) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (@) HZEWFERZFABHIE -
represents:
2012 2011
—E-C—fF —E——fF
$'000 $'000
T T

Ccurrent tax — Outside Hong Kong  ZHiFi1E — &Hi& L4

Provision for the year REFERAE (20) (123)
Deferred tax (note 24(a)) B IE (MiEE24(@))
Origination and reversal of AR s PR R

temporary differences (3,448) 512
Income tax (charge)/credit ErS® (1) 5t A (3,468) 389
The statutory tax rate applicable to the Company and other Hong Kong AR REMBBMBRARAEETHER
subsidiaries was 16.5% (2011: 16.5%). No provision for Hong Kong Profits 16.5% (ZF ——4F : 16.5%) - "R Kk
Tax has been made for the Company and other Hong Kong subsidiaries HAb BENE A B B &R R BIEE B
either because the accumulated tax losses brought forward exceed the BEARFE AT ERE R LG HIEE
estimated assessable profits for the year or the entities sustained losses B WEREENGETIELEE -

for taxation purposes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IR R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (REEETRIN  IRBETH)
7  Taxation in the consolidated income 7 BREWBBRZMER ®
statement (Continued)
(@) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (@) HZEWERZABHE: (8
represents: (Continued)
The statutory tax rate applicable to the subsidiaries established in the AR B A 7 OB B A B E TE B R A 25%
PRC was 25% (2011: 25%). No provision for current taxation has been ZE——F 1 25%) c FERAHFEIKIA
made for the subsidiaries established in the PRC because the entities B A BRI RIS B 18 - MRt AR
sustained losses for taxation purposes. FEDIEEL B -
Provision for current tax outside Hong Kong for 2012 and 2011 TE R CE——FEEB UK
represented a withholding tax levied at 10% on interest income earned MIEREE —FFPECEERAMB A
in the PRC by a subsidiary which is a non-PRC resident according to the 7 BIERRABERFEG EERHH
relevant rules and regulations of the PRC. FRBR1S T SEUATERBI10%TBIRFTIS T ©
(b) Reconciliation between income tax charge/(credit) (b) FrEHXH  (GtA) BExtER
and accounting profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates: (B1E) 25E
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——fF
$'000 $'000
Tt T
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREATEF, (E8) 232,643 (69,027)
Notional tax on profit/(loss) before WEBBET AR @A X
taxation calculated at the rates BB AT AT, (B18) stE 2 fhtiiE
applicable to the tax jurisdictions
concerned 34,880 (18,159)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses — RAJ IR~ FiIB S & 3,917 4,865
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue FEBBIRA Z BB 2 (403) (291)
Tax effect of contribution to EREFE R g
retirement benefit plan (1,696) —
Tax effect of tax losses and temporary — RELEES E#ER 2 I8 E5 18
differences not recognised RERMER HIETE
for deferred tax purposes 7,574 16,095
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses FER LRI ARERNTRISERBZHETE
previously unrecognised (37,898) (1,261)
Others HAh (2,906) (1,638)
Actual tax charge/(credit) FriEfikt (5t A) 3,468 (389)
BABE NS ERmARAR]

T FFIR




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Rk At

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) SHEERIN - HRBEHE)
8 Directors’ remuneration 8 EFds
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong BIEBEEBRNRENE 161 1ENR ETREZ
Kong Companies Ordinance and the requirements of the Listing Rules is HEWBRECEEMEHmT
as follows:
2012
“E-CF
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors’ benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
He FERER MERA BARSHER a5
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $’000
Tr T Tr Tr Tr
Executive director HITES
Peter K.Y Tam EER 2,037 - 315 2,352
Non-executive directors EHTES
Ramon S. Ang R — = — _
Carlos Antonio M. Berba SER = = = =
Thelmo Luis . Cunanan Jr. Thelmo Luis O. Cunanan Jr. = — — —
Taro Matsunaga TKAED = = = =
Benjamin P Defensor Jr. B — — — —
Chan Wen Meg, May (Michelle) REX — — — —
Teruyuki Daino RERRE — — _ _
Shobu Nishitani BEAME — — — —
Roberto N. Huang =ER — — — —
Reynato S. Puno Reynato S. Puno = s — — —
Independent non-executive BYEHTES
directors
David K.P Li FEE = = = = =
WS. Ng R - - - - -
Carmelo L. Santiago ki3] — - - - —
Adrian M. K. Li ERE — = — — _
- 2,037 — 315 2,352

The executive director waived entitlement to his director’s fees. All of
the non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors
waived their entitlements to all their emoluments.

WITESCHERES - PIEFRNITES
NBUIFMTERCREEMEME -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | Bf#&3R &Mzt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - IRBEEHHE)
8 Directors’ remuneration (Continued) 8 E=FEMe®
2011
—T——F
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors’ benefits Discretionary scheme
fees inkind bonuses contributions Total
e e R, RETEAT RIKSHET aF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'00
T T T T T
Executive director HITES
Peter K.Y. Tam EER — 1,919 — 275 2,194
Non-executive directors EHITES
Ramon S. Ang R — — — — _
Carlos Antonio M. Berba SER — — — — —
Thelmo Luis O. Cunanan Jr. Thelmo Luis O. Cunanan Jr. — — — — —
Taro Matsunaga N — - - - -
Benjamin P, Defensor Jr. HER — — — — —
Chan Wen Meg, May (Michelle) REX - - - - -
Teruyuki Daino RER= — — — _ _
Shobu Nishitani BEAMER — — — — —
Ricky Y.T. Cheung R — — _ _ _
Motoyasu Ishihara BRER — — — — —
Keisuke Nishimura AREN - - - - -
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
David K.P Li FEE - — — — -
WS.Ng REERT - - - - -
Carmelo L. Santiago i3 — — — — —
Adrian M. K. Li TRIE — — — — —
— 1,919 — 275 2,194
The executive director waived entitlement to his director’s fees. All of HITEEOHNEHWES - FTEIFRITES
the non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors LB IENTEECHEELMAEMS -

waived their entitlements to all their emoluments.

EBENBEAERA A
T FFIR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) SHEETIN OB EHE)
9 Individuals with highest emoluments 9 BHMemEZAR
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one (2011: one) is BEERPRABAEFR  —F(ZF——F:
director whose emoluments are included in note 8. The aggregate of the —%Z) BESR (EMS O M8 HE) -
emoluments in respect of the remaining four (2011: four) individuals are HHgWE (ZE—F 0% e se
as follows: ZANBZBE@FENT
2012 2011
—E-——F —E——fF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Salaries and other emoluments e MoRah 5,777 5,607
Retirement scheme contributions RIREHR 863 757
6,640 6,364
The emoluments of the four (2011: four) individuals with the highest ME (ZE2E——F: W) Memzaz A
emoluments are within the following bands: BZMEomT
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——fF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AEHE ANEHE
$1,000,001 to $1,500,000 1,000,001 7T £ 1,500,000 7T 2 2
$1,500,001 to $2,000,000 1,500,001 7T £ 2,000,000 7T 2 2
10 Profit/(loss) attributable to equity 10 FLAFESBBEAELERT
shareholders of the Company (B548)
The consolidated profit/(loss) attributable to equity shareholders of the RN E NEEESRF (BEB)

Company includes a loss of $117,843,000 (2011: profit of $13,472,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
(note 25(a)).

BIEEIE117,843,000 (ZE——F : &
F113,472,0007T) BT AR &) M #RER
(PftzE 25(0)) °
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Hft2EE &

Hit2H WSS BONHBATE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

11 Other comprehensive income 1

Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive income

2012 2011
—E-Cf 25
Before-tax Tax Net-oftax Before-tax Tax  Net-of-tax
amount effect amount amount effect amount
REASE BEYE RUERSE KR TEYE BRESS
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr Tr T T T
(note 24(a)) (note 24(a)
(Fff=E 24(a)) (B3 24(a))
Exchange differences on BXEE:
translation of:
— financial statements of —BEBINIB AR
subsidiaries outside BEREMEE
Hong Kong ZERER 245 — 245 (31,863) — (31,863)
— monetary items that form — REAREERHB AT
part of the net investment in ZIREMGHEIER
subsidiaries outside FrEEZERZER
Hong Kong (84) — (84) 17,973 — 17,973
161 — 161 (13,890) — (13,890)
Actuarial gains and losses of ERRARIRE
defined benefit retirement plan IRERFIRER
(note 23(a)(vi) (PR EF 23(a)(vi) (18,029) 3,306 (14,723) (11,818) 95 (11,723)
Other comprehensive income Hib 2 A (17,868) 3,306  (14,562) (25,708) 95 (25,613)
12 Earnings/(loss) per share 12 SBEREH (58)

(@) SREXEF (FHH)

BREXRAN (BB DREARD
RIEEEAEAEGERN,(EE) &£
239,854,000 T ( =% — — 4 : 53,464,000
TC) RARFEANE 17,2 373,570,560 f%

(@) Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of basic earnings/(l0ss) per share is based on the profit/
(loss) attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of $239,854,000
(2011: $53,464,000) and on 373,570,560 (2011: 373,570,560) ordinary
shares, being the number of ordinary shares in issue throughout the

year. TR (2= ——4F : 373,570,560 R & i@
B 5 -
(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (by #EWEZEBREF (FHE)

By 8BRAEN, (BR) YARTIL -
RAARRIRAE AEFIEREE L AR
b

The diluted earnings/(loss) per share is not presented as the Company
did not have dilutive potential ordinary shares for both years presented.

EBENBEAERA A
T FFR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) SHEERIN  HRBEHE
13 Fixed assets 13 BEEEE
(@) The Group (@) ZA£H
Property, plant and equipment Interests in
X HERRA leasehold land
Land and Machinery, held for own
buildings equipment, use under Total
held for  furniture Motor Construction Investment  operating fixed
own use and fixtures  vehicles in progress  Sub-total properties leases assets
ERERET
ARt #E- RE- BRMmEEN @t
REE GAR%SE BH ERIE A REVE REInER BEREE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T T T T
Cost: B
At 1January 2011 W-E—%—HF—H 988,801 1,661,431 16,583 348 2,667,163 121,422 121,321 2,909,906
Exchange adjustments B 5 AR 20,893 35,264 581 17 56,755 — 2,480 59,235
Additions N 635 8,320 85 809 9,849 133 — 9,982
Transfer from construction in progress & & A2 T2 — 803 — (803) — — — —
Disposals HE (775) (10,995) (403) — (12,173) — (1,247) (13,420)
At 31 December 2011 WZE——F+=-F=1+—H 100955 1,694,823 16,846 3N 2,721,594 121,555 122,554 2,965,703
Accumulated amortisation, 2EE  WERAESS
depreciation and
impairment losses:
At 1January 2011 RZE——%—F—H 837,308 1,594,525 16,556 348 2,448,737 38,538 24,620 2,511,895
Exchange adjustments B 5 5% 20,893 35,264 581 17 56,755 — 796 57,551
Charge for the year (note 6(c)) FRES (FF6(0) 4,585 5,130 32 — 9,747 2,879 4,473 17,099
Impairment losses (note 5) AEESE (ME5) — 1,625 — 6 1,631 — — 1,631
Written back on disposals HERR (775) (10,538) (403) — (11,716) — (428) (12,144)
At 31 December 2011 WZE—F+ZA=+—H 862011 1,626,006 16,766 371 2,505,154 41,417 29,461 2,576,032
Net book value: IREFE
At 31 December 2011 R-E—F+-A=1+—-H 147,543 68,817 80 — 216,440 80,138 93,093 389,671
Cost: BA:
At 1 January 2012 R-E——%—F—H 1,009,554 1,694,823 16,846 371 2,721,594 121,555 122,554 2,965,703
Exchange adjustments EXRE (93) (172) (12) - (277) - (11) (288)
Additions NE 614 8,895 117 1,965 11,591 11 29 11,731
Transfer from construction in progress &% B 2 T 12 1,528 437 - (1,965) - - = =
Disposals & — (20,383) (2,974) — (23,357) — — (23,357)
At 31 December 2012 RZZ——F+-A=+—H 1,011,603 1,683,600 13,977 371 2,709,551 121,666 122,572 2,953,789
Accumulated amortisation, RitEs  TERAERE
depreciation and
impairment losses:
At 1January 2012 R-E-——%—-HF—H 862,011 1,626,006 16,766 371 2,505,154 41,417 29,461 2,576,032
Exchange adjustments [E 5 B (93) (170) (12) - (275) - - (275)
Charge for the year (note 6(c)) EREY (F1FE6(0) 4,623 6,043 64 - 10,730 2,409 3,277 16,416
Impairment losses (note 5) EER (K:5) 1,665 619 - - 2,284 - - 2,284
Reversal of impairment losses (note 5) JRfEEsEEE (MiE5) (261,201) — - —  (261,201)  (10,138) (1,005)  (272,344)
Written back on disposals HEHE —  (20,028) (2,974) — (23,002 — — (23,002
At 31 December 2012 R-Z——%+-F=+—H 607,005 1,612,470 13,844 371 2,233,690 33,688 31,733 2,299,111
Net book value: REFE
At 31 December 2012 ZE-CZF+ZA=t-H 404,598 71,130 133 — 475,861 87,978 90,839 654,678
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

13
(b)

Fixed assets (Continued)

IR R M

(BrABIETIN

IR D)

13 BEEEE (&)

The Company (b) ZF&7F
) Interests in
Property, plant and equipment leasehold
- HRRRE land held
Landand  Machinery, for own
buildings  equipment, use under
held for furniture Motor operating Total
own use and fixtures vehicles  Sub-total leases fixed assets
EEEHET
BALH HE RfE- BAMSEN
REE GHRER BH &5 REIHER SHETEE
$'000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000
I I T i A aw
Cost: BA:
At 1 January 2011 RZE—F—-f-H 495,793 958,402 4,822 1,459,017 74,134 1,533,151
Additions nE 535 7073 85 7,693 - 7693
Disposals HeE — (7,289) — (7,289) — (7,289)
At 31 December 2011 RZE—F+-A=+-H 496,328 958,186 4,907 1,459,421 74,134 1,533,555
Accumulated amortisation, Ritl  TERAEFE:
depreciation and
impairment losses:
At 1 January 2011 WZE——F—-f-A 399,720 891,645 4,795 1,296,160 10,466 1,306,626
Charge for the year ERFEY 2974 5,049 32 8,05 2247 10,302
Written back on disposals HEEM — 7,193 — 7193 — (7193
At 31 December 2011 RZE—E+-R=+-H 402,694 889,501 4,827 1,297,022 12,713 1,309,735
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2011 W-E——%+-f=1+-H 93,634 68,685 80 162,399 61,421 223820
Cost; BA:
At 1 January 2012 WZE-—%-A-H 496,328 958,186 4907 1,459,421 74134 1,533,555
Additions NE 368 8,416 117 8,901 - 8,901
Disposals HE - (18,600) (472) (19,072) - (19,072)
At 31 December 2012 WZE-—%+-R=1-H 496,696 948,002 4,552 1,449,250 74,134 1,523,384
Accumulated amortisation, ZitB%  MERAESE
depreciation and
impairment losses:
At 1 January 2012 R-ZT——%—F—H 402,694 889,501 4,827 1,297,022 12,713 1,309,735
Charge for the year FARX 2,976 5,991 64 9,031 2,247 11,278
Reversal of impairment losses REEEED (248,011) — —  (248,011) (1,005 (249,016)
Written back on disposals HERED — (18,505) (472) (18,977) - (18,977)
At 31 December 2012 NZE——F+-A=1—H 157,659 876,987 4419 1,039,065 13,955 1,053,020
Net book value; RERE :
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+-F=1+—H 339,037 71,015 133 410,185 60,179 470,364
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) SHEETIN  RBEHE)
13 Fixed assets (Continued) 13 BEEEE &
(c) The analysis of net book value of properties is as (c) THIREFEZZHFWOT :
follows:
The Group The Company
rEE b N
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-——fF —E——F —E-—fF —E——F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $°'000
T T T Tt
Medium term leases FHRFRE i
— in Hong Kong — BB 552,755 289,102 399,216 155,055
— outside Hong Kong — FELAS 30,660 31,672 — —
583,415 320,774 399,216 155,055
Representing: i N
Land and buildings held Rt EEE
for own use 404,598 147,543 339,037 93,634
Investment properties EYE 87,978 80,138 — —
Interests in leasehold land FREHETBEAMBER
held for own use FHEE TR
under operating leases 90,839 93,093 60,179 61,421
583,415 320,774 399,216 155,055
(d) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases (d) REHETZBETEEE
The Group leases out investment properties which are located at Nos. REERBELLEHEBUREEPHKXE
9-11 Shing Wan Road, Tai Wai, Shatin, Hong Kong, and certain items BRI 1MHEZZREMERE LR
of property, plant and equipment in the PRC (see note 28(a)(iv)) under % - W2R MR (R MEE28@)iv) B
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of two to e MOFH—BAE-_E=F " T EER
three years, with an option to renew each lease upon expiry at which FEHABETHY  ENEEFETME
time all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent B% - BEMRLBTaExXAES -
rentals.
The Group's total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable AREERBETAMESEHEmEK Z &
operating leases are receivable as follows: RIEZHIEMNT ¢
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——fF
$'000 $'000
T T
Investment properties REMHE
Within 1 year —F R 4,211 2,477
After 1 year but within 5 years —FBIMAFA 442 676
4,653 3,153
Property, plant and equipment WE - SR RE
Within 1 year —FR — 3,207
After 1 year but within 5 years —FEEAFA — —

= 3,207
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

13
(e)

14

Fixed assets (Continued)

IR R M

(B BEIETI - B H)

13

The fair value of the investment properties at 31 December 2012 is  (e)
$236,730,000 (2011: $147,940,000), which is valued on an open market
basis assuming sale with existing tenancies by using the investment
method and otherwise with vacant possession by using the sales
comparison approach. The valuation was carried out by an independent
firm of surveyors, LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited, who have
among their staff Members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with
valuation experience in the location and category of property being

valued.

EERE (&)

REWEN_ZE——F+_A=+—B2
IS {E{E A236,730,0007C (—F——4 :
147,940,000 7C) * A AR T {E ALEBIVER
B o WRIMAAAHEFTRREMERA
EFRETHE RZRHFBE R EIRR
MRA S LLESRHEITHE  (AETYHRB
SOBIERNITRIEBRI TR SR AR A FHETT
HEEpmatlsMaanstes
EFEERENE RER EBHEK
gﬁ °

Intangible assets 14 ELEE
The Group The Company
b1 | b O
Club Club
Trademarks  debentures Total Trademarks debentures Total

BE  efEER &3t B  efEER &t

$'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000

i i it it T T
Cost: B
At 1 January 2011 nZE——%—-f—H 39,16 6,301 45,417 39,116 5,031 44147
Exchange adjustments RS — 62 62 — — —
At 31 December 2011 RZE—F+ZA=+-H 39,116 6,363 45479 39,116 5,031 44,147
Accumulated amortisation ZiEERAERE .

and impairment losses:
At 1 January 2011 W-F——%-A-H 39,116 623 39,739 39,116 — 39,116
Exchange adjustments fE 5 AR — 31 31 — — —
At 31 December 2011 WZE——F+-f=1-H 9,116 654 39,770 39,116 — 39,116
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2011 WZE——%F+-A=1—H — 5,709 5,709 — 5,031 5,031
Cost; B
At 1 January 2012 RZE-—%—A—H 39,116 6,363 45,479 39,116 5,031 44,147
Disposals HE — (660) (660) — — —
Exchange adjustments fE 5 EE — 1 1 - — —
At 31 December 2012 WZE-—F+-A=1—H 39,116 5,704 44,820 39,116 5,031 44,147
Accumulated amortisation ZHEHERAESE
and impairment losses:

At 1 January 2012 RZE-—%—A—H 39,116 654 39,770 39,116 - 39,116
Written back on disposals HEEME — (376) (376) - — —
Exchange adjustments [ AR = = = — — —
At 31 December 2012 WZE-—F+-A=1—-H 39,116 278 39,394 39,116 - 39,116
Net book value: BEEE .
At 31 December 2012 RZE-—F+-A=1—-H = 5,426 5,426 - 5,031 5,031
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AEHERIN - GIRBEEE)

15 MELFRER

The Company

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

15 Investments in subsidiaries

ARATE]
2012 2011
—E——F —E——fF
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
Unlisted investments, at cost FEETIRGD (BRAAAN) 603,249 603,249
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEU B B A B BRIE 1,167,616 789,855
1,770,865 1,393,104
Less: Impairment losses B REEE (1,149,906) (776,567)
620,959 616,537

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no
fixed repayment terms. The entire balance is expected to be recovered
after more than one year.

Impairment losses on investments in subsidiaries represent the write
down of the carrying values of the investment cost and receivables from
certain subsidiaries to their recoverable amounts.

In 2012, the Company made an advance of $372,369,000 to San Miguel
Shunde Holdings Limited, which further injected the same into San

JE YT 8~ RI BRI MK - B 08
BREEERY - BHZ &SN BE—F
gimE -

B N Rl AR B ES R IR R A R B AR
NEME T B A RBRIENREEZE A
W E e -

BT —ZF A2 A{E FSan Miguel
Shunde Holdings Limited 372,369,000 7t -

Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited in the form of registered
capital. The Company recognised full impairment on the advance made
during 2012, which amounted to $372,369,000.

The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries of the

Company:

Name of company

DNEEE

Place of
incorporation/
operation
Ealiys Ay

Issued share
capital/registered
capital

BITRA
&R

PR LA —
RAMEMER - R

FEERNEN (BR) BEHAR
T——_FR AR

FIEBULERER T 2BRE 8

372,369,000 7T °

TREFIKRRRIAENB

Proportion of
ownership
interest held by
Company Subsidiary
FiREE D

AN A NG

NCIEISRE

Principal
activity

ERER

Best Investments

International Inc.

Hongkong Brewery

Limited (note (i)

) (HF3E ()

M)

British Virgin Islands

RBELES

Hong Kong

e

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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50,000

ordinary shares
of US$1 each
50,000 %
BREE1ET
=3 il

60,000,000
preference shares
of US$1 each
60,000,000 %
FREE1ZET
ZEER

100

ordinary shares
of $1 each

100 A%
BREE1T
=5 iili s

100% —

100% —

100% —

Investment
holding

REEK

Dormant

Emax
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

IR R M

(BRABITIN  BIREBFHEH)

15 MEAFESRE &)

Proportion of

15 Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of Issued share ownership
incorporation/ capital/registered interest held by Principal
Name of company operation capital Company Subsidiary activity
Ealilavgd ERITRAE FiERERD L
A ERE & B &R AN H] HEATR FTEER
Ravelin Limited Hong Kong 10,000,000 100% — Property
ordinary shares holding
of $1 each
BB 10,000,000 % RaEME
BREE1T
3 iiliks

San Miguel (Guangdong) Hong Kong 18,000 92.989% — Investment
Limited class “A” shares holding

of US$500 each
N (ER) GRAF B 18,000 A% REER
BIREES00%ETT
2 (A IR
1,000 100% —
class “B” shares
of $1 each
1,000 %
GREE1T
2 (B) %
Guangzhou San Miguel PRC Registered capital: — 70% Distribution
Brewery Company US$36,507,000 of beer
Limited (“GSMB™) (note (ii))
BN AEEEBRAF H A SHE R
(MM A5 1) (F3E (i) 36,507,000 7T
San Miguel Shunde Holdings Hong Kong 200,000 92% — Investment
Limited ordinary shares holding
of $10 each

B 200,000 f% REEZR
BREE10T
=il

San Miguel (Guangdong) PRC Registered capital: — 100% Manufacture
Brewery Company US$39,933,000 and sale
Limited (“SMGB”™) (note (iii)) of beer

£ (BR) BHEARAT FE FEED Y 1% 4 65 IR
(M D REEER 1) (M5 i) 39,933,000 7¢

Notes: BEE

0]

(i)

(ii)

Hongkong Brewery Limited (“HKBL") has not traded since incorporation (i)

but it established a jointly controlled entity, namely Global Brews Hong
Kong Limited in Hong Kong on 18 March 2011 with an authorised share
capital of $10,000 divided into 1,000 shares at $10 each. HKBL holds a
50% equity interest in this entity. As at the date of the approval of these
financial statements, the jointly controlled entity has not commenced its
operations yet.

GSMB is an equity joint venture formed between the Company’s
subsidiary, San Miguel (Guangdong) Limited, and Guangzhou Brewery.
According to the joint venture agreement, GSMB has an operating period
of 30 years expiring on 29 November 2020.

SMGB is a wholly-foreign owned enterprise with an operating period of
50 years expiring on 4 August 2042.

(ii)

(iii)

Hongkong Brewery Limited ([ HKBLJ)
BEMARIAR - —ERBETEM
R BRZZ——F=A+N\BRE
PR T — i 44 & Global Brews Hong
Kong Limited #) £ FIE I E 88 (AT
& 787 10,000 7T + FA 1,000 IR B AR E 1B
10TBD4EMK) ~HKBLEF B ZERE
D2 ATIRE - BERMBREIEZ
H - Z ARSI BB RARE R -

BMENRBERARTIANARZHEB
NEIENE (FER) BRAQ T HENE
B 2 B ERE AR - IRBEEES
Lk RRRIZEERA=TE R
—E-TF+—A=tNABER -

£ (ER) BEARARRRINAE
Bh¥ BAKEHL+F RZF
m—FNAEAER

EBENBEAERA A
T FFIR




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FE R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN  HIRBEEHHE)
16 Inventories 16 =&
The Group The Company
rEE b/
2012 2011 2012 2011
=F—=F T 5% =B-=F —TF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
T T T T
Products in hand REEMRER®
and in process 38,796 40,027 31,215 28,493
Materials and supplies Ykt R e 17,266 25,139 14,658 15,841
56,062 65,166 45,873 44,334
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense is ERRARI 2 FESEITNT :
as follows:
The Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E——fF =
$'000 $'000
Ft T
Carrying amount of inventories sold HEFERAE 389,100 382,389
Write down of inventories FE MR 1,106 1,134
Total (note 6(C)) =8 (M 6() 390,206 383,523

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

17 Trade and other receivables

IR R M

(BRABITIN  BIREBFHEH)

17 BEESRHEMER

The Group
TEE
2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
$'000 $'000
Tt FIT
Trade receivables EWE 5 8R1E 77,992 85,553
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B RIBEREHE (FIRE17(0))
(note 17(b)) (10,525) (11,216)
67,467 74,337
Other debtors, deposits HEmpEleR - &e
and prepayments MIEfTFRIE 15,259 14,266
82,726 88,603
The Company
b YN
2012 2011
—E——F —ET——%F
$'000 $'000
Fix T
Trade receivables EYE 58RI 62,709 67,433
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts W REBEREE (BIRE17(00)
(note 17(b)) (526) (1,057)
62,183 66,376
Other debtors, deposits HEEUER - Ze
and prepayments KIEfTFRIE 11,728 9,186
73,911 75,562

The amount of the Group’s and the Company’s deposits and
prepayments expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses after
more than one year is $1,254,000 (2011: $1,421,000) and $664,000 (2011:
$681,000) respectively. All of the other trade receivables, other debtors,
deposits and prepayments are expected to be recovered or recognised
as expenses within one year.

REBRAQBEFZ R —FEAURE L
BRATHNEE RENFESEI A
1,254,0007t (=& ——4F : 1,421,0007T)
% 664,0007T (ZZF——4F : 681,0007T) °
i HAab e E 5 BRTE Rk H b R UL AR - 1%
& RIEN FEEE—F R R E 85 1
B -

EBENBEAERA A
T FFIR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) SEERIN - HRBEHE)
17 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 177 BRESHRAEMRE (@
The Group and the Company hold the following collateral over trade AEBEANARIEEZEHERE ZRE
receivables at the end of the reporting period. FHUTERR
The Group The Company
AEE N
2012 2011 2012 2011
—B-—=F —ET——%F —B-CfF =%
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
7 Tt T T
Buildings S 26,943 22,425 16,250 11,730
Cash deposits WeFR 6,175 11,651 10,096 1,050
Bank guarantees HRITHER 500 500 500 500
Cash deposits disclosed above and note 17(b) are included in the VAE RMIRE 17(b) FI R IR £ 7 5 5 AR
Group’s and the Company’s other creditors and accrued charges EERARBEFEZRN —FB I MHHEM
expected to be settled after more than one year, as disclosed in note 21. FETRRTE - PAMIRE21 K FE -
The Group considers that the credit risk arising from the trade AEERBLMERRAE T REKESEK
receivables is mitigated by the collateral in the amounts indicated above. HHEERR - HFMEEERERDER
The value of the building collateral represents the estimated market —TE——F+-A=+—HHWE-
value of the buildings as at 31 December 2012.
(@) Ageing analysis (@ BREkDAT
The ageing of trade receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts) at FEWE 5R1E (MR REREE) REE
the end of the reporting period is as follows: B BRECLNT -
The Group The Company
rEE AATF
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F —E——fF —E——F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T FIT Tt Tt
Current AEIHR 51,234 56,054 50,827 53,197
Less than 1 month past due BEAE DR —EA 9,361 11,128 9,140 10,936
11to 3 months past due BER 7% Z=fEA 1,980 4,147 1,229 1,732
More than 3 months but BEIRA=EA
less than 12 months past due E2—FR 2,668 849 957 511
More than 12 months past due  @BEIHZR—F 2,224 2,159 30 —
67,467 74,337 62,183 66,376
According to the Group’s credit policy set out in note 26(a), the general RIEH T A KR 26() NEBREEESR -
credit period is payment by the end of the month following the month —REERHEEANEN AN TERD
in which sales took place. Therefore, all the current balances above are B o Eitt - EIFTAREIBISSBHTEER
within two months from the invoice date. A A& M E A R EE o

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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IR R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (REERTRIN  IRBETE)
17 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 177 BRESRAEMRE (@
(b) Impairment of trade receivables (b) EWEZREZRERSE

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded using
an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of
the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off
against trade receivables directly (see note 1()(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year is as
follows:

BRABKE 5 RBENFEBRSBRER
FOEE - BRI MBS A W R BRI D
B EIIERT @ BESESERERK
B RIETMEE (HRE10)3) °

FERRBERRORBNT -

The Group The Company
TEE FNN|
2012 2011 2012 2011
—B-—F —ET——%F e —ET——%F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
At 1 January n—H—H 11,216 11,365 1,057 1,677
Exchange adjustments [ 5 A (4) 481 — —
Impairment loss recognised BEBEER 432 966 400 864
Impairment loss written back BB E 1B R [ (452) (1,327) (49) (1,215)
Uncollectible amounts Ptk =R Nl
written off (667) (269) (882) (269)
At 31 December BW+—-—A=+—H 10,525 11,216 526 1,057

At 31 December 2012, the Group’s and the Company’s trade receivables
of $12,878,000 (2011: $17,233,000) and $655,000 (2011: $2,694,000)
respectively were individually determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivables were balances in dispute with customers or
related to customers that were in financial difficulties and management
assessed that only a portion of the receivables is expected to be
recovered. Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful debts of
$10,525,000 (2011: $11,216,000) and $526,000 (2011: $1,057,000) were
recognised by the Group and the Company respectively. The Group and
the Company hold the following collateral over these balances:

R-ZT——F+-_A=+—0 K&EEK
AN RS EUE 5 R IE E A 12,878,000 7T
— T ——4 :17,233,0007T) % 655,000
T (ZF——4 : 2,694,0007T) 1% {E 5 7
TERE o ERIAREEIEZHRMNZ AR
B EERE  mEERETN - RAEHHD
FRIERI AU - #RARE B FIAR D R D BIE
10,525,0007C ( —Z — — £ : 11,216,000
7T) }.526,0007T (—ZZ——4% : 1,057,000
JC) B REREE - NEBERAR BRI

FRRBGRER AR

The Group The Company
rEE b YN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—B-—F —E——%F —B-=fF —ET——F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Buildings ES — 10,695 — —
Cash deposits REFNR 1,075 1,593 = —
BEENEERE R QA

T FFIR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) SEERIN - HRBEHE)

17 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 177 BRESHRAEMRE (@

(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired (c) REFEREFBEZEVRESKRE
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither individually nor RATEREER  EIE 5 RIERE AT
collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

The Group The Company
TEE AAT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-—F —E——%F —B——F —T——%F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
o Tt T Tt
Neither _F)_E%S_t_EjP_e_E‘Pf_‘E‘?P_air_e_q____%?_'J:Hﬁﬁiﬁf*ﬁﬁiﬁi______________?_1'_1_€§ __________ 52761 50793 52,204
Less than 1 month past due BEIE AL 1Iﬂ 9,362 11,109 9.140 10,915
1to 3 months past due BEIE 75'5 ={&A 1,978 4,033 1,227 1,620
More than 3 months but WwEAR F%J
less than 12 months past due 2—FR 2,605 338 894 —
More than 12 months pastdue  #@HIB AZR+ —@A 1 79 — —
13,946 15,559 11,261 12,535
65,114 68,320 62,054 64,739
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide REEARMERB 2 BWE SRIE - 94
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default. WA B RE RS E P - PRATME
B -
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of BEENMEREBNE ZPRIEELZZE
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group. RIFERCENERNESBRE - IBATE
Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment B ARHEEETESANNE  T1EE
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not FEEmZER E L FUEEL B E - RRDR
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still A iE L 45 R GRIA AT 2 FRUR[E] o $El&$
considered fully recoverable. The Group and the Company hold the NRIBA LRGSR EEARAT
following collateral over these balances.
The Group The Company
TEH PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E—=F —T——%F e —ET——%F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tt T Tt
Buildings UES 2,972 — — —

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) SEERIN - HIRBEHE)
18 Amounts due from/(to) holding companies, 18 MBWESEMRELT - RRHE
fellow subsidiaries and related companies AFIRREATFIERIE
Amounts due from/(to) holding companies, fellow subsidiaries and BTHESHIBELZES ﬂsﬁxiﬁﬁﬂ\ ' JE
related companies are unsecured, interest-free and do not have fixed H&&Fﬂﬂ “’“7 EES =NV
repayment terms except for the following trade-related amounts which NTIEEEGEEHE B8 &4&$ TlEE
are repayable under normal trade terms: Hﬂ
The Group The Company
rEE NN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—B-—F —E——%F —B-CfF —E——F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tt Tt Tt
Amounts due from holding FEUIZERR A &)
companies and fellow RRZWBARRIE
subsidiaries 9,324 12,071 6,597 12,071
Amounts due to holding FETIERR A A
companies and fellow KR ZH B A FERE
subsidiaries (1,713) (10,229) (1,713) (9,419)
Amounts due to related e EAE A RIRRIA
companies (4,423) (2,324) (2,195) (172)
The trade-related balances were not past due as at 31 December 2012 HESGHB EFR T —ZFR=F
and 2011. ——F+-A=F+—HIKREH-
Related companies included a non-controlling shareholder and BE N A BIEIEE Hxﬂx%&ﬁﬁ—m? /N
companies whose ultimate holding company has a significant influence RIEAEBRARRIEEAFENR
over the Group and the Company.
19 Pledged deposits and cash and cash 19 EHER HeRERRELRE
equivalents
(@) Pledged deposits (a) EHRER
At 31 December 2011, the Group and the Company had deposits of RZE—F+ZA=+—0 AEBEK
$198,000,000 pledged to secure the Group's banking facilities, the details XA A)1F A 198,000,000 TT #R 1T 15 58 A& ¥
of which are set out in note 20. All of the pledged deposits were released RIBITEEMER FIRIT - 57 RAM
in 2012. 20 MEEREFRERZTE—ZFRE
e
(b) cash and cash equivalents comprise: (b)y RERZFERRELBEERE:
The Group The Company
AEE AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E——F —E—F —E-—F —E——F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
ST T Stow R
Bank deposits within FH R Ef A
three months of BR=MEAN
maturity when placed BIERITIF R 66,050 12,371 54,452 895
Cash at bank and in hand RITHEGFELRS 34,854 33,215 19,451 15,448
Cash and cash equivalents RE SRR
in the consolidated statement ~ R&FAIRESRERT
of financial position and FReMERREIER
consolidated cash flow
statement 100,904 45,586 73,903 16,343
BB NS ERERA T

—E—

ZFFR




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

19

(c)

Pledged deposits and cash and cash

equivalents (Continued)

B FE R M

(BRmEERIN

B )

19 ERER AeRERBRLRKHE

(#8)

Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before taxation to cash () BBARA A (FE) AEEEE>
used in operations: RERHFAIHR
2012 2011
—EB-=fF —ET——F
Note $'000 $'000
k=3 T T
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRERI AT (E518) 232,643 (69,027)
Adjustments for: M THNFIEEL AR
Amortisation of land lease premium TE L FIE 2 B 6(C) 3,277 4,473
Amortisation of other tangible assets HivBEEEZBIE 6(C) 888 823
Depreciation of property, plant M - MR RREITE
and equipment 6(C) 10,730 9,747
Depreciation of investment properties &M% 2T E 6(c) 2,409 2,879
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ ERBEE
impairment losses for CREEIERE)
non-current assets RERE 5 (269,916) 5,497
Reversal of impairment losses for FEUE 5 R H hBRIR
trade and other receivables BB IR D 6(C) (20) (367)
Interest expense FESZH 6(a) 12,746 18,551
Interest income FLEMA 4 (1,371) 3,771
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of PEREEEZ
fixed assets FEB (BF) 4 36 (761)
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of HEEMEEEZ
other tangible assets F(&BF) EsiE 4 (10,845) 447
Net gain on disposal of HEEREEZFAEF
intangible assets 4 (4) —
Foreign exchange gains INEE R 2 B R (1,304) (21,460)
Changes in working capital: HEEREE
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BEZRL, (5m) 9,104 (15,394)
Decrease/(increase) in trade FEWE 5 REMARIE 2
and other receivables wL () 5,491 (17,480)
(Increase)/decrease in net amounts FEWIERR AR R R RHB AR
due from holding companies BRIBZF58 (3Em) R
and fellow subsidiaries (11,682) 11,042
Increase in amount due from Pl FAE A RIRRIE 2 35 00
a related company (829) —
Increase/(decrease) in amounts FEEEARIRIEL
due to related companies i, Cd) 2,099 (72)
(Decrease)/increase in trade ENE S REMERIE Y
and other payables CrA) /1Em (19,027) 5,471
Decrease in retirement benefit liabilities  EIKEFRIEEZH D (4,470) (8,986)
Cash used in operations KRR 7 RS RN (40,045) (78,382)

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
Annual Report 2012



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

B R R M EE
(BRBERTIN - IRBEEHHE)
20 SRITER
R-E——F+-A=+—1  RTEX
AR T Y EARREE

20 Bank loans

At 31 December 2012, the bank loans were repayable as follows:

The Group The Company
REE AKATF
2012 2011 2012 2011
=F—=F —FT—F =B-=F —TF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt Tt Tt T+
Wwithin 1 year orondemand TENBEREREEE 86713 ¢ 313734 8718 -
After 1year but within 2 years ~ —F&{BRER 116,039 — 116,039 —
After 2 years but within 5 years ~ RERBRFER 29,053 — 29,053 —
145,092 — 145,092 —
231,805 313,734 231,805 —
At 31 December 2012, the bank loans were secured as follows: R-E——F+-A=+—HAEANER
TEFRWOT :
The Group The Company
KEEH ¥ /N
2012 2011 2012 2011
—B-—F —T——F ZB-=f —T——F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt FT F T Tt
Bank loans RITER

— secured — KM — 313,734 — —
— unsecured — I 231,805 — 231,805 —
231,805 313,734 231,805 —

At 31 December 2012, all the bank loans were unsecured and borrowed
from a related party (see note 28(a)(vi)). The Group’s ultimate holding
company has significant influence over the related company.

The bank loan was repayable in eight equal quarterly instalments from
June 2013 (2011: rolled over every six months to one year) and bears
interest at one year LIBOR plus 1.85% which ranged from 2.83% to 2.92%
during 2012 (2011: 3.65% t0 7.87%).

At 31 December 2012, the Group did not have any unused bank facilities
related to bank loans.

At 31 December 2011, all the bank loans were secured by stand-
by letters of credit $338,000,000 issued by banks and the Group’s
fixed deposits of $198,000,000 were pledged against those stand-by
letters of credit (note 19(a)). At 31 December 2011, the Group had bank
facilities amounting to $338,000,000 which were utilised to the extent of
$313,734,000.

RIB—ZF+-HA=+—H AR
TTEFOEERREBERR] (R
28(a)(vi)) © AR B ) BRI R B L
ERRAEERTES -

WITEZN _E—=F,A G5 \HiE
B(ZZ—%F R AAE—FEE)
AENFR A —FHRBUERITRZEREM
1.85%( = F——FNAE2.83%2£2.92%) (=
T——5 :3.65%%7.87%) °

RZE——F+ZA=+—0 ~E£EYL
BEIRITERERNEERE -

R-Z——F+-A=+—8 "  FART
B 7% | 3R 17 3 17 % 338,000,000 7T K9 #5
ERHEEE  MEREAERLASETH
1% 57198,000,000 7T K 48 (B 3£ 19(a)) ° 7
—E——F+-A=+—H AEEZR
1T1E & %8 /&338,000,0007T - W2 B A H
FR#9313,734,000 7T °

EBENBEAERA A
T FFR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) SEERIN - HRBEHE)
20 Bank loans (Continued) 20 SRITE®R &)
As at 31 December 2012, bank loans amounting to $231,805,000 (2011: R—_E—-——ZF+_A=Z=+—8"
$61,680,000) were subject to the fulfilment of covenants relating to 231,805,000 ( =& ——F : 61,680, OOO
certain of the Company’s (2011: SMGB's) statement of financial position T)SRITERERBT —LABERAR
ratios, as are commonly found in lending arrangements with financial (ZZ2——F £ HER) Eﬁﬂ?}ﬁ%ﬂj{ﬁtt
institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants the bank loans RIZBUNR  ZENRBEFENE R
would become payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors BENBELZY - WAKBEZRZEY 1R
its compliance with these covenants. Further details of the Group’s TEFENERFER - NEBTFHIER
management of liquidity risk are set out in note 26(b). As at 31 December NHERETRY) - REBRREE SRR
2012 and 31 December 2011, none of the covenants relating to bank EIRME R BE NI T 26() c RZF
loans had been breached. ——F+-_A=+—HAE_ZE—F+—
A=+—8 AEEWHEEREITEE
7 o
21 Trade and other payables 21 EfBSIRHEMRE
The Group The Company
AEE b NN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-—F —E—F —E-CF —E—F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T +T Tt T
Trade payables ENE SERE 51,020 69,015 36,916 49,984
Other creditors and accrued HA e ARIA
charges 68,985 79,902 24,271 11,679
120,005 148,917 61,187 61,663
The Group's and the Company’s other creditors and accrued charges REBRARNRMEMENREREE
included provision for advertising and promotion of $28,860,000 (2011 EREEBRED R A28,860,000L (ZF
$31,176,000) and $13,648,000 (2011: $4,445,000) respectively. — — % :31,176,0007T) K 13,648,000 7T
(ZZT——% : 4,445,0007T) °
The amounts of the Group'’s and the Company’s other creditors and REBRANBTEGFARER—FEIZNHH
accrued charges expected to be settled after more than one year HitwERBRED B £6,3280007T (=&
are $6,328,000 (2011: $11,780,000) and $1,096,000 (2011: $1,093,000) ——% 1 11,780,0007T) }1,096,0007T (—
respectively. All of the other trade and other payables are expected to be T ——4F :1,093,00070) - FTEHME 5
settled within one year. FER R E M FE(SBRIBTERHE —F AT o
The ageing of trade payables as at the end of the reporting period is as ERNESRENGEER CRENT :
follows:
The Group The Company
rEE PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
=F—=F —F % =B-=F T F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tt Tt Tt
Current and less than REHA K@ ER R
1 month past due LR—EAR 41,800 62,142 33,188 45,747
1 to 3 months past due BB RE—E==EH 8,732 6,405 3,728 4,237
3 to 6 months past due BERA=Z=]EA 432 468 — —
More than 6 months past due BEIE Z AN E A 56 — = —
51,020 69,015 36,916 49,984

REBH— RN RGEFENEZAER—
EWH WEIE - Btk i REBIHRE
A DR —EANESRAINHEERRR
BME= 1Iﬂ MEIH] -

The Group’s general payment terms are one to two months from the
invoice date. Therefore, the current and less than 1 month past due
balances above are mostly within two to three months from the invoice
date.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

22

23
(a)

(i)

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and do not
have fixed repayment terms but are not expected to be settled within
one year.

Employee retirement benefits
Defined benefit retirement plan

The Group operates a defined benefit retirement plan which covers 18%
(2011: 20%) of the Group’s employees. The plan is administered by an
independent trustee, with the assets held separately from those of the
Group. The members’ benefits are determined based on the employees’
final remuneration and length of service. Contributions to the plan are
made in accordance with the recommendations of an independent
actuary who values the retirement plan at regular intervals.

For the purposes of preparing these financial statements, an
independent actuarial valuation was carried out at 31 December 2012
by the above independent actuary following the methodology set out in
HKAS 19, Employee benefits.

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as
follows:

IR R M

(B BEIETI - B H)
22 MBS EEE

23
(a)

FEASHE R RIBRIR B EER - 2B MR
BEEERY  BETZFERN—FAXN -

& RRhiRF
EFEBARAKEE

REBERBE18% (ZT——F : 20%) ZI&E
BRETEBBIRAGTE - &t & J5H—
FRUEEANEE  WEAEE 2 EESD
PRI - BRRAIIRIER 2 RIRH
& RRGFHE - 582 HHTDRE—
HEIABHEAD 2 R - ZREATEH
ARG BIE AL -

LA - FEEEMRIEE N BB ST ERE 19
SRIEEFEN] 2TER—FE——F+—
RA=1T—B#ETS M4 ARIEREM
BHEK -

REATSIR R HER 2 SR

The Group and the Company

AEERADT]
2012 2011
—E-—fF —E——fF
$'000 $'000
S0 Fit
Present value of funded obligations BEBEAMRE 100,841 81,324
Fair value of plan assets FHEIEEZARE (66,307) (60,349)
Retirement benefit liabilities RINEFEE 34,534 20,975

A portion of the above liabilities is expected to be settled after more
than one year. However, it is not practicable to segregate this amount
from the amounts payable in the next twelve months, as the retirement
benefit payable to scheme members and future contributions to plan
assets will also depend on staff turnover and future changes in actuarial
assumptions.

Plan assets consist of the following:

EitaR iy B ETE IS N E — IR ST o
A - ARRIEFIE S BIRK B 2 B 5K
R EE 2 RREFRARTFIRERR
ZARKES - AUt NEE K% ERERER
KA 2 BN FIEDFIRIE

AEIBERRE

The Group and the Company

AEERALQT
2012 2011
—E——F —E——%F
$'000 $'000
F FIT
Mutual fund HEHES 63,588 57,814
Cash Re 2,719 2,535
66,307 60,349
ERENEERERA R

T FFIR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) SHEETIN OB EHE)
23 Employee retirement benefits (Continued) 23 EREBHEEHN @
(@) Defined benefit retirement plan (Continued) (@) TEEEFERAEE (&)
(iii) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations: (iii) EFRENBENRESS

The Group and the Company

AEBMRADQTE
2012 2011
—E—C—F —E——F
$'000 $'000
Tt FIT
At 1 January n—HA—H 81,324 76,356
Benefits paid by the plan ETEIZ 2 12 A (6,950) (10,014)
Current service cost IR S AR AG R AR 5,233 5,174
Interest cost F B 1,175 2,122
Actuarial losses EE E51E 20,059 7,686
At 31 December Rt+t—A=+—H 100,841 81,324

(iv) Movements in plan assets: (iv) EEIBEZZE) :

The Group and the Company

AEBRAAT
2012 2011
—EB——fF =%
$'000 $'000
T T
At 1 January R—HA—H 60,349 58,213
Contributions paid to the plan HE SRS
by the employer 7,810 13,326
Benefits paid by the plan s Bl 2 @ F (6,950) (10,014
Actuarial expected return on plan assets st21%& & 2 5 & 78 B [0 ) 3,068 2,956
Actuarial gains/(losses) BE RN,/ (BE) 2,030 (4,132)
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 66,307 60,349
The Group and the Company had a contribution payable of $604,000 RZE——F+ZA=+—0 AEEK
(2011: $586,000) as at 31 December 2012. AN A FEAT 3R 604,000 (ZF ——
4 1 586,0007T) °
The Group and the Company expect to pay $7,539,000 (2011: $7,201,000) AEBERARNRHAERR—FEATH
in contributions to the defined benefit retirement plan in the following BARIRET B 7,539,00073 (ZF——
year. £ :7,201,0007T) fER—MRAEHR -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

23 Employee retirement benefits (Continued)

(@) Defined benefit retirement plan (Continued)

(v) Expense recognised in the consolidated income statement is as follows:

23
(a)

IR R M

(B BEIETI - B H)

ERE*EREF (©
EEBRIR GBI (5)
V) REARERERZEZMT

2012 2011
—EB-CfF —ET——%F
$'000 $'000
T T
Current service cost IR AR AR 5,233 5,174
Interest cost FLERA 1,175 2,122
Actuarial expected return FHEIEE 2 BETE AR R
on plan assets (3,068) (2,956)
Expense charged to consolidated RERE IR ER 2 FZ
income statement (note 6(b)) (MF=E6(D)) 3,340 4,340
The expense is recognised in the BAERZ IR THEREWMERA
following line items in the 2B PR
consolidated income statement:
— Cost of sales — HERA 324 420
— Selling and distribution expenses — HE R HEAX 1,841 2,376
— Administrative expenses — TR 1,175 1,544
3,340 4,340
Actual return on plan assets FHEIEE 2 B E1HR
— gains/(losses) — &, (Fi8) 5,098 (1,176)
(viy  The cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised directly — (vi)  EERERER ZERENRKGTEEE
in equity: ERER
2012 2011
—E-——F —ZET——fF
$'000 $'000
T T
At 1 January N—A—B (47,908) (36,090)
Amount recognised during the year FAERSEE (HFE11)
(note 11) (18,029) (11,818)
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H (65,937) (47,908)
(vi)  The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 31 December 2012 are as  (vi) RHZE——F+-_A=+—H " FIEAZ
follows: FERERERAT
The Group and the Company
AEBREQT
2012 2011
—B-——F — =5
Discount rate ARIR & 0.60% 1.50%
Expected rate of return on plan assets T &I & & 2 FEHA IR E 5.00% 5.00%
Future salary increases RIRE 21800 4.00% 2.50%

The expected rate of return on plan assets is based on the portfolio
as a whole and not on the sum of the returns on individual asset
categories. The return is based exclusively on historical returns, without
adjustments.

HEIEE 2 A MR IR IRERRAS K

BIZMRESL MAE - WEETRHE -

EBENBEAERA A
T FFR




7J Rk At

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) SEERIN - HRBEHE)
23 Employee retirement benefits (Continued) 23 EREBHEEHN @
(@) Defined benefit retirement plan (Continued) (@) TEEEFERAEE (&)
(vii)  The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 31 December 2012 areas (i) W-_E——F+—-A=+—H " FIEAZ
follows: (Continued) FEREBRROT : (B)
Historical information FEhER
The Group and the Company
AEERAFAT
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—E-C& —T—F ZE-TF ZETNE —ZTN\E
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Present value of the defined EREFAGIRE
benefit obligations 100,841 81,324 76,356 76,375 82,678
Fair value of plan assets HEEECARE (66,307) (60,349) (58,213) (58,286) (44,833)
Deficit KE 34,534 20,975 18,143 18,089 37,845
Experience adjustments on: NS E
— Plan liabilities —itElafk 1,998 (623) 1,135 1,408 329
— Plan assets —TEIEE (2,030) 4132 139 (9,506) 17,771
(b) Defined contribution retirement plans (b) TEBEMFERAETE

Staff employed by the Group in Hong Kong not joining the above defined
benefit retirement plan are required to join the Group’s mandatory
provident fund plan under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The mandatory provident fund plan is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by an independent corporate
trustee. Under the plan, the Group and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of $25,000 ($20,000
prior to June 2012). Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of pension
schemes operated by the PRC government. The Group is required to
contribute 18.50% to 31.10% (2011: 19.00% to 31.35%) of employees’
remuneration to these pension schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation for the Group with respect to these pension schemes is the
required contribution under the central pension scheme. Contributions
to these schemes vest immediately.

RIEES CaBERTESTENED) » A&
BEFBERMITEMA Lt TEEFE
KBRS - ANALRELEREFIER
BestE - BHUEARESHE T —(EHE
SORERFTATERN T RBEEFRREE -

BRIEERE AEBEREEESEAR
AEERER  BEAREEHEAEN
5% - HEF A BBAENRSKFEAE 25000
T (ZZ——F X ALARIA20,0007T) © %
s EIEH M FREDESER S o

FEBATMEE AT BRIRFLENH R
umﬁiumﬁx,a o RNEBAE P RIEIR

SFEMRRIEAEBENRERES 85
7%1%5%\1#}1850%i31 0% (= ——
£ :19.00% %= 31.35%)  ANEB A FF R
BRREFTENME —EHBAREPRERS
ra'ﬁu/,\f'ﬁthmwﬁfﬁék B EH A H
FRENEFE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | Bi#& 3R HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - IRBEEHHE)

24 Deferred taxation in the statement of financial 24 HMERAIERIIZEEZERIE

position
(@  The Group (@ AKH
The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised in the RSV BARR R ER ZRERIE (BE)
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements during MABBEZHAKIBDY RFERZEEINT -
the year are as follows:
Depreciation Impairment
allowances losses for
in excess of receivables Retirement
the related and benefit
depreciation inventories liabilities Tax losses Total
FER%EEE EYRERFE
ERREZBE ZREFE  BAENCER HEsE @it
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
pw aw aw T pw
Deferred tax arising from: EERERA
At 1 January 2011 RZE—F—-F—-H 6,307 (85) (1,746) (416) 4,060
Chargedy(credited) to consolidated REaERPIR/ (GTA)
income statement (note 7(a)) (7)) 2,35 91) — (2,777) (512)
Credited to equity (note 11) REEFEA (HFE11) — — (95) — (95)
At 31 December 2011 R=Z——F+-A=+-H
and 1 January 2012 k=Z-—%-F-H 8,663 (176) (1,841) (3,193 3,453
Charged/(credited) to consolidated RiFARERPIR/ GIA)
income statement (note 7(a)) (MizE70) 44,039 88 (551) (40,128) 3,448
Credited to equity (note 11) RERTREA (M 11) - = (3,306) = (3,306)
At 31 December 2012 R-E—-F+-f=1—H 52,702 (88) (5,698) (43,321) 3,595
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following REBRFREME R R RANABW AR
items, which pertain to the subsidiaries in the PRC and the Company: T IA B Fr ol B2 IR E B I B E i o AR
7 .
2012 2011
—E——F —E——fF
$'000 $'000
T F
Tax losses HIaEE 619,932 746,339
Deductible temporary differences AIEMEREER 502,030 500,993
1,121,962 1,247,332
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(qg), deferred RIBFIRAMIFE Q) R - HRREE
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the above items as T TE AR B /B A R R SR AE SIETS B SRR
it is not probable that the relevant entities will generate future taxable REFAEIMERNZ - RSB RHER
profits against which the above items can be utilised. EAIEE TSI B R IEEE -

EBENBEAERA A
T FFR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) BEERIN  HIRBETE)

24 Deferred taxation in the statement of financial 24 MERRIEZMRIIZEERIE (&)
position (Continued)

(@) The Group (Continued) (@ F&£E @&
The unrecognised tax losses relating to the PRC subsidiaries can FHTENBARREROHBSIEEE
be carried forward up to five years from the year in which the loss EHRBRFER - BEIBAEHIT
originated and will expire in the following years:
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
$'000 $'000
3 T
2012 —ET——F = 16,615
2013 —ET—=4F 7,141 7,143
2014 —EFE 63,229 63,243
2015 —ET—FF 134,239 134,269
2016 ZE—RF 138,705 134,032
2017 —E—+4F 110,765 —
454,079 355,302
The unrecognised tax losses relating to the Company were $165,853,000 AN B A B SR #) A5 1E 1B 48 /% 165,853,000
(2011: $391,037,000) and do not expire under current tax legislation. JT (ZZF ——4 :391,037,0007t) * ¥ K
BITMIBHROI T EE -
(b) The Company (b) ZA21F
The components of deferred tax (assets) and liabilities recognised in the R B S & i aR 2 SRR (B &) I
statement of financial position and the movements during the year are BEZHEKE D RFERZZEEHNT
as follows:
Depreciation
allowances
in excess of Impairment Retirement
the related losses for benefit
depreciation receivables liabilities Tax losses Total
FERSEEA ElEE
EREZBE ZREFE  BHERZEE HEFE @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000
pw aw pw pw T
Deferred tax arising from: EERERE
t 1 January 2011 RZE——F—-f—-H 1,839 (85) (1,746) ®) —
Charged/(credited) o profit or loss REEFE/ (GEA) 2430 91) — (2,244) 95
Credited to equity REEPEA — — (95) — (95)
At31December 2011 RZE——F+Zf=1—H
and 1 January 2012 k=E--%—-F-H 4,269 (176) (1,841) (2,252) -
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss REEFIR/ (GFA) 43,294 88 (551) (39,525) 3,306
Credited to equity PERTEA - — (3,306) — (3,306)
At 31 December 2012 RZE-—F+=A=+—H 47,563 (88) (5,698) (41,777) —

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (REERTRIN  IRBETE)

25 cCapital and reserves 25 BERGHKE

(@ Movements in components of equity (a) HEZIoHEH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of REBZGEAERP DN FEYRFER
each component of the Group'’s consolidated equity is set out in the N AR EERATIE - ARFZ
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in AR IB D EY R FREEEBFNIA
the Company’s individual components of equity between the beginning T5I& :

and the end of the year are set out below:

Share Share Retained
capital premium profits Total
(&N R E WS k]
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Balance at 1 January 2011 W-2——F—-A—A#&# 186,785 65,739 285,745 538,269
Changes in equity for 2011: B —EREREE:
Actuarial gains and losses of EREEFRRETE
defined benefit retirement plan, ZIEEBH R EE
net of tax (B#iig) — - (11,723) (11,723)
Profit for the year (note 10) FEEH (K 10) — — 13,472 13,472
Balance at 31 December 2011 R-E——&F+=-B=+-—H
and 1 January 2012 F=B-—F—-A—-B&H 186,785 65,739 287,494 540,018
Changes in equity for 2012: —EB-CFREEE
Actuarial gains and losses of FERE ARG 2
defined benefit retirement plan, ZIEERF R EE
net of tax (BR#12) — = (14,723) (14,723)
Loss for the year (note 10) FEEE (H:10) — = (117,843) (117,843)
Balance at 31 December 2012 R=-ZE—=-f+=-H=+—H
b33 186,785 65,739 154,928 407,452
(b) Share capital (b) K=
The Company
NN
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
$'000 $'000
Fi FIT
Authorised: EERA
400,000,000 ordinary shares of $0.50 each 400,000,000 A% & A% & 0.50 7T 2 & 3% 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAZRE :
373,570,560 ordinary shares of $0.50 each  RAF 4]} K 373,570,560 f%
as at the beginning and end of the year FREE0.50 T2 EimA% 186,785 186,785
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as LTmE A RIS IRAKE -
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at WA EARRNERE EEFE —RERHIE—
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to F o HRARTNFIHEE - FIA TR
the Company’s residual assets. HEERSER -
BABE NS ERmARAR]

T FFIR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (REERRIN  IRBETE)

25 Capital and reserves (Continued) 25 BEEREEE

(¢) Nature and purpose of reserves (c) HmHERAZR

(i) Share premium (i) B2 =8
The application of the share premium account is governed by Section FERBRMDEERIDZES (ARG &
48B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. ABBEFTESE -

(i)  capital reserve (i) EXRFEE
The capital reserve represents the reserve arising from the capitalisation BRFE IR EB AR ZREE
of retained profits of a PRC subsidiary. MEAR b TESE 2 i

(iii)  Exchange fluctuation reserve (i) EXREFE
The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign exchange M R B R E R IERERE T B AN B
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of NEM IR EE Z TBE R 58k ER
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong and the foreign exchange differences EEIEE (TREDEBRINLME A T
arising from translation of monetary items that in substance form part ZRRE) ZIENEE - ZREGRENE
of the net investment in subsidiaries outside Hong Kong. The reserve is 1) Pl 2 SRTICR MR IE o
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(t).

(d) Distributability of reserves (d) 2ikf#EE
At 31 December 2012, the amounts of reserves available for distribution R-ZE——F+-_A=+—8 " Atk
to equity shareholders of the Company are $154,928,000 (2011: BT AR RSB A A154,928,000
$287,494,000). TL (ZZF——4F : 287,494,0007T) °

(e) Capital management (e) EXEH

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of a net-debt to equity ratio. For this purpose the
Group defines net-debt as total bank loans less bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents.

During 2012, the Group's strategy was to maintain the net-debt to equity
ratio at a reasonable level, not exceeding 100%. In order to maintain or
adjust the ratio, the Group may issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

AEEEREANTIEAREERESE
BEAISIRIC S - (e MARE RIR R IR
R R EMFF R E BB AR BRKF
EHREMEE  URERESSENR

RE BTSN B E RN RB R A RE &
BIE - DAEREBRRLHER T AR
2B @ EERF ER B E AR 5 R A
B2 R ARE 2 FRIES T 11 - I [ AR
B R(CH EARRBIEL AR -

AEBNERFAGELESEMEREE
RIRHE - BMATTERMEA -8 - ARERE
B AKEERFEERBRITETR
RITFRLRE LERREIAR -

R-T——F KAEFZKBEEHEAR
FEELENI100%EBE A o BT 4T
MEZIE - EEFEE BTN > MR
HFRERHEEENREESR -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

25
(e)

26

(a)

IR R M

(B BEIETI - B H)

Capital and reserves (Continued) 25 BEki#Em @
Capital management (Continued) () BXRERE (B
The net-debt to equity ratio at 31 December 2012 and 2011 was as R-E——FRN - E——F+-_A=+—
follows: AZEARFAGBHENT
The Group The Company
rEH PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%F —E--F —T——F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T Ft
Bank loans less bank deposits  SRITEFUREITIF K
and cash and cash equivalents  KIR&NERIREIER 130,901 268,148 157,902 —
Equity g 511,836 297,223 407,452 540,018
Net-debt to equity ratio BERFEELE 26% 90% 39% N/A
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally BRASA RISRIT ERRERAISN + AR R ST
imposed capital requirements, except for covenants relating to the MR EIN I IMEE AT K o
Company'’s bank loan.
Financial risk management and fair values 26 MEAREERAAEE
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the REBE—MEFBRPEFEREE - K8
normal course of the Group’s business. The Group'’s exposure to these Ee o FIRRRRINER - ANE RS
risks and the financial risk management policies and practices used by ZERBEERASEMKAEEZER
the Group to manage these risks are described below. bp o A ERBOR REY - Satan T o
Credit risk (@ EERE

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents. Management has a credit
policy in place and the exposure to this credit risk is monitored on an
ongoing basis.

Credit limits are offered to customers following a financial assessment
and an established payment record. The general credit period is payment
by the end of the month following the month in which sales took place.
Security in the form of mortgages, cash deposits or bank guarantees
is obtained from certain customers. Customers who are considered
to have higher credit risk are required to trade on a cash basis. Credit
control staff monitor trade receivables and follow up collections.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. At the end of the reporting period, 15%
(2011: 20%) and 39% (2011: 45%) of the total trade and other receivables
was due from the Group's largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would expose the
Group to credit risk. Except for the financial guarantees given by the
Company as set out in note 29, the Company does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Company to credit risk.

The Group's cash and cash equivalents are placed with financial
institutions with sound credit ratings and the management considers the
Group’s exposure to credit risk is low.

The Group's exposure to the credit risk and its policies for managing
such risk were unchanged from 2011.

AEBNGEERREIEXREREE S RKE
WRERRE NERREER - EEERT
BEERE MASREESZSREER

i
oS

o

EERBINETHBIERIENER
YN REERMERE - —RIEERIHE
EH A TTHERSEIH - REREHRL
BPESIRIE - RITERIRITERER
B - ERA/AEFPAERERRER - BIA
ReBTRS - EEEEABRSEERK
B 5 508 R BEWGR

REBZEFERBREIEZERNEFL N
B2 - WEER  15% (T ——%F:
20%) F39% ( —ZF——4F : 45%) MFEIN
EHREMBEDIKAAEBRARS
RREREF °

AEEYERFEHEMERMESEER
B o BR T INMTRE 29 FADIBAAN X RO B TS 42
ERON » AN B I 48 R F H LA 2 R T o
SERM

AEBENRE MERIRSEBRFRRE
FRFR RIS RIS - Ft - BIEER
RAEEEHNERRR K -

AR ERE 12 E AR R EIRR R
TR -

EBENBEAERA A
T FFR
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26 Financial risk management and fair values 26 SMEAREERAAMEE®
(Continued)
(b)  Liquidity risk (b) REESE
As detailed in note 1(b), there existed conditions at 31 December 2012 WK 1D Frit - AEBR T —ZF
which indicate that the Group may be unable to realise its assets and +=A er BE AR TRERIE S E1E
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. The directors BEFERAEEEREEABENNR
are taking certain actions to address these conditions in accordance EERIERBAERE 2 EARRE (BME S
with the Group's basic principle that individual operating entities within KEEBREER EEZIK%MIE%MEE&&E”
the Group are responsible for their own cash management and in AEEPRETHERETHESS
accordance with the Group’s policy of regularly monitoring its liquidity BREAF TR ZASRERE Eﬁﬁ‘%@%
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and BAGRHENESTEE LR HEH
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial institutions MR Z R E © 7<) B — L HE LA
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. Further WEEMR - HARBIENE - LHBEHN
details of these actions are set out in note 1(b). FEE1(b)
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities at the TEREAEERARGRNGEERTBEE
end of the reporting period of the Group’s and the Company’s financial 2 HERE K EARRERF AR DT - IDA%'T%’\JK
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows MRRERE (ARERITNERFTEZ
(including interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if FEXZH - k@Y 28R - REERE
floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and EIZ BEHEZMEZH) RAEEEK
the earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to pay: AR HER P ERBEELONE
pi-
The Group KEE
2012 2011
—E--E 3
Contractual Contractual
undiscounted undiscounted
cash outflow cash outflow
ant ol
RERMN FERA
ReHE e
More than More than Total -
Within 1yearbut 2 years but Within
1 year or less than less than Carrying 1yearor Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount on demand amount
—FRg L
RERE —-E4 MEH REE
El BmER BEER g RES H|EesE RES
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $000
i i i i i i T
Bank loans BAER 92,720 118,882 29,251 240,853 231,805 334,934 313734
Trade and other payables ENESREMER 120,005 — - 120,005 120,005 148,917 148,917
Amounts due to holding companies  ERHERR A RIREIZ
and fellow subsiclaries IENGE ] 3,767 - - 3,767 3,767 18,440 18,440
Amounts due to related companies  FER BB AFIRE 4,423 = - 4,423 4,423 2,324 2,324
220,915 118,882 29,251 369,048 360,000 504,615 483415
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - IRBEEHHE)
26 Financial risk management and fair values 26 SMEREERAAMEE
(Continued)
(b)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) ABELE (B
The Company AT
2012
—E-C—F
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ERNERBBENRSRE

More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but

1 year or less than less than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
—ER
RERE —£% MER
) ERFR BEFR et REH
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr
Bank loan BITER 92,720 118,882 29,251 240,853 231,805
Tradle and other payables [ERE 5 R EMIRE 61,187 = = 61,187 61,187
Amounts due to holding FERER AR
companies and fellow LEAZMBAR
subsidiaries R 2,130 — - 2,130 2,130
Amounts due to related [EREE L RIRE
companies 2,195 - — 2,195 2,195
Amounts due to subsidiaries [ETHIBARER — 558,173 - 558,173 558,173
158,232 677,055 29,251 864,538 855,490
2011
—T—F
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
AR ERBFEMNRSRE
More than
Within 1 year but
1year or less than Carrying
on demand 2 years Total amount
—FRNK
RERKE —&F1&
ZI|ER BERFEA ek BRETE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FIT FIT Tt +7T
Trade and other payables B E S R EAERTA 61,663 — 61,663 61,663
Amounts due to holding JERTERR AT
companies and fellow KRR B AF
subsidiaries BR18 10,978 — 10,978 10,978
Amount due to a related JERAE A RIRRIA
company 172 — 172 172
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEATBT B A FIBRIE — 558,135 558,135 558,135
72,813 558,135 630,948 630,948

EBENBEAERA A
T FFR
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26 Financial risk management and fair values 26 eMEREERAAMEE
(Continued)
(c) Interest rate risk () FR=mEp
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-bearing AEBZAEREABREEHFEERESE -
borrowings. The Group monitors the level of its fixed rate and variable REE G T ER R K EE M EARTT
rate borrowings. The Group's interest rate profile as monitored by BHOKFE o ZK‘%IEEEES'EFW? ) I 3R 4k
management is set out in (i) below. R T ()
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FlREE
The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s bank TRANEBREERQ ZRTERZFI=
loans at the end of the reporting period: 4
2012 2011
—E——F —T——4F
Effective Effective
interest rate
rate Amount interest Amount
BERFI= ] VB x|
% $'000 % $'000
Tt T+
Fixed rate borrowings: EEMZEEK -
— Bank loans — iR1TE \7?' = — 6.26 128,695
Variable rate borrowings: HENFERERK
— Bank loans — RITER 2.83 231,805 7.11 185,039
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) BB
At 31 December 2012, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of RZE—ZFF+ZA=+—8 " FHsrF=E
100 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, R THR—BET  EHMAEHRE
would have decreased/increased the Group's profit after taxation and RETENBEAT AEELRFERTIE

retained profits by approximately $2,318,000 (2011: increased/decreased
the Group's loss after taxation and accumulated losses by $1,850,000).
The tax effect was assumed to be nil as the entity having these loans had

B 2EFER LD, HN42,318,000
(2T ——F : AEBMAFERFREE
B R EEGE I, 84 41,850,000

unrecognised tax losses for deferred tax purposes and it is not probable TL) ° B R BETEE R OR RESIES B S0
that it will generate future taxable profits against which tax losses can be AR AF RIS EE - |EQFLAR

utilised.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change in
the Group's profit/loss after taxation and retained profits/accumulated
losses in respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising
from floating rate instruments held by the Group at the end of the
reporting period. The impact on the Group’s profit/loss after taxation
and retained profits/accumulated losses is estimated as an annualised
impact on interest expense of such a change in interest rates. For 2011,
management assumed that certain interest-bearing borrowings maturing

R %R%Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁlz ERIE - b R&
WERBEZE

VA 8RR S T B R AN E B R BR B 1R B
SN2 AR, BRI T
ARANEEREE BB ENTHFRT
B QI ASEmGIR S RARERATE
4o REBRTERTBEK R ET
S EENYERNZERNRECHTEE
ARNFEZEERT RZE—F ' K
%lﬁ&ﬂ@ﬁT REEEIEZETE

during the next reporting period would be rolled over upon maturity for EReRIBREEHNEFAEERE
daily operating purposes. {’E

The Group does not account for any fixed rate borrowings at fair value REERBEBEMEENEEFARAE
through profit or loss and the Group does not use derivative financial FrEWET AR  TNEBRFERTESRT

instruments to hedge its debt obligations. The fixed rate instruments
of the Group are insensitive to any change in market interest rates. A
change in interest rates at end of the reporting period would not affect
profit or loss.

BN EER - ARBZBEEHETA
¥T$%—5F'JI“TEIT@KW WEE B ZF
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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(d)

)

Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales,
purchases, borrowings, expenses and recharges amongst group entities
which give rise to receivables, payables, bank loans and cash balances
that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which the transactions relate.
The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily United States dollars,
Euros and Australian dollars.

For group entities whose functional currency is Hong Kong dollars,
all sales and purchases are denominated in either Hong Kong dollars
or United States dollars, except for certain purchases from Europe or
Australia. Given that Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States
dollar, management do not expect that there will be any significant
currency risk associated with such United States dollar denominated
transactions. For transactions denominated in Euros, management
monitor the level of exposure closely and take actions such as an
earlier settlement considering movements in the exchange rate. For
transactions denominated in Australian dollars, since the volume of such
transactions is not significant, management consider the exposure to
currency risk to be low.

For group entities whose functional currency is Renminbi, except for
certain borrowings and transactions amongst group entities that are
denominated in either Hong Kong dollars or United States dollars,
most of other transactions are denominated in Renminbi. For those
transactions amongst group entities denominated in United States
dollars or Hong Kong dollars, the management consider the transaction
amounts are not significant and the exposure to currency risk is low.

The Group’s exposure to currency risk and its policies for managing such
risk were unchanged from 2011.

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the entity to which they relate. The exposure
arising from the borrowings from group entities that in substance form
part of the net investment in subsidiaries is excluded. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown in Hong Kong dollars,
translated using the spot rates at the year end date. Differences resulting
from the translation of the financial statements of subsidiaries outside
Hong Kong into the Group's presentation currency are excluded.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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26 Financial risk management and fair values 26 eMEREERAAMEE

(Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) ERR (8)

(i) Exposure to currency risk (Continued) (i) AZZINERK (B)
The Group REH

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SNEER (RBTEE)
2012 2011
- —T——F
United Hong United Hong
States Kong States Kong
dollars dollars Euros dollars dollars Euros
EYn BT B#E xET BT B
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T Ft T FIT FIT
Trade and other receivables JEWE 5 K H A BRIR 934 = 1,379 27 — 1,992
Amounts due from holding JEUIZERR A7)
companies and fellow RRZWB AT
subsidiaries BRIB 9,322 — — 12,308 — —
Amount due from a related M ERE N RIARIE
company 829 — — — — —
Pledged deposits HIHER — — — 64,794 — —
Cash and cash equivalents RekERREER 10,277 63 73 3952 19 69
Bank loans RITER (231,805) - —  (50,523) — —
Trade and other payables R B 5 Rk H A ERTE (7,235) = (5770)  (12,771) — (4,803)
Amounts due to holding FEHER A A
companies and fellow RRZHB AT
subsidiaries BRE (3,767)  (10,246) = (17,329) (9,773) —
Amounts due to related FERREE R FIERTE
companies (1,807) — (35) — — —
Net exposure ElES L (223,252)  (10,183)  (4,353) 458 (9,754) (2,742)
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26 Financial risk management and fair values 26 SMEREERAAMEE

(Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) PERR (B)

(i) Exposure to currency risk (Continued) (i) AZ 2 HERE (&)
The Company RATE]

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
SMERERE (RBTFE)

2012 2011
—E——F —EF——
United United
States States
dollars Euros dollars Euros
EpH BE Ev (¢
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt Tt T Tt
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 K& EHAMERIR 934 1,379 27 1,992
Amounts due from holding FEWIERE A A
companies and fellow S GIEENG
subsidiaries ARIE 6,605 — 12,308 —
Amount due from a related e NG S
company 829 — — —
Pledged deposits HEIRFER — — 64,794 —
Cash and cash equivalents RekERREIER 10,154 73 3,945 69
Bank loans RITER (231,805) — — —
Trade and other payables FENE 5 R EMBRIE (6,790) (5,770) (12,248) (4,803)
Amounts due to holding FEHERE AR
companies and fellow S AEES NG
subsidiaries AR IE (2,131) — (10,964) —
Amounts due to related FEfE:E A RBRIA
companies (1,807) (35) — —
Net exposure R\ R R (224,011) (4,353) 57,862 (2,742)
BABE NS ERmARAR]
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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26 Financial risk management and fair values 26 eMEREERAAMEE
(Continued)
(d)  Currency risk (Continued) d) SMNERE (&)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) SRS
The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the Group’s TRERMEBNGEQNESEREM 2
profit/(loss) after taxation and retained profits/(accumulated losses) that INETE R NS B E B W AR E 2 RIER
would have arisen if foreign exchange rates to which the group entities (&R REFTRF (BE) 2 BNE
had significant exposure at the end of the reporting period had changed E’A EERREMEREEHTE - Jitm
at that date, assuming all other risk variables remained constant. In this CEBREBITEETTHNBRELRK
respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between the Hong Kong ﬁiﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁm%’iﬁ%Zfﬁ@ FE)FTR
dollar and the United States dollar would be materially unaffected by any ZoWAH - BRKRERTERKEMES
changes in movement in value of the United States dollar against other SPERB BN AR SES  gEaX
currencies. Also, the tax effect was assumed to be nil for the entities 37 %ﬁ%ﬁgg}aﬁﬁﬁzz S AERETE - E I BEE
which had unrecognised tax losses for deferred tax purposes since it is RIS hS %
not probable that they will generate future taxable profits against which
tax losses could be utilised.
2012 2011
Increase/ Decrease/ Increase/  Increase/
(decrease) (increase) Decrease/ (decrease) (decrease)  Increase/
in foreign  inprofit (increase) inforeign inloss (decrease) in
exchange after inretained  exchange after accumulated
rates  taxation profits rates taxation losses
HNEER BRBEELBF  RHBR  MNEEX RUEESE  RHEE
S/ "/ wY/ 7/ i,/ i,/
(F8) (48n) (38hn) (T) OR) (R)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T FIL FIL
United States dollars e 5% (38) (38) 5% 2,870 2,870
(5)% 38 38 5)% (2,870) (2,870)
Hong Kong dollars BT 5% 509 509 5% 488 488
(5)% (509) (509) (5)% (488) (488)
Euros (B¢ 5% 218 218 5% 137 137
(5)% (218) (218) (5)% (137) (137)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent an
aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each of the group entities’
profit or loss measured in the respective functional currencies, translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange
rates had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments held
by the Group which expose the Group to currency risk at the end of
the reporting period, including inter-company payables and receivables
within the Group which are denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the lender or the borrower. The analysis
excludes differences that would result from the translation of the
financial statements of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong into the Group’s
presentation currency. The analysis has been performed on the same
basis as for 2011.

RV ZOMEREAEEZEE
AR ERHZE (REWMAEM  BIR
BHAZEERSRAET) 2 AFEER
RS E B -

BRI ITE BRBRINEER 2 FEHE BN
BN EASEMBAUYRGEERFEARE
EEE/INERR s 2T A  BEEEH
LA IEE B 2 ae B fEB I A&
WRERMIRIE - WEBHREREEEHEHE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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26 Financial risk management and fair values 26 SMEREERAAMEE
(Continued)
(e) Fair value (e) AAEE
The non-trade balances with holding companies, fellow subsidiaries BEERAT  RRAMRBATREEATS
and related companies are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed FESRBEAEBY AEEF LSS BERE
repayment terms. Given these terms, it is not meaningful to disclose TEEFH - ERZEGR  BEEARE
their fair values. ZEEIK .
All other significant financial assets and liabilities are carried at amounts FEEMmERSREERBENREERE
not materially different from their fair values as at 31 December 2012 HEEN - E——FR_T—F+=A8
and 2011. =T—HOARBETESEAER -
27 Commitments 27 KifE
(@) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December (@ RKR-—B——H£+=-A=+—-H %
2012 not provided for in the financial statements were EMBHRRPBE2RTEREE
as follows: HEWT
The Group The Company
rEH KATF
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-——fF —E——%F - —E——fF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
e T Stow T
Contracted for REIES) 987 — — —
Authorised but not EHOEERETA
contracted for 3,335 2,992 3,335 2,753
4,322 2,992 3,335 2,753
(b) At 31 December 2012, the total future minimum lease (b)) R=-F——-F+=-A=+—H 'R
payments under non-cancellable operating leases BruAEcEREmENI 2RK
were payable as follows: REHERENT :
The Group The Company
rEE AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
e —T——%F —B_fF —E——%F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
F T FT T Tt
Land and buildings THREE
Within 1 year —FR 1,575 1,273 — —
After 1 year but within 5years ~ —F&{BRER 4,569 77 — —
6,144 1,350 — _

The Group, as a lessee, leases a number of properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to five years
with an option to renew each lease upon expiry when all terms are
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

AEBERABARBEEEENEES
HEE #FHE-— RIS/ —ED
FoUBBREREIHAREDR  ER
FrBGRFARNEFRETE - SELEHEY
TREREES -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

28 Material related party transactions 28

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group entered into the following material
related party transactions:

(@) Transactions with group companies (@ KEAXEEERS
Due from/(to)
Amounts balances at year end
] Bl () FEEE
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E--F —E——% —E--fF —ET——%F
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
B EE T i T i
Purchases from = (0]
— intermediate holding company — d/ MR A T 4,712 4,498 (869) 912)
— fellow subsidiaries — H%Ffﬁ% 31,768 46,765 (844) (9,317)
— related companies —ERT 7,952 2,807 (2,326) (227)
Sales to hil 0]
— intermediate holding company — — FR 158 A A 92,872 93,492 9,313 12,071
— fellow subsidiaries — H%MTE 272 28 1" —
Royalty payments to SNEMEER (if)
— intermediate holding companies — #4} % iG] 147 1,490 (26) (1,199)
— a related company — B 2,089 2,049 (2,097) (2,097)
Engineering design fee payable §zﬁﬂ,ﬂﬁ% Bl
to a fellow subsidiary TRt EH (iii) 321 — (322) (234)
Leasing fee from a fellow Hﬁzﬂ%ﬁﬁ%
subsidiary HEEMR (iv) 3,099 3,134 — —
Rental expense payable SFOIGEGIENG!
to a fellow subsidiary HeBER (v) 153 259 — (266)
Sales proceeds on disposal of HEHMBEEET
other tangible assets to fellow GEALIENGIEON
subsidiaries 2,835 — — .
Interest expense payable SRRE AR
to a related company FEZH (Vi) 5,185 — — —
Advertising and promotion subsidy Y MERRA BIES
from an intermediate holding KI5 E R
company (vii) 23,240 — — —

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

28
(a)

Material related party transactions (Continued)

Transactions with group companies (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Sales to and purchases from group companies were carried out at terms
mutually agreed by both parties. The terms of the outstanding balances
are set out in note 18.

Related companies are related to the Group as their ultimate holding
company has a significant influence over the Group.

(i) Royalties are payable to intermediate holding companies and a minority
shareholder for the use of certain trademarks pursuant to relevant
licensing agreements.

During the year, the intermediate holding company waived royalties
payable by the Group amounting to $1,431,000 (2011: $1,430,000), which
is not included in the amounts disclosed above.

(ifi) Engineering design services were provided by a fellow subsidiary in
respect of a subsidiary’s brewery expansion plans according to an
Engineering Design Services Agreement.

(iv) Leasing fee from a fellow subsidiary represented rental income earned by
leasing out the Group’s waste water discharge pipeline located in the PRC
to a fellow subsidiary.

V) Rental expense was paid to a fellow subsidiary for a temporary
warehouse for inventory storage.

(vi) Interest expense was paid for the bank loan obtained from a related party
in 2012 over which the Group'’s ultimate holding company has significant
influence.

(vii) Advertising and promotion subsidy was received from an intermediate
holding company for promotion of certain brands in Hong Kong and the
PRC.

These transactions also constitute connected transactions under the
Listing Rules, except for the purchases from related companies, interest
expense payable to a related company and advertising and promotion
subsidy from an intermediate holding company which the directors do
not consider to be connected transactions under the Listing Rules.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) SEERIN - HRBEHE)
28 Material related party transactions (Continued 28 EXREALES (®
(b) Other transactions with group companies (b) HKERHMBEERS
Due from/(to)
Amounts balances at year end
-} B () FRER
2012 2011 2012 2011
S —E——5F S —E—%F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tt Tt Tt
Expenses paid by the Group AASEEREEAT
on behalf of group companies KR EBH
— ultimate holding company — AR A A 7 2,808 — 236
— intermediate holding — PR AT
companies 311 926 — —
— fellow subsidiaries — RRHB AR 209 72 16 8
Expenses paid by group HREEARRAEE
companies on the Group's REZEH
behalf
— ultimate holding company — SRR A A 129 83 (129) —
— intermediate holding — ANERR A A
companies 2,986 7,607 (1,559) (6,493)
— fellow subsidiaries — AR B AR 27 35 (18) ©)
— a related company — BAE A 1,436 — 829 —
(c) Key management personnel remuneration (c) FEEBAEMS
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including AEFBFEEEABZHE (BEKES

amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 8 and the B AN TEEZ N 2 RIBERME

highest paid employees as disclosed in note 9, is as follows: FIEBERETEaEHEES N 2RE) @
T
2012 2011
—E——F —E——4F
$'000 $'000
T FIT
Short-term employee benefits %2 HE B & F 13,612 13,883
Post-employment benefits it | 1,893 1,653
15,505 15,536
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 6(b)). M ATEIEHMN ~ (R KT
6(b)) °
29 contingent liabilities 29 HRARK

As at 31 December 2011, there were contingent liabilities in respect of
guarantees given to banks by the Company to secure banking facilities
made available to a subsidiary which expired on 30 May 2012 without
any claims made against the Company.

The Company did not recognise any deferred income in respect of the
guarantees as the fair values could not be reliably measured and its
transaction price was $Nil.

R-_F——F+_A=+—H  AOAEF
ERRBRITIEL ERAR I EL M

BRITEEMELENIAEE - ZERR
*T— “HERA=THIES  WREHE

NEHRHERRE -

BHZEROALEREEEFHE - BEX
ZERRET  NRRLEEREEZE
REVEMBELEWRA -
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30

31

Immediate and ultimate controlling party

At 31 December 2012, the Directors consider the immediate parent
and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Neptunia Corporation
Limited and San Miguel Corporation respectively. Neptunia Corporation
Limited is incorporated in Hong Kong while San Miguel Corporation is
incorporated in the Republic of the Philippines. San Miguel Corporation
produces financial statements available for public use.

Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2012

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments and five new standards which are not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2012 and which have not
been adopted in these financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of 1 July 2012
financial statements — Presentation of

items of other comprehensive income
HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements 1 January 2013
HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements 1 January 2013

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities 1 January 2013

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement 1 January 2013

HKAS 27, Separate financial statements (2011) 1 January 2013

HKAS 28, Investments in associates
and joint ventures

1 January 2013

Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits 1 January 2013

Annual improvements to
HKFRSS 2009 — 2011 Cycle

1 January 2013

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures — Offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities

1 January 2013

Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial instruments:
Presentation — Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities

1 January 2014

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2015
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) BEERIN  HIRBETE)

31 Possible impact of amendments, new 31 ERHAEXRNREBE_S—_F
standards and interpretations issued but not +-A=+—HLEESEHRHEE
yet effective for the year ended 31 December AERT - #EER R a2 18 nT RESE AKX
2012 (Continued) HyEs e ()

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely
to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements
except for the following:

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements — Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

The amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to present separately the
items of other comprehensive income that would be reclassified to
profit or loss in the future if certain conditions are met from those that
would never be reclassified to profit or loss. The Group's presentation
of other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly when the
amendments are adopted for the first time.

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27, Consolidated and
separate financial statements relating to the preparation of consolidated
financial statements and HK-SIC 12 Consolidation — Special purpose
entities. It introduces a single control model to determine whether an
investee should be consolidated, by focusing on whether the entity
has power over the investee, exposure to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and the ability to use its power to affect
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The application of HKFRS 10 is not expected to change any of the control
conclusions reached by the Group in respect of its involvement with
other entities as at 1 January 2013. However, it may in the future result in
investees being consolidated which would not have been consolidated
under the Group’s existing policies or vice versa.
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HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities ERMKREERNE 12 [ HE
RERZEE]

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the disclosure BB SREERIFE 12508 TREATLH B

requirements relevant to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint NE BEREE  MEATINAE LS

arrangements, associates and unconsolidated structured entities. The
disclosures required in HKFRS 12 are generally more extensive than
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those required in the current standards. The Group may have to make WEHELRRE ﬁf"iﬁllﬁﬁxiﬁ’ﬁii‘%f
additional disclosures about its interests in other entities when the 2o EAREEES = FEH RN

standard is adopted for the first time in 2013.
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Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2012 (Continued)

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual HKFRSs with a single
source of fair value measurement guidance. HKFRS 13 also contains
extensive disclosure requirements about fair value measurements for
both financial instruments and non-financial instruments. HKFRS 13
is effective as from 1 January 2013, but retrospective adoption is not
required. The Group estimates that the adoption of HKFRS 13 will not
have any significant impact on the fair value measurements of its assets
and liabilities, but additional disclosures may need to be made in the
2013 financial statements.

Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits

Revised HKAS 19 introduces a number of amendments to the accounting
for employee benefits. Among them, revised HKAS 19 includes minor
changes to definition of short-term employee benefits (in respect of the
distinction between short-term and long-term), the definition of return
on plan assets, the timing of recognition of termination benefits and
various disclosure requirements. The revised HKAS 19 is effective as
from 1 January 2013 and retrospective adoption is required. The Group
has not completed its assessment of the full impact of adoption revised
HKAS 19 and therefore the possible impact on the Group’s results and
financial position has not been quantified.

IR R M

(B BEIETI - B H)

EFRBERREBE_S—_F
+TZA=t+—HLFEEERRE
RIERT - MERI R RIFTTREERL
MRE (&)
BERUBREEUNE13R[AAE
EFTE ]

ERPEIREERFE 135 IE B FMER
BB BHRELELNNIES C KAE—AR
BET2355 - BEYHREERZE3
HEETEESRIT ARSI AR
hEEFENEZFEEDZR - HEIBKR
EEBF1IBFA T —=F— F—HiELE
B BARBIGEBPER o AEBEHEHRA
BRI RELRE1FREEEERAR
NARBETETESAFE BN _F
— = FHERA AR EEHEIMNEE -

BB ERAE 195 (RIET &
SEM]

EE G ERIE199F (KEFT) 53| AZ IR
B B B8 M & 5t R IE M EET © Among
them, B BEEHEMNER (LGN
EHizENRY)  FEEELHRES
R IR TR N RE SRS A B T[R4 BR 2SRy
LORERE) - B GETHERIE195% (IEET)
RIB-—=Ff—F—HREX ¥F2E
B - REBEL RTERIRNEBEHE
AIF 195 (RIEFT) MEEFERTE
It REEWAREBRAZIERTHAEE
MR E B RN TR E

EBENBEAERA A
T FFR




138

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of San Miguel
Brewery Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
“the Group”) set out on pages 62 to 137, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2012,
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2012 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 1(b) to the
consolidated financial statements which indicates that the Group sustained
a consolidated net loss from continuing operations before net reversal
of impairment losses for non-current assets, of HK$40,741,000 and
experienced a net outflow of cash and cash equivalents of HK$40,065,000
in respect of its operating activities for the year ended 31 December 2012.
The Group's cash and cash equivalents exceeded current bank loans by
only HK$14,191,000 as at 31 December 2012, which may not be sufficient
to fund the Group's operations in 2013 in view of the net outflow of
cash and cash equivalents in respect of operating activities for the year
ended 31 December 2012. These conditions indicate the existence of
a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Group'’s
ability to continue as a going concern. As further detailed in note 1(b) to
the consolidated financial statements, the Group has identified measures
to improve its performance and financial position and is in the process of
implementing them as at the date of this report. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of
which is dependent on the successful implementation of these measures
and the commitment of the Group's holding company to provide continuing
support to enable the Group to operate as a going concern and meet
its liabilities as they fall due for the foreseeable future. The consolidated
financial statements do not include any adjustments that would result
should the Group be unable to continue to operate as a going concern.

Cpm,

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

8 February 2013
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY | ZEERBHE
)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BB E
The Group
rEE
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—B--% —T—F Z2-TF ZTTNF —TT)\F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T T T T
Results E
Turnover L] 686,362 683,879 589,322 696,824 753,375
Profit/(loss) before taxation BHAEFR (58) 232,643 (69,027) (782,509) (345,324) (316,692)
Income tax (charge)/credit FriE® () /3T (3,468) 389 8,522 2,272 58,537
Profit/(loss) for the year FEAEM,/ (FE) 229,175 (68,638) (773,987) (343,052) (258,155)
Attributable to: (R
— Equity shareholders — RRAERFEA
of the Company 239,854 (53,464) (736,984) (334,856) (259,907)
— Non-controlling interests — JEIERR S (10,679) (15,174) (37,003) (8,196) 1,752
Profit/(loss) for the year FEAN,/ (E8B) 229,175 (68,638) (773,987) (343,052) (258,155)
Earnings/(loss) per share gikaw,/ (EB)
— Basic (cents) — EAR (L) 64 (14) (197) (90) (70)
Cash dividends per share (cents) SRS (1) = — — — _
Assets and liabilities BEHAEE
Fixed assets BT EE 654,678 389,671 398,011 1,087,198 1,379,561
Intangible assets BYEE 5,426 5,709 5,678 17,122 28,722
Other tangible assets EMBELEE — — — 18,565 41,192
Net current assets/(liabilities) nBEE/ (AR) FE 34,953 (73,729) 9,988 77,370 94,463
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBDERE 695,057 321,651 413,677 1,200,255 1,543,938
Retirement benefit liabilities RINEFEE (34,534) (20,975) (18,143) (18,089) (37,845)
Deferred tax liabilities ELHBEE (3,595) (3,453) (4,060) (12,682) (15,168)
Bank loan RITER (145,092) — — — —
Net assets BEFE 511,836 297,223 391,474 1,169,484 1,490,925
Capital and reserves BARF#E
Share capital A 186,785 186,785 186,785 186,785 186,785
Reserves (A 353,665 128,366 205,485 945,805 1,259,120
Total equity attributable to equity A EERIEAA
shareholders of the Company e 540,450 315,151 392,270 1,132,590 1,445,905
Non-controlling interests TR (28,614) (17,928) (796) 36,894 45,020
Total equity EREE 511,836 297,223 391,474 1,169,484 1,490,925
Notes to the five year summary: FFREMEM T

In order to comply with the amendments to HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate financial BTRABRBEENE 275 (46 KBV RE]
statements, in 2010, the Group changed its accounting policy for the allocation of losses ~ RZZE—ZF « AEENFEHIHE TIHERER 2
to non-controlling interests. This change has been applied prospectively as from the year — €&IEGE - W RBEE-_T—ZTF+-A=1+—HL
ended 31 December 2010 and net assets and losses for earlier periods have not been FEMBEWHEBPEER  REHMEEFEREE
restated. RIRMES o
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San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong
Limited remains committed to its
parent company’s philosophy of “profit
with honor”.
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an Mig Light remains one
of our best performers.
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